
April 22, 2021 -1- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
 
I hereby certify that the following agenda                                
was posted at least 72 hours prior to the time                               
of the meeting so noticed below at                                          
24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, Lake Forest, California. 
   

                                            
                            _________________________  
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary of the                                   
El Toro Water District and the Board of                                       
Directors thereof 

 

  
    
 

 

AGENDA 
 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
April 22, 2021 

 

7:30 a.m. 
 
 
This Meeting is being conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order 
N-29-20 (Paragraph 3) and the conditions specified therein which waive certain provisions 
of the Brown Act. 
 
In an effort to protect public health and prevent the spread of COVID-19 (Coronavirus), and 
in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20, there will be no public 
location for attending in person. 
 
The Order allows all Board Members to participate telephonically in the Meeting from 
remote locations.  As such, Directors Gaskins, Freshley, Havens, Monin, and Vergara will 
be participating telephonically. 
 
Members of the public who wish to comment on any item within the jurisdiction of the 
District or on any item on the agenda, may observe and address the Meeting by joining at 
this link:   https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86149932269. (Meeting ID:  861 4993 2269). 
Members of the public who wish only to listen to the telephonic meeting may dial in at the 
following numbers (669) 900-6833 or (346) 248-7799 with the same Meeting ID noted 
above.  Please be advised the Meeting is being recorded. 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86149932269


April 22, 2021 -2- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER – President Gaskins 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Gaskins 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public may address the Board at this time or they may reserve this 
opportunity with regard to an item on the agenda, until said item is discussed by the 
Board.  Comments on other items will be heard at the time set aside for “COMMENTS 
REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS.”  The public may identify themselves when called 
on and limit their comments to three minutes. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
Determine need and take action to agendize items which arose subsequent to the posting 
of the Agenda. (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds 
vote of the Board members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are 
present, a unanimous vote of those members present.) 
 
PRESENTATION OF AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

a. Service Awards 
 

1. Mr. Cafferty will recognize and congratulate Vincent Coppola, 
Maintenance Worker III, for 5 years of service with the District. 

 
 
1. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a Board 
member or a member of the public requests separate action or discussion on a specific 
item) 
 

a. Consider approving the minutes of the March 25, 2021 Board meeting. 
 

Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to approve the subject 
minutes. 

 

APPROVAL OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM TODAY’S CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
The Board will discuss items removed from today’s Consent Calendar requiring 
further discussion. 

 
Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to approve the items 
removed from today’s Consent Calendar. 

 
2. Director Reports for Meetings Attended (Oral Report) 
 



April 22, 2021 -3- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
3. EL TORO WATER DISTRICT DRAFT 2020/21 BUDGET, WATER, SEWER & 

RECYCED WATER COST OF SERVICE (COS) AND PROPOSITION 218 NOTICE 

 
Staff and the Committee will review and discuss the Draft 2020/21 Budget 
Assumptions and Associated Fiscal Implications, the Draft COS, the Draft 
Proposition 218 Notice and the Schedule to Distribute and Conduct a Public  
Hearing on same. 

 
Recommended Action:  Subject to Board input, Staff and the Committee 
recommend that the Board of Directors approve the El Toro Water District:  

 
a. 2020/21 Operating Budget 
b. 2020/21 Water, Recycled Water, and Wastewater Rate Study  
c. 2020/21 Proposition 218 Notice and authorize distribution of same in 

accordance with applicable public noticing requirements 
d. Authorize noticing of a Rate Public Hearing to be scheduled for June 

24, 2021 
 
4. Annual Review of the District’s Identity Theft Prevention Policy Statement 

(2008-23 (IV) (Reference Material Included) 
 

The District performs an annual review of the Identity Theft Prevention Policy 
Statement. Staff recommends no amendments to the District’s Identity Theft 
Prevention Policy 2008-23 (IV). 

 
Recommended Action:  Staff recommends no amendments to the Districts Identity 
Theft Prevention Policy 2008-23 (IV). 

 
 
GENERAL MANAGER INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
5. COVID-19 Update (Reference Material Included) 
 

Staff will provide an update on the status of the District response to the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

 
6. General Manager’s Monthly Report (Report Included) 

 
Staff will review and comment on the General Manager’s Monthly Report. 
 

7. Legislative Reports (Reference Materials Included) 
 

Staff and General Counsel will review and comment on the Legislative reports. 
 

 



April 22, 2021 -4- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
8. Public Education and Outreach & Water Conservation Reports  

(Reference Material Included) 
 

Staff and will review and comment on the Public Education and Outreach & Water 
Conservation Reports. 

 

9. SOCWA Reports (Reference Material Included)  
 

a. SOCWA Board Meeting – April 1, 2021 

b. SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting – April 8, 2021 

c. SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting – April 20, 2021 

 
10. Municipal Water District Of Orange County (MWDOC) Report 

(Reference Material Included) 

a. MWDOC Elected Officials Forum – April 1, 2021 

b. MWDOC Planning/Operations Meeting – April 5, 2021 

c. MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop – April 7, 2021 

d. MWDOC Administration & Finance Committee – April 19, 2021 

e. MWDOC Board Meeting – April 21, 2021 

 
11. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report  

There was no meeting. 

 

12. South Orange County Watershed Management Area (SOCWMA) 
 Management and/or Executive Committee Report (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the April 5, 2021 Management Committee meeting – canceled. 
 

 
13. ISDOC Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the April 6, 2021 ISDOC Executive Committee meeting. 

 
14. WACO Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the April 2, 2021 WACO meeting 
 

b. Report on the April 20, 2021 WACO Planning Committee meeting 

 
 
 
 



April 22, 2021 -5- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
COMMITTEE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

15. Dates to Remember for April/May 2021 (Reference Material Included) 
 
 
COMMENTS REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

  

At this time the Board will go into Closed Session as follows: 
 

1. At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) to consult with legal counsel and staff on a 
matter of pending litigation.  [Class Action] Kessner et al. v. City of Santa 
Clara, et al. (Santa Clara County Superior Court - Case No. 20 CV 364054). 

 
 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION (Legal Counsel) 
 
          Mr. Granito will provide an oral report on the Closed Session. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The agenda material for this meeting is available to the public at the District's Administrative Office, which is located at 
24251 Los Alisos Blvd., Lake Forest, Ca. 92630. If any additional material related to an open session agenda item is 
distributed to all or a majority of the board of directors after this agenda is posted, such material will be made available 
for immediate public inspection at the same location. 
 
Request for Disability-Related Modifications or Accommodations 
 
If you require any disability-related accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this 
public meeting, please telephone the District's Recording Secretary, Polly Welsch at (949) 837-7050, extension 225 at least 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to said meeting.  If you prefer, your request may be submitted in writing to El Toro Water 
District, P.O. Box 4000, Laguna Hills, California 92654, Attention: Polly Welsch. 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

March 25, 2021 

 

President Gaskins called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

ELTORO WATER DISTRICT to order via Zoom at 7:30 a.m. on March 25, 2021. 

 Director Havens led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Committee Members MIKE GASKINS, KATHRYN FRESHLEY, MARK 

MONIN, JOSE VERGARA, and KAY HAVENS participated. 

Also present were DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, General Manager, JUDY 

CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, JASON HAYDEN, CFO, SCOTT 

HOPKINS, Operations Superintendent, BOBBY YOUNG, Principal Engineer, 

SHERRI SEITZ, Public Relations/Emergency Preparedness Administrator, 

ROMAN KOCIBAN, Employee, VICKI TANIOUS, Employee, VINNIE COPOLLA, 

Maintenance Worker II, ERIC WILSON, Senior Mechanic, MARISOL 

MELENDEZ, Customer Service Office Rep 1, GILBERT J. GRANITO, General 

Counsel, MICHAEL COLANTUONO, Special Counsel, JENNIFER PANCAKE, 

Special Counsel (joined at 8:30 a.m.), and POLLY WELSCH, Recording 

Secretary.  

 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 2 

Attorney Report 
 
 Mr. Granito reported that there is a need for a Closed Session to discuss 

item #2 of today’s Closed Session agenda. 

Closed Session 
 
 At approximately 7:35 a.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  Also, at 

this time, Mr. Hayden, Ms. Cimorell, Ms. Tanious, Mr. Kociban, Mr. Copolla, Mr. 

Wilson, Mr. Hopkins, Ms. Seitz, Mr. Young, Ms. Melendez, and Ms. Welsch left 

the meeting. 

Report on Closed Session 
 
 At approximately 7:50 a.m. the Board returned to Regular Session.  Also, 

at this time, Mr. Hayden, Ms. Cimorell, Ms. Tanious, Mr. Kociban, Mr. Copolla, 

Mr. Wilson, Mr. Hopkins, Ms. Seitz, Mr. Young, Ms. Melendez, and Ms. Welsch 

returned to the meeting.  Also, at this time, Mr. Colantuono left the meeting. 

 Mr. Granito reported that the Board did go into Closed Session with regard 

to item #2, the Kessner litigation.  He further reported that during that segment of 

today’s Closed Sessions, the District’s Special Counsel, Michael Colantuono, led 

a discussion on the status of the action.  No reportable action was taken. 

Oral Communications/Public Comments 

 There was no public and there were no comments. 

Items Received Too Late to be Agendized 

 President Gaskins asked if there were any items received too late to be 

agendized.   Mr. Cafferty replied no. 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 3 

Presentation of Awards, Recognitions and Introductions 

Service Awards 

 President Gaskins stated that the water industry, both on the wastewater 

and domestic water side, is unique with jobs done well that they are nearly 

invisible to the public, and staff are well trained and educated, with their progress 

noted through certifications and rigorous trainings. 

1. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Vicki Tanious, Senior 

Accountant/Payroll, for 5 years of service with the District. 

2. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Eric Wilson, Senior 

Mechanic, for 20 years of service with the District. 

Continuing Education & Training, Degree and Certification Program 

Acknowledgment 

1. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Daniel Lopez, Maintenance 

Worker 1, for obtaining his State Water Resources Control Board T-2 

Treatment Certification. 

2. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Roman Kociban, Crew 

Chief, for obtaining his State Water Resources Control Board D-5 

Distribution Certification. 

3. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Vincent Coppola, 

Maintenance Worker II, for obtaining his State Water Resources 

Control Board D-5 Distribution Certification. 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 4 

4. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Will Wesson, Maintenance 

Worker II, for obtaining his Water Utility Science – Water Distribution 

Certificate from Santiago Canyon College. 

5. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Marisol Melendez, 

Customer Service Representative 1, for obtaining her Associates 

Degree in Liberal Arts & Humanities from Golden West College. 

Consent Calendar 

 President Gaskins asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Vice President Freshley made a Motion, seconded by Director 

Monin, and unanimously carried across the Board to approve the Consent 

Calendar. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Havens  aye 
 Director Vergara  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Vice President Freshley aye 
 President Gaskins  aye 
 
 
Director Reports for Meetings Attended 

 Director Havens stated that she attended the ISDOC Executive 

Committee meeting, the RRC meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors 

workshop, the SOCWA Board meeting, the SOCWMA Executive meeting, the 

WACO meeting, the LAFCO meeting, the South Orange County Economic 

Coalition meeting, a TV-6 interview, the WateReuse conference, and the 

District’s meetings. 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 5 

 Director Monin stated that he attended the OCCOG meeting, the 

District’s meetings, the WateReuse conference, the WACO Planning 

Committee meeting, the OCWA meeting, the Budget Committee meeting, the 

MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, the ACWA Finance Committee meeting, 

the WACO meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, and the ISDOC 

Executive Committee meeting. 

 Director Vergara stated that he attended the MWDOC 

Planning/Operations meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, the 

WACO meeting, the MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, the MWDOC Board 

meeting, the South Orange County Economic Coalition meeting, the 

WateReuse conference, the WACO Planning meeting, the District’s meetings, 

and finished his Sexual Harassment training.  He also intends to attend a 

Salinity Management meeting by the Southern California Water Coalition, and 

the OCWA meeting. 

 Vice President Freshley stated that she attended the WACO meeting, 

the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting, the District meetings, the Budget Committee meeting, the 

President/Vice President/GM meetings, the Agenda Review meeting, the 

SOCWA Finance Committee meeting, the SOCWA Board meeting, the RRC 

meeting, the OCWA meeting, the Laguna Woods City Council meeting, and 

the LAFCO meeting. 

 President Gaskins stated that he attended the MWDOC 

Planning/Operations meeting, the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop, the 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 6 

WACO meeting, the MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, the Agenda Review 

meeting, the President/VP/GM meetings, the MWDOC Board meeting, and 

the District’s meetings. 

General Manager Action Items 

Resolution No. 21-3-2 Concurring in the Nomination of Jo MacKenzie to the 

California Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Southern Network, 

Seat A 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the District received a request for nomination 

for Jo MacKenzie (imcumbent) to the CSDA Board of Directors, Southern 

Network, Seat A.  He further stated that a second request for support letter 

was received yesterday for another individual. 

 Director Vergara stated that he had met Jo MacKenzie at previous 

events, and she is devoted to the water industry, and he feels we should 

support her. 

 President Gaskins asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Vergara made a Motion, seconded by Director Monin, 

and unanimously carried across the Board to adopt Resolution No. 21-3-2 

which concurs with the Vista Irrigation District’s nomination of Jo MacKenzie 

to the California Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Southern 

Network, Seat A. 

 Roll Call Vote: 

 Director Havens  aye 
 Director Vergara  aye 
 Director Monin  aye 
 Vice President Freshley aye 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 7 

 President Gaskins  aye 
 

General Manager Information Items 

COVID-19 Update 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that we have seen a significant reduction in 

hospitalizations and cases.  He further stated that the County moved into the 

Orange Tier this week. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that Water and Wastewater workers are now 

eligible for the vaccines.   

Attorney Report 

Closed Session 

 At approximately 8:30 a.m. Ms. Pancake joined the meeting, and the 

Board went into Closed Session.  Also, at this time, everyone except the 

Board members, General Counsel, the General Manager, and Ms. Pancake 

(Special Counsel) left the meeting. 

Report on Closed Session 

 At approximately 8:45 a.m. Regular Session resumed, and everyone 

who left during the Closed Session returned to the meeting.  Also, at this time, 

Ms. Pancake left the meeting. 

 Mr. Granito reported that the Board did go into Closed Session to 

discuss item #1, the Quiet Title action, during which Special Counsel, Ms. 

Jennifer Pancake reported on the resolution to the litigation and the 

successful achievement of the demonstrated Quiet Title to the property at 

issue, and no reportable action was taken. 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 8 

 Mr. Granito reported that during the last segment of the Closed 

Session, he reported on the eminent domain litigation filed by the State of 

California against El Toro Water District, with regard to property it deemed 

necessary to expand the I-5 freeway expansion project.   Mr. Granito reported 

that subsequent to the litigation being filed, negotiations resulted in the 

dismissal of the District on Monday, March 22, 2021.  

General Manager’s Monthly Report 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that included in the package is a certificate that the 

District received from JPIA for the President’s Special Recognition Award for 

achieving a low ratio of “Paid Claims and Case Reserves” to “Deposit 

Premiums” in the Property Program for the period 4/01/16 – 3/31/19. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that Budget Committee #1 was held earlier this 

week and it was a successful start to the budget process.   

Director Monin stated that Mr. Hayden did a good job preparing new 

charts.   Vice President Freshley agreed. 

Director Monin stated that the Customer Service report is looking good, 

but he is concerned with the Delinquent Calls not being reported accurately.  

Mr. Cafferty replied that staff will review the zero number to see if it needs to 

be corrected. 

Mr. Cafferty stated that we had a spill last week in our sewer system 

when a plumber had been lining a lateral for a single-family residence and 

they went a little too far with the lining and resulted with a blockage that then 

became a sewer spill. 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 9 

Mr. Cafferty stated that we spilled approximately 2500 gallons of 

wastewater, and recovered approximately 2300 gallons, so approximately 

200 gallons went into the receiving storm drain that goes into a creek. 

Director Vergara asked if the District receives any reprimand from the 

County.  Mr. Cafferty replied no. 

Legislative Reports 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that there is a Senate Bill which tries to put a 120 

day cap on the amount of time that people have to file litigation regarding 

rates.   He further stated that ACWA is promoting this bill, and ETWD has 

participated in the ACWA letter.  

Public Education and Outreach & Water Conservation Reports 

 Ms. Seitz stated that Director Havens had a Zoom interview with Lisa 

Hart on TV-6 where she talked about updating the water district since COVID-

19.   She further stated that there will be no interviews in April, so our 

schedule will shift backwards one month, so Director Vergara will be 

interviewed in May.   

 Ms. Seitz stated that she is working on a newsletter, and will talk to 

LWV to see if they can send out the CAG information on an email blast, as 

well as the HOA’s to include it in their newsletters. 

 Vice President Freshley suggested putting the CAG information in the 

bill stuffers too.  Ms. Seitz agreed. 

 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 10 

SOCWA Reports 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that at the SOCWA Finance meeting they 

discussed their budget and some uncontrollable cost drivers in their 

Operating budget.   He further stated that they also discussed the unfunded 

liability issue. 

MWDOC 

 Director Vergara stated that at the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting they discussed the WEROC assessment, and the MNWD agreement 

with OCWD for possible water storage. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that MWDOC plans to have further discussion on 

the WEROC EOC at the next MWDOC Planning/Operations meeting.  He 

further stated that as far as the MNWD request to have emergency 

groundwater storage, the OCWA studies are largely complete, with one study 

to assess how water can be distributed, and one study to assess costs. 

 President Gaskins stated that at the MWDOC/MET Directors workshop 

they discussed confusion with the WEROC project, and the possibility of 

using the Baker plant instead.  He further stated that there has been no 

discussion on the Baker plant, and IRWD determined that the Baker plant is 

not an option for WEROC. 

 Director Vergara asked if we could go ahead and build the new 

building and then lease back to WEROC.  Mr. Cafferty replied that if WEROC 

decides not to build a new building, our costs do not change dramatically. 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 11 

 Director Monin stated that at the MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting they 

discussed changing how they work with OCWD and how it might affect other 

agencies.    

Mr. Cafferty stated that MWDOC provided a series of meetings 

regarding their rate study which Raftelis has been preparing for them, and 

one of their challenges has been identifying how OCWD fits into collecting 

their revenue.  He further stated that the current process they have been 

using is that OCWD pays a little more than $500,000/year, and there is also a 

charge that goes to all member agencies, but OCWD is complaining about 

paying a large share and then the member agencies are paying again, which 

feels like being double charged.  He further stated that the decision was that 

OCWD would be treated like any other agency. 

LAFCO 

 Vice President Freshley stated that at the LAFCO meeting they 

discussed the budget and the approximately 10% increase that affects 

everyone, which is allocated a third cost to the County, a third cost to the 

Cities, and a third cost to the Special Districts.   She further stated that they 

also discussed current Legislation, and an unincorporated part of the County. 

SOCWMA 

 Director Havens stated that they discussed an Executive report which 

mentioned that the IRWMP is now 10 years old, and that the San Diego 

Regional Water Quality Board is issuing biological objectives which led into 

the Aliso Creek investigative order regarding breaching the sand bar.  She 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 12 

further stated that it was made clear that the County does not own Aliso 

Creek; it owns a small portion under the mouth, but regardless of this they are 

co-funding work in response to the Order. 

 Director Havens stated that they also discussed the work that was 

done over the year which includes development of a Reference Guide. 

SAC 

 Director Havens stated that they discussed the Baker pipeline that is 

exposed in Santiago Creek and it was agreed that they were going to sink it 

another 10 feet.  She further stated that ETWD’s share of cost will be 

approximately $50,000, with anticipated completion in October. 

 Director Havens stated that she was appointed the Alternate for JPIA 

for SAC. 

ISDOC 

 Director Monin stated that there are 3 candidates running for the 

second VP position, with the nominating period ending Friday.   He further 

stated that ISDOC is working on getting their own website instead of working 

through MWDOC.  Vice President Freshley asked why they are planning to 

get their own website.   Director Monin replied that MWDOC runs the website, 

and ISDOC would prefer to have their own website. 

 Director Monin stated that they are working on a letter to the Elected 

Officials. 

 

 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 13 

WACO 

 Director Monin stated that they discussed the Ducks Unlimited 

presentation and collaboration.   He further stated that the next meeting will 

be on rain seeding. 

City Coordination Meetings 

 There were no comments. 

Committee and General Information 

 Director Havens stated that the WateReuse conference focused on 

recycled water as drinking water.  She further stated that toxicology reports 

are needed, and contaminants are a concern along with light volatiles. 

 Director Havens stated that they are marketing a one water world view 

going through various phases of existence.  

Dates to Remember for March/April 2021 

 There were no comments. 

Comments Regarding Non-Agenda Items 

Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 

was adjourned at 10:10 a.m.  

Respectfully submitted, 
 

   
POLLY WELSCH 

 Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 



March 25, 2021 

Board Mtg 14 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 __ 
MIKE GASKINS, President of  
the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
 _ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and 
the Board of Directors thereof  



BUDGET 

2021-2022

For Fiscal Year

July 1 ,  2020 - June 30, 2022



  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page i 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Transmittal Letter ……………………………………………………………………………….  Pages 1 – 6 

Introductory Section   

2020 Budget Summary ………………………………………………………………………  Pages 7 – 16 

District Profile ……..…………………………………………………………………………  Pages 17 – 26 

Enterprise Budget Summaries   

Water System ….……………………………………………………………………………..  Pages 27 – 28 

Wastewater Treatment System ……..………………………………………………………  Page 29  

Recycled Water System ……..……………………………………………………………….  Page 30 

Personnel Analysis ……………………………………………………………………………...  Pages 31 – 38 

Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program …………………………………………….  Pages 39 – 43 

Debt Analysis ……………………………………………………………………………………  Pages 44 – 48 

   

   

   

 
   



  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page ii 

 

Index of Tables and Charts   

Table 1. Summary of Financial Operations, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 9 

Table 2. Revenues, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 10 

Chart 1. Distribution of Revenues in 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 11 

Table 3. Operating Expenses, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 12 

Table 4. Operating Expenses by Type of Expense, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 13 

Chart 2. Distribution of Expenses in 2021‐2022 Budget  Page 13 

Table 5. Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  Page 14 

Table 6. Summary of Authorized Positions by Department  Page 16 

Table 7. Population Data  Page 20 

Table 8. Population Characteristics  Page 20 

Table 9. Comparison of Economic Characteristics of District Residents  Page 21 

Table 10. Education for Residents 25 or Older  Page 22 

Table 11. Occupations  Page 23 

Table 12. Unemployment & Workforce Participation Rate Comparison  Page 24 

Table 13. Water System Financial Summary  Page 28 

Table 14. Wastewater System Financial Summary  Page 29 

Table 15. Recycled Water System Financial Summary  Page 30 

Table 16. 2021‐2022 Personnel Expense Summary  Page 32 

Chart 3. Total Cost of Salaries and Percent Increase  Page 33 

Chart 4. Total Health Insurance Cost and Percent Increase  Page 33 

Chart 5. Total Deferred Compensation Cost and Percent Increase  Page 33 

Table 17. Organization Chart and Authorized Positions, 2021‐2022  Page 34 

Table 18. Compensation Plan – Salary Range Schedule – Non‐Exempt  Pages 34 – 35 

Table 19. Compensation Plan – Salary Range Schedule – Exempt  Page 36 

Table 20. Five Year Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  Pages 39 – 41 

Table 21. Debt Service Coverage Ratio  Page 42 

Table 22. Schedule of Long Term Debt Requirements – 2010 Loan  Page 43 

Table 23. Schedule of Long Term Debt Requirements – 2013 Loan  Page 44 

Table 24. Schedule of Long Term Debt Requirements – 2018 Loan  Page 45 

Table 25. Schedule of Long Term Debt Requirements – 2017 Loan  Page 46 

 
   



  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page iii 

 

Principal Officials 

On the Budget Approval Date of June 24, 2021 

 

 

PRESIDENT 

Mike Gaskins 

 

VICE‐PRESIDENT 

 

Kathryn Freshley 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Jose F. Vergara  Mark Monin  Kay Havens 

   

 

 

GENERAL MANAGER 

Dennis Cafferty 

 

   

   

MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Judy Cimorell  Human Resources Manager 

Jason Hayden  Chief Financial Officer 

Scott Hopkins  Operations Superintendent 

Mike Miazga  Information Technology Manager 

Robert Young  Principal Engineer 

   

 

 

 

         

         

         



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 1 

 

 

July 1, 2021 

 

Presented for your review and consideration is the Budget document for the El Toro Water District for the Fiscal 

Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022.   The budget provides a framework for achieving  the 

strategic objectives established by the District Board and details how the resources entrusted to the District by 

its customers will be utilized to provide effective and efficient water, wastewater, and recycled water services.  

The  core  purposes  of  the District’s  annual  budget  include  estimating  the  financial  resources  that will  be 

available to the District during the budget period and authorizing a spending plan that utilizes those financial 

resources  to  fund  the  services, programs,  and projects  the District Board has determined  are necessary  to 

effectively serve the District’s customers.  The Budget is developed and modified through an extensive review 

process involving the Board of Directors and District Staff and reflects a continual commitment by the District  

to deliver safe, reliable, and high quality services to the District’s customers.   

 

The  services  and programs provided by  the District  are made possible by  the  financial  resources  that  are 

generated when the customers of the District pay their utility bills.  The District is committed to utilizing these 

resources to provide efficient, effective, and high‐quality services that meet the needs of the customers.  The 

Budget is one of the foundations of the District’s service provision efforts and illustrates how resources will be 

used to continue providing existing services as well as make improvements to those services if appropriate and 

achievable.   The process of developing  the  annual budget  includes  a  thorough  assessment of  the  external 

environment  so  the District will be  able  to  effectively  respond  to potential  challenges  that may occur  in a 

particular budget period.  

The mission of the El Toro Water District is to provide its customers with safe, reliable, and high quality water, wastewater 

treatment, and recycled water services in an environmentally and economically responsible manner.  The District intends to 

accomplish this mission by efficiently and effectively managing its operations and maintenance activities and prudently and 

effectively investing in its capital assets.    



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 2 

 

 

Review of Accomplishments in the 2020‐2021 Budget Period 

During  the 2020‐2021 budget period, many of  the objectives and projects  that were  included  in  the original 

budget were achieved, these achievements are detailed below:    

Significant Achievements & Projects  

 The District  successfully  adapted  to  the  operational  and  safety  protocols  necessary  to maintain  the 

integrity  and  reliability  of  the water, wastewater  and  recycled water  services  amidst  the COVID‐19 

pandemic. 

 The District Board  of Directors  engaged  in  a detailed  strategic planning process  that  resulted  in  the 

development of a strategic plan for the District for the next five years. 

 Continued the District’s commitment to excellent financial management practices as demonstrated by the 

receipt  of  the  Certificate  of  Achievement  for  Excellence  in  Financial  Reporting  for  the  FY  2019 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a national recognition of the District’s financial reporting by the 

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States. 

 The District approved a budget for the 2020‐2021 fiscal year that delayed a rate increase to October 1 by 

reducing expenses and utilizing reserves to minimize the financial burden on the District’s customers.   

Infrastructure Improvements 

 During 2020‐2021 engineering staff continued the Phase II Recycled Water Project which will complete 

the recycled water delivery system.  Once the distribution system is complete, it will have a significantly 

positive impact on the environment by reducing potable water consumption. 

 The District also began the reconstruction of the Oso Lift Station which will replace the existing sewage 

station built in the early 1970s. The Oso Lift Station conveys raw wastewater from the southwest portion 

of the service area to the gravity collection system, ultimately terminating at the Water Recycling Plant. 

The pumps and motors reached the end of their useful life and a newer technology has been implemented 

to improve the safety, reliability, and serviceability of the station.  

 

Organizational and Service Area Challenges for 2021‐2022 

An ongoing endeavor for the District is identifying and securing funding for its comprehensive infrastructure 

investment program.  In prior years, the District has been able to secure grant funding low interest loans for 

infrastructure improvements but these funding mechanisms are becoming more difficult to secure.  Providing 

sufficient funding for infrastructure improvements will be a primary challenge for the District as significant 

infrastructure projects need to be completed in the next three to five years. 

 

Another challenge facing the District in 2020 and future years is the continued increase in unfunded Other Post‐ 

Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability.  This liability has increased significantly in the last three years and the 

District is considering strategies to manage this liability.      

 

 

   



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 3 

 

Goals and Objectives for the 2021‐2022 Budget 

The 2021‐2022 budget includes the following goals and objectives: 

 Establish a  revenue cash  flow plan  that  is sufficient  to  fund  the operating budget  including  the capital 

replacement & refurbishment program; 

 Establish a reliable, stable and predictable rate adjustment strategy that minimizes impact to customers; 

 Maintain a minimum reserve level sufficient to fund legally restricted reserves, board mandated reserves 

and working capital requirements; 

 Employ cost containment and reduction strategies and practices as appropriate to cost effectively maintain 

reliable service levels. 

   



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 4 

 

Assumptions Integrated into the 2021‐2022 Budget 

The 2021‐2022 budget includes the following budgetary assumptions: 

Revenues 

 POTABLE WATER SALES are based on the purchase of 7,000 acre‐feet (AF) of water and delivery of 6,700 

AF to customers; 

 The POTABLE WATER USAGE CHARGE which  funds  the purchase of water  from  the Metropolitan 

Water  District  through  the Municipal Water  District  of  Orange  County  and  from  the  Baker Water 

Treatment Plant will be increased effective July 1, 2021 and is supported by an independently prepared 

Cost of Service Study Report;  

 The  POTABLE WATER  SERVICE CHARGE  (Water  System Operations & Maintenance  ʺO&Mʺ) will 

increase effective July 1, 2021 and is supported by an independently prepared Cost of Service Study and 

Report; 

 The SEWER USAGE AND FIXED RATE (Sewer System Operations & Maintenance) will increase effective 

July 1, 2021 and is supported by an independently prepared Cost of Service Study and Report; 

 The  RECYCLED WATER  SERVICE  CHARGE  (Recycled Water  System  Operations  &  Maintenance 

ʺO&Mʺ) will increase effective July 1, 2021 and is supported by an independently prepared Cost of Service 

Study Report; 

 The RECYCLED WATER USAGE CHARGE will be increased effective July 1, 2021 and is supported by 

an independently prepared Cost of Service Study Report;  

 NON‐RATE  REVENUE  reflects  shared  maintenance  of  joint  facilities  with  neighboring  agencies, 

communication site leases and other miscellaneous revenues; 

 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE represents the Districtʹs share of the 1% general property taxes paid to the 

State; 

 INTEREST INCOME is projected to decrease as a result of the continued low interest rate environment; 

 CAPITAL REPLACEMENT & REFURBISHMENT WATER, SEWER & RECYCLED WATER CHARGES 

are designed to assist in covering the cost of water, sewer and recycled water capital R&R expenditures 

during the fiscal year, no changes to these charges for the 2021/22 fiscal year are contemplated; 

 Rate increases comply with all applicable state constitutional and statutory mandates. 

Expenses 

 PURCHASED WATER costs are affected by  the anticipated  increase  in potable water sales along with 

increased  rates  charged  by Metropolitan Water District  of  Southern California  and Municipal Water 

District of Orange County and increased O&M costs associated with the Districtʹs capacity in the Baker 

Water Treatment Plant; 

 ENERGY  (electrical  power)  costs  have  increased  based  on  expected  system  operations,  capital 

improvements and analysis of actual Southern California Edison rates and charges; 

 SOCWA OPERATIONS costs for regional bio‐solids and effluent treatment and disposal have increased 

based on the anticipated SOCWA 2021/22 budget; 

 LABOR/BENEFITS COST  are  projected  to  increase  as  the  continued  implementation  of  the Districtʹs 

Succession  Plan,  increases  in medical  premiums,  the Districtʹs  contributions  to  the  employees  401(k) 



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 5 

 

Retirement Savings Plan, and the administration of a Performance Based Merit Program all impact total 

personnel costs;  

 OPERATING COSTS exclusive of purchased water,  interest,  labor and depreciation have  increased by 

approximately 3.9% compared to 2020/21.  

Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program 

 Staff  continues  to  evaluate  and  update  the  on‐going  five‐year Water,  Sewer  and  Recycled  Capital 

Replacement & Refurbishment Plan (CR&R) to preserve water and sewer infrastructure investments, meet 

regulatory  requirements,  and  ensure  a  continuous  high  level  of  service.   Water  and  Sewer  CR&R 

expenditures for fiscal year 2021/22 total $2.4 million.  The 2021/22 CR&R costs will be funded by revenue 

generated by the CR&R charge. 

 Revenue generated from the Recycled Water CR&R charge amounts to $147,055 and will be used to offset 

the cost of the Recycled Water program debt service. 

Reserves 

 The District maintains three categories of reserves: (1) those legally required to be held as the result of 

contractual  agreement  or  legal  requirement;  (2)  Board Mandated  reserves;  and  (3)  Board  Restricted 

reserves.   

 Board Mandated reserves include (1) Capital reserves, (2) rate stabilization reserves, (3) operating reserves 

and (4) working capital.  The current minimum reserve level for Board Mandated reserves, established by 

Board policy, is $8.5 million.   

 In an effort  to mitigate  the magnitude of  the necessary  rate  increase,  the District’s  fiscal year 2021‐22 

Budget includes a provision to utilize a small amount of reserves in the Water System to fund a portion 

of operating expenses. 

 

   



 

Transmittal Letter  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 6 

 

Conclusion 

The 2021‐2022 Budget is the result of considerable discussion and careful deliberation by the District’s Board of 

Directors  and  Staff.    The  preparation,  review  and  deliberation  of  the  budget  require  a  significant  time 

commitment from the organization.   The level of commitment demonstrated throughout this process by the 

Board of Directors and Staff  is greatly appreciated by the General Manager and Chief Financial Officer and 

ensures  the  successful  completion  of  the  budget  process.    The  Budget  is  optimistic  about  the  future  but 

conservative  in  its  revenue  estimates.   Most  of  all,  this  Budget  is  the  result  of  a  process  in  which  the 

opportunities and challenges facing the District have been carefully assessed, documented, and addressed to 

facilitate the accomplishment of the strategic objectives of the Board of Directors.   

 

 
    Dennis Cafferty  
Dennis Cafferty 

General Manager 

 

 



(1) The Net Position of a governmental entity such as the District is the difference between the entity’s assets and liabilities.  Net 

Position represents the residual value that remains after all of the financial activities of the entity have been accounted for.  

Therefore Net Position incorporates the effects of non‐cash transactions, including depreciation, amortization, expensing of 

liabilities (OPEB for the District), and all other non‐cash transactions that are included in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 

and Changes in Net Position.   

 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 7 

 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary 

This section of the budget document provides a summary of the District’s financial operations, assuming the 

estimated revenues and expenses incorporated into the 2021‐2022 Budget occur as budgeted.  This section also 

summarizes the number of authorized positions included in the 2021‐2022 compensation plan.  The charts and 

graphs  in  this  section provide an overview of  total  revenues, expenses, and  the projected ending  financial 

position for the District.   

 

Summary of 2021‐2022 Budgeted Financial Information 

The 2021‐2022 Budget includes $28,894,746 in total estimated revenues and $28,755,267 in budgeted expenses, 

thereby resulting in a Change in Net Position of $139,479 for the 2021‐2022 Budget Year.  The Net Position(1) of 

the District is projected to equal $62,465,520 at the end of the 2021‐2022 fiscal year.  In addition to the revenues 

and expenses that will be recognized  in the District’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes  in Net 

Position,  the District will  also  engage  in  balance  sheet  transactions  in  2021‐2022  that  include  acquiring  or 

constructing $2.4 million in capital assets and repaying $2,152,744 of its outstanding long term debt. 

   

2020‐2021 2020‐2021

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected 2021‐2022

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Revenues

Operating Revenues 25,445,261     24,663,457     25,197,330     25,995,389     13,783,157     25,666,984     27,449,746    

Non‐Operating Revenues 1,299,509       2,627,873       1,744,549       1,658,500       698,847          1,378,309       1,445,000      

Capital Contributions 45,853            1,985,903       2,894              ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total Revenues 26,790,624     29,277,233     26,944,773     27,653,889     14,482,004     27,045,293     28,894,746    

Expenses

Operating Expenses 27,096,755     26,928,835     27,980,606     27,667,622     13,584,862     26,702,631     28,037,267    

Non‐operating Expenses 790,753          753,794          777,511          756,649          378,324          756,324          718,000         

Total Expenses 27,887,508     27,682,629     28,758,117     28,424,271     13,963,186     27,458,955     28,755,267    

Change in Net Position (1,096,884)      1,594,604       (1,813,344)      (770,382)         518,818          (413,662)         139,479         

Net Position ‐ July 1 63,817,614     62,958,444     64,553,048     62,739,703     62,739,703     62,739,703     62,326,041    

Net Position ‐ June 30 62,720,730     64,553,048     62,739,703     61,969,321     63,258,522     62,326,041     62,465,520    

Balance Sheet Expenses

Acquisition of Capital Assets 5,716,818       2,830,078       1,447,543       2,400,000       498,212          2,400,000       2,400,000      

Repayment of Long Term Debt 1,739,638       1,776,305       2,166,953       2,109,135       1,689,295       2,109,135       2,152,744      

Table 1. Summary of Financial Operations, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 10 

 

Analysis of District Revenues 

Total revenues are estimated to equal $28,894,746 for the 2021‐2022 Budget, an increase of $1,240,859 (4.49%) 

compared to 2020‐2021 Budgeted Revenues of $27,653,887.  The largest sources of revenue for the District in 

2021‐2022  include  Usage  (Commodity)  Charges  at  $11,054,586  (38.3%  of  the  total),  Service  Charges  (or 

Readiness to Serve) at $12,854,567 (44.5% of the total) and Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Charges at 

$3,025,468 (10.5% of the total).  Amongst the three enterprise operations of the District, the Water Enterprise 

receives 56.3% of  total  revenues  (projected at $16,267,462  in 2021‐2022),  the Wastewater Enterprise  receives 

34.4% of  total  revenues  ($9,939,037),  and  the Recycled Water Enterprise  receives  9.3%  ($2,688,247)  of  total 

revenues.   

 

2020‐2021 2020‐2021

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected 2021‐2022

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Operating Revenues

Usage Charges

Water Commodity 9,459,453     8,474,791     8,705,988     8,904,396     5,212,565     8,893,620     9,243,364    

Recycled Water Commodity 1,614,242     1,309,055     1,355,119     1,663,847     1,016,289     1,557,489     1,811,222    

Service Charges (Readiness to Serve)

Water Services 3,040,449     3,339,049     3,695,636     3,824,187     1,862,422     3,795,854     4,229,130    

Wastewater Services 7,547,171     7,698,022     7,705,617     7,775,000     3,833,491     7,608,891     8,237,537    

Recycled Water Services 205,014        226,645        258,409        336,207        144,736        305,698        387,900       

Reimbursements from Others 403,445        383,811        328,310        421,750        202,400        420,150        460,125       

Other Operating Revenues 171,198        226,550        141,081        55,000          8,574            79,924          55,000         

Capital Replacement Charges

Water Capital Charges 1,285,005     1,284,019     1,281,976     1,254,000     634,431        1,268,862     1,259,968    

Wastewater Capital Charges 1,603,085     1,605,319     1,606,851     1,614,000     803,127        1,606,254     1,614,000    

Recycled Water Capital Charges 116,197        116,197        118,345        147,000        65,120          130,240        151,500       

Total Operating Revenues 25,445,259   24,663,458   25,197,332   25,995,387   13,783,155   25,666,982   27,449,746  

Non‐operating Revenues

Property Taxes 927,673        1,012,576     1,037,335     1,053,500     542,167        1,086,667     1,090,000    

Rental Income 188,183        204,160        242,187        235,000        106,045        219,607        235,000       

Investment Income 124,000        500,786        424,110        350,000        45,824          61,224          100,000       

Other Non‐operating Income 59,653          910,351        40,917          20,000          4,811            10,811          20,000         

Total Non‐operating Revenues 1,299,509     2,627,873     1,744,549     1,658,500     698,847        1,378,309     1,445,000    

Capital Contributions 45,853          1,985,903     2,895            ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                   

Total Revenue 26,790,622   29,277,234   26,944,776   27,653,887   14,482,002   27,045,291   28,894,746  

Allocation of Revenues

Water Operations 12,716,176   12,504,003   12,972,978   13,245,474   6,898,785     13,001,209   13,592,961  

Wastewater Operations 8,148,156     9,393,857     8,497,372     8,472,110     4,145,023     8,248,798     8,826,437    

Recycled Water Operations 2,173,470     1,859,856     1,924,640     2,381,584     1,395,798     2,250,210     2,623,947    

Restricted Revenues 702,680        528,079        539,719        539,719        539,719        539,719        825,933       

Capital Charges 3,004,287     3,005,535     3,007,172     3,015,000     1,502,678     3,005,356     3,025,468    

Total Revenues 26,744,768   27,291,331   26,941,881   27,653,887   14,482,002   27,045,291   28,894,746  

Table 2. Revenues, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 11 

 

Presented in Chart 1 below are all of the major revenue categories for the District.  As shown in the chart, the 

four largest categories of revenue comprise 85.2% of the District’s total revenues.    

 

Chart 1. Distribution of Revenues in 2021‐2022 Budget 

 
                   

                Total Revenues ‐ $28,894,746 

 

 

   



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 12 

 

Analysis of District Expenses 

Total budgeted Operating and Non‐operating expenses for the 2021‐2022 Budget year equal $28,755,267, an increase 

of  $330,996  (1.16%)  from  2020‐2021  budgeted  expenses  of  $28,424,271.    Operating  expenses  are  budgeted  at 

$28,037,267, comprising 97.5% of total expenses, and increase by $369,645 (1.34%) from 2020‐2021 budgeted expenses.  

Non‐operating  expenses  equal  $718,000, or  2.5% of  total  expenses,  and decrease  $38,649  (‐5.1%)  from  2020‐2021 

budgeted expenses of $756,649.   

The majority of expenses (47.8%) are incurred by the Water System, primarily because the purchase of potable 

water  is allocated  to  this area.   The Wastewater System  incurs  the second highest  level of expenses  (29.1%) 

followed by Depreciation & Amortization (15.2%) and then the Recycled Water System (4.2%).   

2020‐2021 2020‐2021

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected 2021‐2022

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Operating Expenses

Source of Supply 8,294,019     7,649,268     8,088,427     8,023,991     4,410,609     8,100,690     8,390,867    

Pumping

Water  831,989        878,692        788,792        263,623        434,525        804,963        766,800       

Wastewater 623,764        600,456        570,331        305,835        264,105        534,492        893,100       

Treatment

Water 60,453          52,942          56,096          35,341          23,360          44,149          39,500         

Wastewater 3,120,698     3,335,896     3,333,371     1,874,459     1,790,439     3,483,349     3,628,000    

Recycled Water 413,220        358,693        374,992        285,500        193,014        327,800        531,600       

Transmission & Distribution

Water 2,053,805     2,000,252     2,146,755     565,547        808,682        2,330,240     1,782,200    

Wastewater 771,717        807,325        647,858        187,975        384,197        729,605        902,700       

Recycled Water 4,850            3,157            ‐                    6,000            1,775            1,775            98,400         

Operations Support 1,853,404     1,347,012     1,982,334     334,913        1,143,679     2,319,701     1,442,700    

Fleet Services 360,116        403,377        398,463        8,875,072     196,339        196,339        417,900       

Customer Service 686,217        720,714        603,474        ‐                    296,512        568,748        346,100       

General & Administrative 3,672,449     4,304,621     4,506,106     2,002,516     1,484,493     2,954,515     4,440,500    

Depreciation & Amortization 4,350,053     4,466,431     4,483,605     4,906,850     2,153,133     4,306,266     4,356,900    

Total Operating Expenses 27,096,754   26,928,836   27,980,602   27,667,622   13,584,862   26,702,631   28,037,267  

Non‐operating Expenses

Interest Cost 790,753        753,794        777,511        756,649        378,324        756,324        718,000       

Total Non‐operating Expenses 790,753        753,794        777,511        756,649        378,324        756,324        718,000       

Total Expenses 27,887,507   27,682,630   28,758,113   28,424,271   13,963,186   27,458,955   28,755,267  

Allocation of Expenses

Water System 13,379,061   12,643,328   13,450,460   13,251,403   6,806,551     13,079,104   13,757,827  

Wastewater System 7,826,885     7,841,026     7,683,293     8,045,735     3,918,441     7,939,264     8,377,888    

Recycled Water System 1,100,198     1,064,799     912,767        1,168,989     568,565        1,099,340     1,219,652    

OPEB & Retiree Health Expenses 440,556        913,252        1,450,477     294,645        138,171        278,656        325,000       

Depreciation & Amortization 4,350,053     4,466,431     4,483,605     4,906,850     2,153,133     4,306,266     4,356,900    

Interest Expense 790,753        753,794        777,511        756,649        378,324        756,324        718,000       

Total Expenses 27,887,506   27,682,630   28,758,114   28,424,271   13,963,186   27,458,954   28,755,267  

Table 3. Operating Expenses, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 13 

 

Another way to analyze the District’s expenses is by type of expenses.   Table 4 and Chart 2 below show the 

District’s  expenses by  type of  expense.   As  illustrated by  these  charts,  the  largest expenses  for  the District 

include  Personnel,  the  purchase  of  the  water  which  is  sold  to  the  District’s  customers,  Depreciation  & 

Amortization,  and Contract  type  expenses.   Combined,  these  four  types  of  expenses  comprise  85%  of  the 

District’s total expenses.         

 

 

Chart 2. Distribution of Expenses in 2021‐2022 Budget 

 
              Total Expenses ‐ $28,755,267 

 

   

2020‐2021 2020‐2021

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected 2021‐2022

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Expenses by Category

Personnel  8,400,881     9,037,136     9,803,580     8,884,042     4,190,264     8,762,978     9,357,900    

Water Purchases 8,049,610     7,446,375     7,868,488     7,878,746     4,349,059     7,912,945     8,131,517    

Utilities 1,159,225     1,188,169     1,254,710     1,265,710     720,033        1,331,860     1,390,100    

Contract Expenses 3,103,983     2,643,400     2,652,838     2,585,933     1,318,583     2,630,111     2,650,600    

Commodities 1,397,701     1,439,086     1,301,109     1,433,801     590,660        1,186,796     1,436,150    

Professional Development 294,585        307,761        304,200        329,940        117,319        247,919        308,000       

Technology Expenses 267,006        273,682        241,670        256,000        106,815        237,415        310,000       

Miscellaneous Expenses 73,709          126,796        70,402          126,600        38,996          86,341          96,100         

Depreciation & Amortization 4,350,053     4,466,431     4,483,605     4,906,850     2,153,133     4,306,266     4,356,900    

Interest Costs 790,753        753,794        777,511        756,649        378,324        756,324        718,000       

Total Expenses 27,887,506   27,682,630   28,758,113   28,424,271   13,963,186   27,458,955   28,755,267  

Table 4. Operating Expenses by Type of Expense, 2017‐2018 Actual to 2021‐2022 Budget



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 14 

 

Projected Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  

Portrayed in Table 5 is the projected Statement of the Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the 

District assuming the 2021‐2022 budget occurs as planned.  The chart also includes Statements from prior years 

to serve as a comparison for the proposed 2021‐2022 Budget.   

2020‐2021 2020‐2021 2021‐2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected Proposed

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Operating Revenues

Water Commodity Charges 9,459,453       8,474,791       8,705,988       8,904,396       5,212,565       8,893,620       9,243,364      

Water Service Charges 4,325,454       4,623,068       4,977,612       5,078,187       2,496,853       5,064,716       5,489,098      

Sewer Service Charges 9,150,257       9,303,342       9,312,469       9,389,001       4,636,619       9,215,146       9,851,537      

Recycled Commodity Charges 1,614,242       1,309,055       1,355,119       1,663,847       1,016,289       1,557,489       1,811,222      

Recycled Service Charges 321,211          342,842          376,754          483,207          209,856          435,938          539,400         

Reimbursement from Others 403,445          383,811          328,310          421,750          202,400          420,150          460,125         

Other Charges for Service 171,199          226,551          141,082          55,001            8,575              79,925            55,000           

Total Operating Revenues 25,445,261     24,663,457     25,197,330     25,995,389     13,783,157     25,666,984     27,449,746    

Operating Expenses

Source of Supply 8,294,019       7,649,268       8,088,427       8,023,991       4,410,609       8,100,690       8,390,867      

Pumping 1,455,753       1,479,148       1,359,123       569,458          698,630          1,339,455       1,659,900      

Treatment 3,594,371       3,747,531       3,764,459       2,195,300       2,006,813       3,855,298       4,199,100      

Transmission & Distribution 5,043,892       4,561,123       5,175,409       9,969,507       2,534,672       5,577,660       4,643,900      

Customer Service 686,217          720,714          603,474          ‐                      296,512          568,748          346,100         

General & Administrative 3,672,449       4,304,621       4,506,106       2,002,516       1,484,493       2,954,515       4,440,500      

Depreciation & Amortization 4,350,053       4,466,431       4,483,605       4,906,850       2,153,133       4,306,266       4,356,900      

Total Operating Expenses 27,096,755     26,928,835     27,980,606     27,667,622     13,584,862     26,702,631     28,037,267    

Operating Income/(Loss) (1,651,494)      (2,265,378)      (2,783,276)      (1,672,233)      198,295          (1,035,647)      (587,521)        

Non‐operating Revenues

Property Taxes 927,673          1,012,576       1,037,335       1,053,500       542,167          1,086,667       1,090,000      

Rental Revenue 188,183          204,160          242,187          235,000          106,045          219,607          235,000         

Investment Earnings 124,000          500,786          424,110          350,000          45,824            61,224            100,000         

Other Non‐Operating Revenue 59,653            910,351          40,917            20,000            4,811              10,811            20,000           

Interest Expense (790,753)         (753,794)         (777,511)         (756,649)         (378,324)         (756,324)         (718,000)        

Net Non‐Operating Revenues 508,756          1,874,079       967,038          901,851          320,523          621,985          727,000         

Income/(Loss) before Capital 

Contributions (1,142,738)      (391,299)         (1,816,238)      (770,382)         518,818          (413,662)         139,479         

Capital Contributions

Capital Grants 45,853            1,985,903       2,894              ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total Capital Contributions 45,853            1,985,903       2,894              ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Change in Net Position (1,096,884)      1,594,604       (1,813,344)      (770,382)         518,818          (413,662)         139,479         

Net Position ‐ July 1 63,817,614     62,958,444     64,553,048     62,739,703     62,739,703     62,739,703     62,326,041    

Net Position ‐ June 30 62,720,730     64,553,048     62,739,703     61,969,321     63,258,522     62,326,041     62,465,520    

Table 5. Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 15 

 

As a result of Depreciation & Amortization, operating expenses of $28,037,267 will exceed operating revenues 

of $27,449,746 by $587,521.  Non‐operating revenues will exceed non‐operating expenses by $727,000, thereby 

producing  Income before Capital Contributions of $139,479.   No Capital Contributions are  included  in  the 

budget and therefore the Change in Net Position is also projected to equal $139,479.  The ending Net Position 

will increase to $62,465,520 at the end of the 2021‐2022 budget year.     

 

   



 

2021‐2022 Budget Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Annual Budget  Page 16 

 

2021‐2022 Personnel Summary 

The 2021‐2022 budget authorizes 61 Full‐Time Equivalent (FTE) employees which has not changed in since the 2017‐

2018 Budget.  The chart below summarizes the number of Board authorized FTE employees by Department since the 

2017‐2018 fiscal year.   

 

2020‐2021 2020‐2021 2021‐2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected Proposed

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Employees by Department

Administration 5                     5                     5                     5                     5                     5                     5                    

Information Technology 1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                    

Accounting 4                     4                     4                     4                     4                     4                     4                    

Purchasing/Receiving 1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                    

Customer Service ‐ Office 4                     4                     4                     4                     4                     4                     4                    

Customer Service ‐ Field 3                     3                     3                     3                     3                     3                     3                    

Engineering 5                     5                     5                     5                     5                     5                     5                    

Operations Support 2                     2                     2                     2                     2                     2                     2                    

Transmission & Distribution 9                     9                     9                     9                     9                     9                     9                    

Pump Maintenance 8                     8                     8                     8                     8                     8                     8                    

Treatment Plant 10                   10                   10                   10                   10                   10                   10                  

Electrical 2                     2                     2                     2                     2                     2                     2                    

Collections & Transmissions 6                     6                     6                     6                     6                     6                     6                    

Fleet Maintenance 1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                     1                    

Total Employees 61                   61                   61                   61                   61                   61                   61                  

Table 6. Summary of Authorized Positions by Department



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 17 

 

PROFILE OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

History of the El Toro Water District 

The Founding of El Toro Water District 

On August 12, 1959, a group of local landowners gathered around the kitchen table of Raymond Prothero, Sr., 

at 23572 South Prothero Drive in the community of El Toro (known today as Cornelius Drive in the city of Lake 

Forest) to discuss their concerns about the water supply.   Water for both agricultural and domestic use was 

pumped  from  wells,  and  landowners  feared  that  the  existing  supply  would  not  support  an  increased 

population or an expanded agricultural area.  They wanted to find a more reliable, predictable source of water.   

 

One year later, in September 1960, the El Toro Water District (ETWD) was formed as a special district under 

the  laws  applicable  to California water  districts  (Sections  34000  Et  Seq  of  the Water Code  of  the  State  of 

California).  Governed by a seven‐member Board of Directors elected by landowners, the District’s charge was 

to develop and implement policies that would meet the short and long range economic, water resource and 

environmental goals of the community.  While the immediate need was to provide for its customers, ETWD 

had the wisdom and foresight to consider the greater Orange County area in their planning as well. 

 

At the time of its inception, the total population of the District was only 125 people, and it encompassed 4,750 

acres. Of that, 750 acres were devoted to citrus groves and other agricultural uses. 

 

Expansion Includes Aqueduct, Water Recycling Plant and El Toro Reservoir 

Shortly  after  formation, District  leadership  began  to  prepare  for  the  anticipated  growth  of  south Orange 

County.   Given  the  lack  of  sustainable  groundwater, ETWD  knew  they would have  to maintain  a  critical 

dependence on imported water that originated hundreds of miles away.  ETWD became a constituent agency 

of the Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), which entitled the district to receive imported 

water from the Colorado River and Northern California. 

 

In addition, ETWD  joined with a neighboring water district  to  form  the Santiago Aqueduct Commission  in 

order to secure imported water from the Colorado River.  The commission obtained permission from the water 

supplier, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, to build an aqueduct. The aqueduct would carry 

water  from  a pipeline  adjacent  to  Irvine Park  to  the El Toro  community.    In  1961,  exercising  tremendous 

foresight  and  good  planning,  ETWD  authorized  a  bond  issue  of  $1.9 million  to  finance  its  share  of  the 

construction  costs  for  the  aqueduct,  a  water  filtration  plant,  a  232  mg  reservoir,  and  expansion  of  the 

distribution system within the District. 

 

ETWD  established  itself  as  a water‐recycling pioneer  in  1963 with  the  completion  of  the Water Recycling 

Treatment Plant  in Laguna Woods.   The plant was designed  to  treat  approximately  1.5 million gallons of 

domestic wastewater  each  day.   A  small  laboratory was  situated  inside  the  plant  to  analyze wastewater 

operations. 

 

Leisure World 

In 1963, Ross Cortese, president of the Rossmoor Corporation, identified about 3,500 acres of the Moulton Ranch 

to fulfill his vision to build a retirement community and call it Leisure World.  Except for scattered dwellings 

and barns, the ranch was devoted largely to dry farming and cattle grazing.  Those who lived in the homes on 

the ranch relied on water  from deep wells and cesspools  for sanitation.    If Leisure World was  to become a 

reality, Cortese knew he had to meet the requirements for water and sanitation. 



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 18 

 

Initially,  the ETWD Directors, who were also  ranchers, didn’t  share Cortese’s vision  for a  large  residential 

development.   However, by  January 1963  the Directors  changed  their minds when  they  learned  that bond 

programs to bring MWD water into the area had boosted property tax bills to about $18 for each $100 assessed 

valuation – far higher than citrus growers or cattle ranchers could afford to pay. 

 

ETWD and Rossmoor agreed  that  the District would continue  to serve  the ranchers by providing  irrigation 

service  for agriculture. Since ETWD was not  interested  in providing domestic water service,  the Rossmoor 

Water Company was formed to serve domestic customers. 

 

El Toro Reservoir 

In 1967 the construction of the 233‐million gallon El Toro Reservoir was completed.  The reservoir served many 

important needs, including meeting high water demand during hot summer days and wildfires, and emergency 

backup in the event of a pipeline break or other interruptions in water supplies.  ETWD established a policy to 

maintain a 14‐day emergency storage reserve to meet customer demands and fire flow requirements. 

 

Constructing a Regional Sewer System 

By  1970  the  need  for  a  regional  sewer  system  to  dispose  of  treated  effluent  to  the  ocean was  becoming 

increasingly evident.  Around the same time, the California Clean Water Program was enacted which allowed 

certain public agencies to be eligible for joint federal‐state construction grants. 

 

Laguna Hills Sanitation, Inc., had been disposing of  its  treated effluent by  irrigating  the Leisure World golf 

course and by spraying vacant land. This latter option was becoming increasingly difficult as the amount of 

vacant  land decreased. Unfortunately  since Laguna Hills Sanitation,  Inc. was a private  corporation,  it was 

ineligible for federal‐state grants to provide other methods of effluent disposal.  In 1972, the District joined five 

other  public water  districts  and  the City  of  Laguna  Beach  to  form  the Aliso Water Management Agency 

(AWMA). ETWD believed that it was in the best interest of the community to form a partnership to build a 

sewage sludge treatment and disposal facility. 

 

Approximately three years later ETWD sold $6.14 million of wastewater bonds to finance the District’s share of 

the AWMA Regional Treatment Plant and an ocean outfall system. The AWMA Regional Treatment Plant is 

located near  the Laguna Niguel Regional Park  (currently known as  the South Orange County Wastewater 

Authority, SOCWA). The Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall is located in Laguna Beach.  The construction of the plant 

was complete in 1982. 

 

The Transition from Wholesale to Retail 

The Laguna Hills Utility Company, the parent company of the operating utilities, Laguna Hills Water Company 

(LHWC) and Laguna Hills Sanitation, Inc. (LHSI) approached the ETWD Board of Directors in August 1982 

with a proposal that ETWD acquire the utility operations of LHWC and LHSI. If approved, this acquisition 

would transform ETWD from a water wholesaler to a retail water company.  The Board of Directors carefully 

considered the proposal.  They concluded that the residents of the District would benefit from this transition, 

providing that the assets of the utilities could be acquired at a fair price. 

 

On September 12, 1983, ETWD  signed  the agreement  to purchase both Laguna Hills Water Company and 

Laguna Hills Sanitation, Inc. for a sum of $10.5 million. The amount would be paid with interest, in installments 

over a 30‐year period. After approximately 24 years, ETWD had become a fully integrated water, sewer and 

recycled water retail operation. 

 



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 19 

 

Water Recycling Pioneer 

After  three decades of  service, and multiple expansion projects, portions of  the Water Recycling Plant had 

reached the end of its useful life.  ETWD embarked on a reconstruction and replacement project. The new plant 

was completed in 1998 at a cost of nearly $14,000,000.  The reconstruction project renewed the useful life of the 

plant for another 30 years and brought ETWD into compliance with applicable regulatory and environmental 

requirements.  A new expanded laboratory was now equipped to perform sophisticated analysis of wastewater 

and drinking water, and the overall capacity of the plant increased to 6 million gallons per day.  In 1999 the 

Water Recycling Plant was recognized by the industry as “Plant of the Year.” 

 

Expansion Continues at El Toro Reservoir 

In an effort to expand emergency storage in south Orange County and reduce operating cost for ETWD, the 

District entered into an agreement in 2002 with neighboring water districts for joint use of the El Toro Reservoir.  

ETWD began a four phase project to expand the El Toro Reservoir capacity to 275 million gallons and enhance 

the ability of ETWD and neighboring agencies to meet their emergency storage requirements.  By increasing 

the capacity by 52 million gallons, the enlarged reservoir would provide 124.5 million gallons to ETWD, 137.5 

million gallons to Santa Margarita Water District and 13 million gallons to Moulton Niguel Water District.  The 

expanded reservoir would serve more  than 300,000 customers  in  the cities of Laguna Woods, Laguna Hills, 

Lake Forest, Mission Viejo, Aliso Viejo, Laguna Niguel, Dana Point, Rancho Santa Margarita, Ladera Ranch, 

Las Flores, San Juan Capistrano and San Clemente. The total water surface area expanded to approximately 20 

acres. 

 

In addition to laying 4,500 feet of pipeline to allow increased water use by the three partner agencies at once, 

the reservoir was enlarged to increase supply for regional use. The final phase of the project was to add a new 

floating cover and liner to the reservoir. The cover continues to assist ETWD in preserving the quality of the 

imported supply. 

 

Recycled Water Expansion Project 

In 2012, the District began a comprehensive multi‐phase Recycled Water Expansion Project that significantly 

increased the amount of recycled water produced for local irrigation. The project was completed in 2016 and 

greatly expanded the District’s ability to produce recycled water.  By undertaking this project, the District saves 

precious imported drinking water (potable) for household consumption and sanitary uses. 

 

The  project  constructed  tertiary  treatment  facilities  at  the  existing Water  Recycling  Plant  to  increase  the 

treatment and delivery of recycled water  for  irrigation  to approximately 1,400 acre  feet per year. That’s  the 

equivalent of covering the entire footprint of Laguna Woods Village with five inches of water or filling Angel 

Stadium  nineteen  times.      Simultaneously,  the District  built  a  new  recycled water distribution  system  for 

irrigation.   Approximately 100,000  feet or 19 miles of  recycled water pipeline was constructed beneath  the 

roadways in portions of Laguna Woods and the northwest corner of Laguna Hills.  This new distribution system 

is completely separate from the drinking water distribution system and used for irrigation only. In 2018 the 

District completed construction of the Phase II Recycled Water Distribution System Expansion Project which 

added another 5 miles of recycled water pipeline to serve additional users in the community of Laguna Woods. 

 

The  recycled water projects  improve  the environment by  reserving drinking water  resources  for use  inside 

homes and businesses, and provides environmentally responsible recycled water for outdoor use.  The tertiary 

treatment facilities at the Water Recycling Plant produce a higher quality of treated water, diminish the amount 

of treated water discharged into the ocean and help to reduce the greenhouse gases that results from pumping 

imported water into the region.   



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 20 

 

Location and Service Area Information 

The El Toro Water District is located in Southern Orange County, approximately 45 miles South of downtown 

Los Angeles.  The District encompasses the entirety of the City of Laguna Woods, and portions of the Cities of 

Aliso Viejo, Laguna Hills, Lake Forest, and Mission Viejo.  The total service area of the District is approximately 

5,430 acres or the equivalent of 8.5 square miles.  Interstate 5 bisects the District with approximately half of the 

District’s service area on each side of the Interstate.     

 

Population Information 

The  District’s  population  has  increased  slightly  since  2010,  with  a  total  increase  from  2010  to  2020  of 

approximately 104 residents, or 0.22%, to a total of 47,911 residents.     

According  to  the  2015  –  2019 American Community  Survey  five  year  estimate,  the  largest  portion  of  the 

District’s population  included Caucasians who were not of Hispanic or Latino ethnicity (66.97%).   The next 

largest racial group in the community were Asian‐Americans who comprised 19.49% of the total population 

followed by persons who were multi‐racial at 11.37% of the population.  Overall, there were more females than 

males residing in the District’s service area.  The median age of the population within the District’s service area 

was 52.4 years, with a  large component of the population over the age of 65 due to the presence of Laguna 

Woods Village, a senior living community, in the District service area.   

% Change

1990 2000 2010 2020 2010 ‐ 2020

El Toro Water District 43,786            49,796            47,807            47,911            0.22%

Orange County 2,410,556      2,846,289      3,010,232      3,175,692      5.21%

State of California 29,760,021    33,871,648    37,253,956    39,512,223    5.72%

Source: U.S. Census  Bureau; California  State  Department of Finance; Center for Demographic Research, CSUF 

Table 7. Population Data

Number Percent Number Percent

Gender Household Information

Male 21,881          45.67% Family Households 13,177          53.57%

Female 26,030          54.33% Non‐Family Households 11,423          46.43%

Total 47,911          Total Households 24,600         

Racial Composition Age Groups

White 32,086          66.97% 0 to 19 7,733             16.14%

African‐American 656                1.37% 20 to 34 7,603             15.87%

American Indian/Alaska Native 216                0.45% 35 to 59 12,447          25.98%

Asian or Pacific Islander 9,338             19.49% 60 to 74 10,387          21.68%

Other/More than One Race 5,615             11.73% 75+ 9,740             20.34%

Total Population 47,911          Total Population 47,911         

Hispanic/Latino Origin 9,285             19.38% Median Age* 52.4              

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2015‐2019 5‐Year estimates, Tables B01001, B11001, B03002 

*Interpolated value

Table 8. Population Characteristics



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 21 

 

  

The economic characteristics of District residents tend to be less than similar data for the general population of 

Orange County or the State of California.  This is primarily the result of the inclusion of Laguna Woods within 

the service area of the District, since most residents in Laguna Woods are retired and do not have salary income.  

The District’s Median Housing Value, Per Capita Income, and Median Household Income are all less than the 

values for Orange County or the State of California.  Only the Median Gross Rent is more than the values for 

the County or  State.   The District’s  economic  indicators have  improved  in  each of  the  last  four American 

Community Survey periods, as indicated by the “Comparison of Economic Characteristics” table below which 

includes data from the 2012‐2016 American Community Survey (ACS) to the 2015‐2019 ACS.     

 

   
Median Median 

Median Housing Per Capita Household

Gross Rent* Value* Income* Income*

El Toro Water District $2,060 $430,793 $36,549 $67,605

Orange County 1,929               725,100          $41,514 $90,234

State of California 1,614               523,000          $36,955 $75,235

Change in Economic Characteristics

ACS Years 2012‐2016 $1,753 $321,335 $32,539 $57,156

ACS Years 2013‐2017 $1,856 $355,093 $33,513 $60,390

ACS Years 2014‐2018 $1,959 $410,421 $34,849 $63,762

ACS Years 2015‐2019 $2,060 $430,793 $36,549 $67,605

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2015‐2019 5‐Year estimates, Tables B19001, B25063, B250

*Interpolated value

Table 9. Comparison of Economic Characteristics of District Residents



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 22 

 

Educational, Employment, and Income Information 

The 2015 – 2019 American Community Survey reported that approximately 46% of District residents age 25 or 

older have attained a bachelors or graduate degree,  including approximately 17% who have a graduate or 

professional degree.   This is much higher than California or national averages (34% and 32.2%, respectively).  

Another 30% of residents who are age 25 or older have attended some college or attained an Associate’s degree.  

An estimated 92% of District residents age 25 or older have their high school diploma (or equivalent); this is 

also much higher than the State or National average (83.4% and 88.1% respectively).   

   

El Toro Orange State of United

Water District County California States

Less than 9th grade 3.63% 7.90% 9.20% 5.10%

9th to 12th grade, no diploma 4.52% 6.60% 7.50% 6.90%

High school graduate (includes equivalency) 16.07% 17.20% 20.50% 27.00%

Some college, no degree 20.86% 19.90% 21.10% 20.40%

Associate’s degree 9.12% 7.70% 7.80% 8.50%

Bachelor’s degree 28.82% 26.00% 21.20% 19.80%

Graduate or professional degree 16.97% 14.50% 12.80% 12.40%

Percent high school graduate or higher 91.84% 85.30% 83.40% 88.10%

Percent bachelor’s degree or higher 45.79% 40.50% 34.00% 32.20%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2015‐2019 5‐Year estimates, Table  B15003

Table 10. Education for Residents Age 25 or Older



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 23 

 

The majority of District residents who are employed work in professional or service occupations, as illustrated 

in the Occupations table below.   

 

   
El Toro  Orange State of United

Water District County California States

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting 

and mining
0.62% 0.75% 2.14% 1.80%

Construction 3.37% 6.61% 6.75% 6.60%

Manufacturing 9.88% 11.19% 8.71% 10.10%

Wholesale Trade 3.07% 3.41% 2.71% 2.60%

Retail Trade 12.62% 10.21% 10.16% 11.20%

Transportation and warehousing, and 

utilities
3.12% 3.83% 5.71% 5.40%

Information 2.28% 1.85% 2.84% 2.00%

Finance and insurance, and real estate and 

rental and leasing
11.20% 8.49% 5.83% 6.60%

Professional, scientific, and management, 

and administrative and waste 

management services

15.50% 14.15% 14.15% 11.60%

Educational services, and health care and 

social assistance
20.93% 20.56% 21.16% 23.10%

Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and 

accommodation and food services
9.64% 10.65% 10.31% 9.70%

Other Services, except public 

administration
5.31% 5.28% 5.04% 4.90%

Public administration 2.46% 3.00% 4.49% 4.60%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2015‐2019 5‐Year estimates, Table  C24030 

Table 11. Occupations



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 24 

 

Due to the composition of the population within the District’s service area, the workforce participation tends 

to be much lower than the averages for the County, State, or Nation.  This is to be expected since Laguna Woods 

comprises approximately 40% of the population in the District’s service area and almost all of the residents of 

that community are retired.  For the portion of the population in the District’s service are who do participate in 

the workforce, the unemployment rate has averaged slightly higher than the averages for Orange County or 

the United States but slightly lower than the average for California.   

 

   
2015 5‐Year 2016 5‐Year 2017 5‐Year 2018 5‐Year 2019 5‐Year

ACS ACS ACS ACS ACS

Unemployment Rate

El Toro Water District 6.0% 5.1% 4.6% 4.2% 4.0%

Orange County 5.0% 4.4% 3.8% 3.3% 3.0%

State of California 6.2% 5.5% 4.8% 4.2% 3.8%

United States 5.2% 4.7% 4.1% 3.7% 3.4%

Workforce Participation Rate

El Toro Water District 52.0% 52.2% 52.4% 52.8% 53.1%

Orange County 66.0% 65.9% 65.7% 65.6% 65.6%

State of California 63.6% 63.4% 63.5% 63.5% 63.7%

United States 63.3% 63.5% 63.4% 62.9% 63.4%

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 5‐Year American Community Survey Estimates, Table  B23025

Table 12. Unemployment & Workforce Participation Rate Comparison



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 25 

 

The composition of the population within the District service area also impacts the estimated household income 

within  the District’s  service area.   According  to  the 2015 – 2019 American Community Survey,  the median 

household income in the District was $67,605, $7,630 (10.14%) less than the median for California but $4,762 

(7.58%) higher than the national median.  An estimated 10.27% of District households have incomes that exceeds 

$200,000 per year; in comparison only 7.7% of United States households had this level of income in the 2015‐

2019 American Community Survey.    

 

 

El Toro Orange State of United

Water District* County California States

Under $10,000 6.43% 4.20% 4.80% 6.00%

$10,000 to $14,999 3.73% 2.70% 4.10% 4.30%

$15,000 to $24,999 9.14% 5.60% 7.50% 8.90%

$25,000 to $34,999 7.32% 6.00% 7.50% 8.90%

$35,000 to $49,999 11.82% 8.80% 10.50% 1.30%

$50,000 to $74,999 16.42% 14.60% 15.50% 17.20%

$75,000 to $99,999 11.71% 12.80% 12.40% 12.70%

$100,000 to $149,999 14.83% 18.60% 16.60% 15.10%

$150,000 to $199,999 8.33% 11.10% 8.90% 6.80%

$200,000 or more 10.27% 15.50% 12.20% 7.70%

Median Household Income* $67,605  $90,234  $75,235  $62,843 

Mean Household Income* $84,000  $122,488  $106,916  $88,607 

Per Capita Income* $36,549  $41,514  $36,955  $34,103 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 2015‐2019 5‐Year estimates, Table  B19001

*Interpolated value

Table 13. Household Income



 

District Profile  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 26 

 

Summary of the District 

The  District  supplies  residents with  potable water,  recycled water  for  irrigation  purposes,  and  provides 

wastewater collection and treatment services.  Information about District and its services can be found below. 

 

General Information 

Date of Original Incorporation 

Date of Integration into Retail Utility Operation 

September, 1960 

September 12, 1983 

Form of Government  California Special District 

   

   

Location and Size Information 

Geographic Location  45 Miles South of Downtown Los Angeles 

Total Area of Incorporation  8.5 square miles 

   

Facility Information 

Main Office and Warehouse Complex  1 

Wastewater Treatment Plants  1 

Water Reservoirs  6 

Water Pump Stations  8 

Wastewater Lift Stations  11 

   

Enterprise Statistics 

Water System   

   Miles of Water Main  170 

   Service Connections  9,965 

   Annual Potable Water Imports (MG*)  2,371 

   

Sewer System   

   Miles of Wastewater Collection Main  114 

   Service Connections  9,965 

   Annual Treated Sewage (MG*)  1,332 

   

Recycled Water System   

   Miles of Recycled Water Main  26 

   Service Connections  275 

   Annual Recycled Water  Production (MG*)  463.89 

     *Millions of Gallons 



Water Enterprise Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 27 

 

WATER SYSTEM 

The mission of the Water Enterprise is to deliver potable water to customers for use in their daily living and for 

irrigation purposes.  The Water Enterprise accomplishes this mission by procuring treated water directly from 

the Municipal Water District  of Orange County  (MWDOC)  through  the Allen‐McCulloch Pipeline  and  by 

partnering with the Irvine Ranch Water District in the Baker Water Treatment Plant which procures untreated 

water  from MWDOC,  treats  the water,  and  distributes  it  to  the  participating  agencies.    Potable water  is 

distributed to District customers through significant infrastructure assets that the District has invested in over 

many years, including the R6 Reservoir, 5 other smaller water reservoirs or storage facilities, 8 water pump 

stations, 170 miles of water main, and approximately 9,500 water service lines.       

 

Budget Analysis 

As illustrated in Table 13 on the following page, expenses in the 2021‐2022 Budget equal $13,757,827, an increase 

of $506,424 or 3.8% from the $13,251,403 in expenses included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  Revenues attributed to 

the Water System are projected to equal $13,792,961 in the 2021‐2022 Budget, an increase of $447,487 or 3.4% 

from the $13,345,474 in revenues included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  As a result of the revenues and expenses 

included in the 2021‐2022 Budget, the Water Enterprise is projected to make a positive contribution of $35,134 

to the Change in Net Position for the District in 2021‐2022. 

 

The major expenses for the Water System budget include purchasing the potable water that is distributed to 

customers, compensating the portion of the District’s workforce allocated to the Water System, and operating 

and maintaining the water distribution system.  Combined, these three expenses comprise 90.6% of the total 

expenses of the Water Enterprise in the 2021‐2022 Budget.  

 



Water Enterprise Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020‐2021 2020‐2021

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected 2021‐2022

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Commodity Charge (Unrestricted) 8,756,773      7,946,712      8,166,269      8,364,677      4,672,846      8,353,901      8,417,431     

Service Charges (Readiness to  Serve) 3,040,449      3,339,049      3,695,636      3,824,187      1,862,422      3,795,854      4,229,130     

Restricted Revenues (Conservation) 100,000          100,000          100,000          100,000          50,000            100,000          200,000         

Non‐Operating Revenues

Property Taxes 430,109          466,291          479,696          484,610          216,867          498,867          501,400         

Site Leases 188,183          204,160          242,187          235,000          106,045          219,607          235,000         

Reimbursements from Others 111,602          127,226          90,808            112,000          ‐                       109,000          110,000         

Other Income Sources 189,060          420,565          298,382          225,000          29,605            88,480            100,000         

Total Revenues 12,816,176    12,604,003    13,072,978    13,345,474    6,937,785      13,165,709    13,792,961   

Expenses

Personnel Expenses 3,184,130      3,249,554      3,607,471      3,435,759      1,620,837      3,393,729      3,613,160     

Source of Supply 8,200,224      7,563,680      7,996,623      8,001,449      4,378,081      8,030,582      8,259,767     

Water Treatment 49,577            45,177            49,773            35,341            20,492            39,234            39,500           

Pumping ‐ Water 261,321          230,450          231,162          263,623          142,466          264,672          306,500         

Transmission & Distribution ‐ Water 611,578          623,322          563,020          563,547          190,653          514,810          592,300         

Customer Accounts 51                    ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       4,000             

Operations Support 296,519          97,581            136,685          133,165          76,375            123,353          97,280           

Fleet Maintenance 95,563            109,144          116,116          114,270          51,819            51,819            102,560         

Administration 81,419            76,362            96,039            82,320            52,119            95,359            83,280           

Information Technology 106,803          108,210          104,680          102,400          42,726            94,966            124,000         

Indirect Costs 491,876          539,847          548,892          519,529          230,983          470,580          535,480         

Total Expenses 13,379,061    12,643,328    13,450,460    13,251,403    6,806,551      13,079,104    13,757,827   

Contribution to Change in Net Position (562,885)        (39,324)           (377,482)        94,071            131,233          86,605            35,134           

1. This analysis is basically a water system cash flow  analysis and therefore excludes Water Capital Charges, Depreciation, Amortization,

OPEB expense, retiree health expense, and interest expense

 Table 13. Water System Enterprise Financial Summary



Water Enterprise Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 29 

 

WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

The mission  of  the Wastewater  System  is  to  collect wastewater  from District  customers  through  service 

connections, transmit the wastewater to the Water Recycling Plant using lift stations and sewer mains, treat the 

wastewater,  and  then  send  the  treated water  to  the  recycled water  treatment  facilities  or  dispose  of  the 

remaining  effluent  or  solids.    To  accomplish  this  mission,  the Wastewater  System  has  acquired  and/or 

constructed  significant  infrastructure  assets,  including  the Wastewater Treatment Plant,  11 wastewater  lift 

stations, and 114 miles of sewer main.  The Wastewater System treats a daily average of 3.7 million gallons of 

wastewater every day.         

 

Budget Analysis 

As illustrated in Table 14 below, expenses in the 2021‐2022 Budget equal $8,377,888, an increase of $332,153 or 

4.1% from the $8,045,735 in expenses included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  Revenues attributed to the Wastewater 

System are projected  to equal $8,826,437  in  the 2021‐2022 Budget, an  increase of $354,327 or 4.2%  from  the 

$8,472,110 in revenues included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  As a result of the revenues and expenses included in 

the  2021‐2022 Budget,  the Water Enterprise  is projected  to make  a positive  contribution of $448,549  to  the 

Change in Net Position for the District in 2021‐2022. 

 

The major  expenses  for  the Wastewater  System budget  include  compensating  the portion of  the District’s 

workforce allocated to the Wastewater System, sending the remaining effluent and solids to the South Orange 

County Wastewater Authority for final treatment and disposal, and operating and maintaining the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant.   Combined,  these  three expenses  comprise 79.4% of  the  total expenses of  the Wastewater 

System in the 2021‐2022 Budget. 

2020‐2021 2020‐2021 2021‐2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected Proposed

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Service Charges (Readiness to  Serve) 7,547,171        7,698,022        7,705,617        7,775,000        3,833,491        7,608,891        8,237,537       

Non‐Operating Revenues

Property Taxes 423,350            465,279            474,652            484,610            281,927            563,927            501,400           

Other Income Sources 177,635            1,230,556        317,103            212,500            29,605              75,980              87,500             

Total Revenues 8,148,156        9,393,857        8,497,372        8,472,110        4,145,023        8,248,798        8,826,437       

Expenses

Personnel Expenses 4,139,369        4,224,420        4,201,285        4,466,486        2,107,088        4,411,847        4,697,108       

Treatment Plant 871,379            913,465            903,078            886,749            499,256            990,168            959,500           

Outside Treatment 924,472            948,466            951,598            963,500            495,933            1,008,387        992,000           

Pumping ‐ Sewer 299,012            325,371            322,134            305,835            137,945            310,915            324,800           

Transmission & Distribution ‐ Sewer 198,819            218,817            128,725            185,975            87,989              131,045            179,100           

Operations Support 385,475            126,855            160,420            173,115            99,288              160,359            126,464           

Fleet Maintenance 124,231            141,887            136,278            148,551            67,365              67,365              133,328           

Administration 105,844            99,271              112,715            107,016            67,755              123,967            108,264           

Information Technology 138,843            140,673            122,857            133,120            55,544              123,456            161,200           

Indirect Costs 639,439            701,802            644,204            675,388            300,277            611,753            696,124           

Total Expenses 7,826,885        7,841,026        7,683,293        8,045,735        3,918,441        7,939,264        8,377,888       

Contribution to Change in Net Position 321,271            1,552,831        814,079            426,375            226,581            309,534            448,549           

Table 14. Wastewater System Financial Summary



Recycled Water System Summary  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 30 

 

RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM 

The mission of  the Recycled Water System  is  to  further  treat pre‐treated wastewater  from  the wastewater 

treatment process until the water meets regulatory standards so that it can be used for irrigation purposes and 

then to distribute the recycled water to customers to use in irrigation.  To accomplish this mission, the Recycled 

Water  System  has  acquired  and/or  constructed  significant  infrastructure  assets,  including  Tertiary Water 

Treatment facilities and 25 miles of recycled water distribution main.  The Recycled Water System produces a 

daily average of 1.3 million gallons every day.         

 

Budget Analysis 

As illustrated in Table 15 below, expenses in the 2021‐2022 Budget equal $1,219,652, an increase of $50,663 or 

4.3% from the $1,168,989 in expenses included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  Revenues attributed to the Recycled 

Water System are projected to equal $2,297,322 in the 2021‐2022 Budget, an increase of $201,988 or 9.6% from 

the $2,095,334 in revenues included in the 2020‐2021 Budget.  As a result of the revenues and expenses included 

in the 2021‐2022 Budget, the Recycled Water System is projected to make a positive contribution of $1,077,670 

to the Change in Net Position for the District in 2021‐2022. 

The major expenses for the Recycled Water System budget include compensating the portion of the District’s 

workforce allocated to Recycled Water and operating and maintaining the Tertiary Treatment facilities located 

at  the Wastewater Treatment Plant.   Combined,  these expenses comprise 83.6% of  the  total expenses of  the 

Recycled water System in the 2021‐2022 Budget. 

2020‐2021 2020‐2021 2021‐2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 YTD Projected Proposed

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget

Revenues

Operating Revenues

Commodity Charge 1,614,242        1,309,055        1,355,119        1,663,847        1,016,289        1,557,489        1,811,222       

Service Charges (Readiness to  Serve) 205,014            226,645            258,409            336,207            144,736            305,698            387,900           

Non‐Operating Revenues

Property Taxes 74,214              81,006              82,987              84,280              43,373              88,373              87,200             

Other Income Sources 11,000              11,000              11,000              11,000              ‐                         11,000              11,000             

Total Revenues 1,904,470        1,627,706        1,707,515        2,095,334        1,204,398        1,962,560        2,297,322       

Expenses

Personnel Expenses 636,826            649,911            544,347            687,152            324,167            678,746            722,632           

Tertiary Treatment Plant 244,086            225,502            233,079            285,500            151,818            251,604            297,500           

Transmission & Distribution 4,850                3,157                ‐                         6,000                1,775                1,775                11,000             

Operations Support 59,304              19,516              18,455              26,633              15,275              24,671              19,456             

Fleet Maintenance 19,113              21,829              15,677              22,854              10,364              10,364              20,512             

Administration 16,284              15,272              12,967              16,464              10,424              19,072              16,656             

Information Technology 21,361              21,642              14,133              20,480              8,545                18,993              24,800             

Indirect Costs 98,375              107,969            74,109              103,906            46,197              94,116              107,096           

Total Expenses 1,100,198        1,064,799        912,767            1,168,989        568,565            1,099,340        1,219,652       

Contribution to Change in Net Position 804,272            562,907            794,748            926,345            635,833            863,220            1,077,670       

1. This analysis is basically a recycled water system operations cash flow  analysis and therefore excludes Water Capital Charges,

Depreciation, Amortization, OPEB expense, retiree health expense, and interest expense.

Table 15. Recycled Water System Financial Summary



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 31 

 

Personnel Analysis 

The mission of  the District  is  to provide high quality services  to  its customers and one of  the cornerstones 

needed to achieve this mission is sufficient numbers of high quality staff.  This section includes an analysis of 

the District’s personnel costs which  is a critical component  to understanding  the District’s  fiscal operations 

because these costs comprise the largest expense category of the District.   

 

Number of Employees 

Personnel  costs are attributable  to  the actual number of employees employed by  the District.   The District 

converts  the number of  full‐time and part‐time employees  to  full‐time equivalency  to accurately  reflect  the 

number of employees on the payroll.  Full‐time equivalency is equal to 2,080 hours for all employees.   

 

The 2021‐2022 Compensation Plan authorizes a total of 61 full‐time positions and 5 elected officials.  The total 

number of full‐time equivalent positions authorized in the 2021‐2022 Compensation Plan is also equal to 61.0 

as the District is not planning to employ any part‐time positions in 2021‐2022.    

 

The  total  budgeted  cost  for  the District’s workforce  in  2021‐2022  is  $9,032,182, with  salaries  of  $6,540,955 

comprising 72.4% of total costs and benefits of $2,491,227 comprising the remaining 27.6% of total personnel 

costs.  Fringe benefit costs have been increasing faster than salary costs and are projected to comprise a greater 

portion of total personnel costs in the future.   In 2021‐2022, health insurance premiums comprise the largest 

portion of fringe benefit costs followed by the District’s contributions to the deferred compensation plans.   

 

Table 16 on the following page summarizes District personnel expenses and provides information about the 

underlying causes of the increase in costs.     

 
   



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020/2021     

Budget

2020/2021     

Projected

Proposed   

2021/2022     

Budget

Delta         

Budget to     

Budget

% Change 

Budget to 

Budget

Salaries 6,185,467 6,147,567 6,540,955 355,488 5.7%

Benefits (Less Employee Paid) 2,262,180 2,195,000 2,366,177 103,997 4.6%

Workers Compensation 141,750 113,051 125,050 (16,700) ‐11.8%

Total Labor Cost 8,589,397 8,455,618 9,032,182 442,786 5.2%

LABOR BUDGET BREAKDOWN

2020/2021     

Budget

Proposed 

2021/2022 

Budget

Delta           

Budget to       

Budget

% Change 

Budget to 

Budget

Portion of 

Budget 

Increase

Salary

2020/21 Merit Increase                129,007                 129,007 

2021/22 Merit Increase                107,034                 107,034 

Overtime & Standby Pay                193,000                 210,000                   17,000 

2020/21 & 2021/22 Personnel Changes                  34,693                   75,640                   40,947 

Vacation Payout                  40,000                 105,000                   65,000 

Car Allowance, Cell Phone Stipend Changes                  57,600                   54,000                    (3,600)

Total Budgeted Salary Changes                355,388  5.75% 80.28%

Benefits

Health Insurance Premiums (Employer Only)             1,031,478              1,123,254                   91,776 

401k/457B Employer Contributions                990,110              1,000,059                     9,949 

All Other Benefit Changes                240,591                 242,864                     2,273 

Total Budgeted Salary Changes                103,998  4.60% 23.49%

Workers Compensation                141,750                 125,050                  (16,700) ‐11.78% ‐3.77%

Overall Total Changes                442,686 

Budgeted Merit Pool

Merit 3.0%

CPI 1.7%

Total 4.7%

Table 16.  2021‐2022 Personnel Expense Summary 



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 33 

 

Analysis of Historical Personnel Costs 

Salary  costs  have  increased 

steadily  since  2011,  largely  as  a 

result  of  cost  of  living  and merit 

salary  increases  but  also  to  some 

extent  by  the  addition  of  some 

positions  to  the  authorized 

workforce.    Salary  costs  equaled 

$4.3 million in fiscal year 2011 but 

have  since  increased  to  slightly 

more  than  $6 million  during  the 

2019‐2020 fiscal year.   

 

Health  insurance  costs  have  also 

increased  since  2011,  from 

approximately $935,000 in fiscal year 2011 to $1.3 million in fiscal year 2019‐2020.  The health insurance premium 

cost per employee has increased each year since 2011 in conjunction with the overall trends in the National and State 

economies.  The continued increase in health insurance cost per employee will be a challenge for the District in the 

future as  this benefit continues  to 

require  a  larger  portion  of  the 

District’s  financial  resources.    In 

addition, as the premium expenses 

increases,  the  impact  on  the 

District’s  retiree  health  insurance 

costs will also increase.    

 

Another  significant  benefit 

provided  by  the  District  are 

contributions  to  deferred 

compensation  plans,  including  a 

401(k) Plan and a 457(b) Plan.  The 

District  contributes  9%  into  the 

401(k) plan for every employee to provide a retirement benefit.  In addition, to incentivize employees to save toward 

their retirement, the District also matches employee contributions into one of the plans with a 75% match of up to 

10% of the employee’s salary.  So if an employee contributes 10% of their salary into one of the plans, they would 

receive the District’s automatic 9% 

contribution plus a 7.5% match of 

the  employee  contribution,  for  a 

total of 16.5% contributed  toward 

the  employee’s  retirement.    The 

cost for the District’s contributions 

to  the  Deferred  Compensation 

plans has  increased steadily  since 

2011,  in  conjunction  with  the 

increase  in  salaries  that  has 

occurred.  In  2011,  the  District’s 

contribution equaled $446,400 but 

in 2020 this amount was $951,700.   

 

 



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 34 

 

Presented below in Table 17 are the authorized positions for the District organized into the Departments in which 

they are assigned.    

 

   

Positions Positions

Department Department

Administrative Services Operations

General Manager 1 Operations Superintendent 1

Human Resources Manager 1 Compliance Program Coordinator 1

Public Relations / EP Admin 1 Total 2

Exec.Assistant to BOD & GM 1

Office Assistant 1 Transmission & Distribution Crew

Total 5 Foreman 1

Crew  Chief 2

Information Systems Maintenance Worker III 1

Information Technology Manager 1 Maintenance Worker ll 2

Total 1 Maintenance Worker I 3

Total 9

Accounting

Chief Financial Officer 1

Accountant / Sr Accountant 2 Pumping Crew

Supervisor Accounting 1 Foreman 1

                     Total 4 Crew Chief 2

Maintenance Worker III 2

Purchasing/Receiving Maintenance Worker II 1

Purchasing Agent 1 Maintenance Worker I 2

Total 1 Total 8

Customer Service ‐ Office Treatment Plant

C.S / Billing Supervisor 1 Chief Plant Operator 1

C.S. Office Rep. I 2 Truck Driver 2

Billing Clerk II 1 Waste Water Operator III 4

Total 4 Waste Water Operator II 1

Waste Water Operator I 0

Customer Service ‐ Field Lab Supervisor 1

Crew Chief 1 Lab Technician I 1

C.S. Field Rep. II 1 Total 10

C.S. Field Rep. I 1

Total 3

Collections & Transmissions

Engineering Industrial Waste Inspector 1

Principal Engineer 1 Crew Chief 1

Project Engineer 1 Coll. Maintenance Worker III 1

Engineer Associate 1 Coll. Maintenance Worker II 0

Inspector 1 Coll. Maintenance Worker I 3

Cross Connection Control Prog Supv 1 Total 6

Total 5

Automotive

Electrical Senior Mechanic 1

Electrical Sys/SCADA Supv 1 Total 1

Electrical Systems / SCADA Technician III 1

Total 2

Total Positions 61

Table 17. Organization Chart and Authorized Positions, 2021 ‐ 2022



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 35 

 

The District’s Compensation Plan  includes a salary grade schedule  for both non‐exempt and exempt employees.  

Presented below and on the following page in Table 18 is the Compensation Plan for non‐exempt employees for the 

2021‐2022 Budget.  Salary grades that do not have any positions assigned to them are not displayed.   

Includes CPI Increase of 1.7%

Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

Salary Grade 1

Intern $2,686 $3,645 $2,732 $3,707

Salary Grade 2 $3,258 $4,432 $3,313 $4,507

Salary Grade 3 $3,651 $4,965 $3,713 $5,050

Salary Grade 4 $3,759 $5,113 $3,822 $5,200

Salary Grade 5 $3,874 $5,267 $3,940 $5,356

Office Assistant

Customer Service Office Representative I

Billing Clerk I

Salary Grade 6 $3,991 $5,426 $4,059 $5,518

Customer Service Field Representative I

Salary Grade 7 $4,106 $5,587 $4,176 $5,682

Salary Grade 8 $4,232 $5,756 $4,304 $5,854

Customer Service Office Representative II

Administrative Assistant

Billing Clerk II

Salary Grade 9 $4,357 $5,928 $4,431 $6,029

Customer Service Office Representative Senior

Billing Clerk Senior

Salary Grade 10 $4,505 $6,105 $4,581 $6,209

Customer Service Field Representative II

Collection Maintenance Worker I

Maintenance Worker I

Operator in Training

Salary Grade 11 $4,626 $6,289 $4,704 $6,396

Billing Specialist

Salary Grade 12 $4,764 $6,479 $4,845 $6,589

Laboratory Technician I

Salary Grade 13 $4,906 $6,671 $4,989 $6,784

Mechanic

Waste Water Plant Operator I

Salary Grade 14 $5,054 $6,874 $5,140 $6,991

Administrative Assistant Senior

Accountant / Insurance Administrator

Salary Grade 15 $5,205 $7,080 $5,294 $7,200

Collections Worker II

Maintenance Worker II

Monthly Salary Monthly Salary

FY 2020/2021 FY 2021/2022

Table 18. Compensation Plan ‐ Salary Range Schedule ‐ Non‐Exempt

Effective Fiscal Year 2021/2022 



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 36 

 

 

Includes CPI Increase of 1.7%

Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

(continued)

Salary Grade 16 $5,361 $7,291 $5,452 $7,415

Customer Service Field Representative III

Compliance Regulatory Coordinator I

Salary Grade 17 $5,522 $7,509 $5,616 $7,637

Laboratory Technician II

Salary Grade 18 $5,687 $7,736 $5,783 $7,867

Senior Accountant / Payroll

Tractor ‐ Trailer ‐ Tanker Driver

Waste Water Plant Operator II

Inspector

Engineering Associate

Maintenance Worker III

Collection Maintenance Worker III

Salary Grade 20 $6,040 $8,214 $6,142 $8,353

Compliance Regulatory Coordinator II

Salary Grade 21 $6,220 $8,459 $6,326 $8,603

Executive Assistant to General Manager & Board

Senior Mechanic

Salary Grade 22 $6,408 $8,714 $6,517 $8,862

Accounting Supervisor

Supervisor Billing/Office  Customer Service

Recycled Water Coordinator

Electrical Systems / SCADA Technician III

Purchasing Agent / Inventory Control

Salary Grade 23 $6,602 $8,977 $6,714 $9,130

Laboratory Technician III

Waste Water Plant Operator III

Public Relations / Emergency Preparedness Admin.

Salary Grade 24 $6,800 $9,246 $6,915 $9,403

Cross Connection Control Program Supervisor

Salary Grade 25 $6,974 $9,522 $7,093 $9,684

Crew Chief

Salary Grade 26 $7,214 $9,810 $7,337 $9,977

Accounting Manager / Auditor

Industrial Waste Inspector

Compliance Regulatory Coordinator III

Salary Grade 27 $7,428 $10,101 $7,555 $10,273

Laboratory Supervisor

Monthly Salary Monthly Salary

FY 2020/2021 FY 2021/2022

Table 18. Compensation Plan ‐ Salary Range Schedule ‐ Non‐Exempt

Effective Fiscal Year 2021/2022 



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 37 

 

 

   

Includes CPI Increase of 1.7%

Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

(continued)

Salary Grade 28 $7,649 $10,403 $7,779 $10,580

Foreman

Salary Grade 29 $7,879 $10,715 $8,013 $10,898

Salary Grade 30 $8,108 $11,026 $8,245 $11,214

SCADA Supervisor

Salary Grade 31 $8,351 $11,358 $8,493 $11,551

Salary Grade 32 $8,601 $11,698 $8,747 $11,897

Salary Grade 33 $8,859 $12,048 $9,010 $12,253

Salary Grade 34 $9,125 $12,409 $9,280 $12,620

Waste Water Chief Plant Operator

Monthly Salary Monthly Salary

FY 2020/2021 FY 2021/2022

Table 18. Compensation Plan ‐ Salary Range Schedule ‐ Non‐Exempt

Effective Fiscal Year 2021/2022 



Personnel Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 38 

 

Presented below in Table 19 is the Compensation Plan for Exempt employees.   

 

Includes CPI Increase of 1.7%

Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum

Salary Grade 40E $7,002 $9,523 $7,121 $9,684

Salary Grade 41E $7,647 $10,707 $7,777 $10,889

Customer Service Manager

Salary Grade 42E $8,106 $11,349 $8,244 $11,542

Salary Grade 43E $8,592 $12,031 $8,738 $12,235

Project Engineer

Information Technology Manager

Salary Grade 44E $9,107 $12,752 $9,262 $12,969

Salary Grade 45E $9,654 $13,517 $9,818 $13,747

Operations Superintendent

Salary Grade 46E $10,233 $14,329 $10,407 $14,572

Principal Engineer

Salary Grade 47E $10,847 $15,189 $11,032 $15,447

Manager Human Resources

Salary Grade 48E $11,498 $16,100 $11,694 $16,373

Salary Grade 49E $12,188 $17,066 $12,395 $17,356

Chief Financial Officer

Salary Grade 50E $12,920 $18,090 $13,139 $18,397

Salary Grade 51E $13,694 $19,175 $13,927 $19,501

Salary Grade 52E $14,516 $20,326 $14,762 $20,671

Assistant General Manager / Staff Engineer

Salary Grade 53E $15,387 $21,546 $15,648 $21,912

Monthly Salary Monthly Salary

FY 2020/2021 FY 2021/2022

Table 19. Compensation Plan ‐ Salary Range Schedule ‐ Exempt

Effective Fiscal Year 2021/2022 



Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 39 

 

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT & REFURBISHMENT PROGRAM 

The District has significant infrastructure and capital assets that periodically need to be replaced or refurbished in order to be able to continue to 

provide services to the District’s customers.   

Objectives   Replace and  refurbish District owned  facilities  to  improve  the ability of staff  to provide services,  including  the Main Office 

Building, the Warehouse Complex, the Wastewater Treatment Plant, and various other buildings and properties owned by the 

District. 

 Maintain high quality water facilities and mains, wastewater treatment facilities and sewer mains, and recyled water facilities 

and  mains  by  reconstructing  or  rehabilitating  these  infrastructure  assets  when  necessary.    Continuously  improve  the 

infrastructure in the District to respond to changing needs, challenges, and regulations.  

 Purchase new and replacement vehicles and equipment to support and enhance District operations.     

Overview 

The District is committed to the replacement and refurbishment of its facilities, infrastructure, and capital assets and has developed a multi‐year 

Capital Replacement and Refurbishment program to guide the replacement and refurbishment process.  The Program is updated in conjunction 

with  the  annual  budget  to  reflect  changing  conditions  and  resources.   One  of  the  primary  obligations  of  the  District  is  the  construction, 

reconstruction,  rehabilitation, and maintenance of  its  facilities,  infrastructure, and capital assets.   The  financial health of  the District  is greatly 

impacted by its ability to adequately maintain its capital assets and avoid the substantial financial and service impacts that results from deteriorated 

capital assets.  The types of capital improvements undertaken by the District include: 

 Water System Projects ‐ The maintenance and improvement of the District’s water system is an important component of the capital program.  

The capacity, structural integrity, and general condition of the reservoirs, storage facilities, pumps, water mains, and service lines are critical to 

the District’s continued ability  to supply  its customers with clean, high quality drinking water and  to provide adequate pressure  for daily 

demands and fire suppression.  Water system improvements include the construction or rehabilitation of any part of the water distribution 

system, including water mains, water main valves, water service lines, reservoirs, and storage facilities.   

 

The 2021‐2022 Budget includes one significant project for the Water System, the interior recoating of the R‐2 Reservoir for a budgeted expenses 

of $605,000 with $342,500 of the funding for the project coming from carryover funds from a prior budget year. 

 

 

   



Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 40 

 

 Wastewater  Treatment  System  Projects  ‐  The maintenance  and  improvement  of  the District’s wastewater  treatment  system  is  another 

important component of  the overall capital program.   The Wastewater system collects wastewater from residences and businesses, utilizes 

mechanical and biological processes to metabolize and remove pollutants, and then discharges the effluent (the cleaned water) to either the 

tertiary treatment facility (for recycled water) or to the Ocean Outfall pipeline where it is transported to the Pacific Ocean.   The solids that 

remain after the treatment process are transported via truck to the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) for final treatment 

and disposal.  Sanitary Sewer System Improvements include the construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of any part of the wastewater 

collection and treatment system, including sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer pumps, lift stations, and the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

The 2021‐2022 budget incorporates several significant projects, including the replacement of the emergency generator at the Aliso Creek Lift 

Station at a cost of $275,000, the installation of a Wash Press System at the Headworks for $200,000, the replacement of diffusers, pumps, and 

electrical equipment for the treatment system, and $972,000 for the SOCWA capital budget. 

 

 Recycled Water System Projects ‐ The maintenance and improvement of the District’s recycled water system is the final component of the 

capital program.  The capacity, structural integrity, and general condition of the tertiary treatment facility, recycled water mains, and service 

lines are critical to the District’s continued ability to supply its customers with high quality recycled water for irrigation purposes.  Recycled 

water system improvements include the construction or rehabilitation of any part of the distribution system, including mains, main valves, and 

service lines.   

 

There are no projects included in the 2021‐2022 Budget as the recycled water system is a newly constructed system and the revenue generated 

from the capital rate charges is being used to pay the debt service costs.   

 

   



Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 41 

 

Table 19. Five Year Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program
F.Y. 2021/22 - 2025/26

ITEM # DESCRIPTION 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 TOTAL WATER SEWER
Source of Supply / Storage Projects

1 R-2 Reservoir Interior Recoating 605,000 605,000 605,000
1 R-2 Reservoir Interior Recoating Carryover (342,500) (342,500) (342,500)
2 JRWSS Capital Budget 3,549 4,479 49,014 1,014 7,560 65,616 65,616
3 Baker WTP Replacement Fund 52,795 52,795 52,795 52,795 52,795 263,975 263,975
4 Baker Pipeline Exposure Mitigation Project 50,000 50,000 50,000
5 R-6 Chlorine & Ammonia Chemical Feed Pump Replacement 93,807 93,807 93,807
6 Replace Chlorine Generator and Reservoir Management System at R-4 369,082 369,082 369,082

Total Source of Supply  / Storage Projects 368,844 151,081 101,809 53,809 429,437 1,104,980 1,104,980 0

Pumping (Water) Projects
1 Water Stations PLC Upgrade to Control Logix 25,000 25,000 25,000 75,000 75,000

Total Pumping (Water) Projects 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 75,000 75,000 0

Pumping (Water) Equipment
1 Cherry Booster Station Pump Replacement 84,964 84,964 84,964
2 Shenandoah Booster Station Pump Replacement 84,964 84,964 84,964
3 P-4 Pump Replacement Project 50,357 50,357 50,357

Total Pumping (Water) Equipment 0 50,357 169,928 0 0 220,284 220,284 0

Pumping (Sanitation) Projects
1 Sewer Stations PLC Upgrade to Control Logix 25,000 25,000 25,000 75,000 75,000

Total Pumping (Sanitation) Projects 0 25,000 25,000 0 25,000 75,000 0 75,000

Pumping (Sanitation) Equipment
1 Aliso Creek Emergency Generator 350 KW (Unit 215) 275,000 275,000 275,000

Total Pumping (Sanitation) Equipment 275,000 0 0 0 0 275,000 0 275,000

Treatment (Sanitation) Projects
1 Wash Press System at Headworks 200,000 200,000 200,000
2 HACH WIMS Implementation 45,000 45,000 45,000
3 Secondary Clarifier # 1 Component Replacement 200,000 200,000 200,000
4 Secondary Clarifier # 4 Component Replacement 150,000 150,000 150,000
5 DAF Unit #2 Rehabilitation Project 75,000 75,000 75,000

Total Treatment (Sanitation) Projects 320,000 200,000 0 0 150,000 670,000 0 670,000



Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 42 

 

   

Table 19. Five Year Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program
F.Y. 2021/22 - 2025/26

ITEM # DESCRIPTION 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 TOTAL WATER SEWER
Treatment (Sanitation) Equipment

1 Aeration Basin Diffusers 75,000 303,877 378,877 378,877
2 Effluent Pump Station Pump Replacements 150,000 150,000 150,000
2 Effluent Pump Station Pump Replacements Carryover (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)
3 WRP Main Electrical Power Breaker Upgrades 140,000 140,000 140,000
3 WRP Main Electrical Power Breaker Upgrades Carryover (80,000) (80,000) (80,000)

Total Treatment (Sanitation) Equipment 185,000 0 0 0 303,877 488,877 0 488,877

Laboratory Equipment
1 Replacement Analyzers 15,000 15,000 7,500 7,500

Total Laboratory Equipment 15,000 0 0 0 0 15,000 7,500 7,500

Outside Treatment (SOCWA)
1 SOCWA Capital Budget 972,000 728,000 2,657,000 3,885,000 1,706,000 9,948,000 9,948,000
1 SOCWA Reserve Funding (1,311,587) (1,311,587) (1,311,587)

Total Treatment (SOCWA) 972,000 728,000 2,657,000 2,573,413 1,706,000 8,636,413 0 8,636,413

Transmission & Distribution Projects
1 AMI Implementation 0 0

Total Transmission & Distribution (Water) Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Collection Equipment
1 P332 Flexiprobe (Push Camera) Inspection System - PearPoint 25,000 25,000 25,000
2 P350 Flexiprobe (Mobile-Portable Camera) Inspection System - PearPoint 45,000 45,000 45,000

Total  Collection Equipment 0 70,000 0 0 0 70,000 0 70,000

Vehicles/Vehicle Equipment
1 Vehicle Replacement 25,000 75,000 75,000 175,000 87,500 87,500
2 Hydro Excavator 643,246 643,246 643,246
3 Warehouse Forklift 35,000 35,000 17,500 17,500
4 F-550 w/ Valve Maintenance Skid 191,442 191,442 191,442
5 Vactor 2100 Combo Machine (Replace Unit 80) 500,000 500,000 500,000
6 Boom Truck (Diesel - Regulatory Compliance) 200,000 200,000 100,000 100,000
7 Forklift WRP (Diesel - Regulatory Compliance) 95,000 95,000 47,500 47,500
8 10-Wheel Dump Truck (Unit #50, Regulatory Compliance) 175,000 175,000 87,500 87,500
9 Replace Pony Pump and Motor on Sludge Tanker 40,000 40,000 40,000

Total Vehicles /  Vehicle Equipment 195,000 950,000 0 266,442 643,246 2,054,688 1,174,688 880,000



Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 43 

 

 

Table 19. Five Year Capital Replacement & Refurbishment Program
F.Y. 2021/22 - 2025/26

ITEM # DESCRIPTION 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 TOTAL WATER SEWER
Construction/Mechanical/Electical Equipment

1 Backhoe 165,000 165,000 82,500 82,500
Total Consruction Equipment 0 165,000 0 0 0 165,000 82,500 82,500

General Building Projects
1 Main Office / Field Office HVAC Replacement & Improvement Project 0 0 0

Total General Building Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Office Equipment/Furniture
1 Server Room AC Units 21,000 21,000 10,500 10,500
2 Integrated Data Protection Appliance 45,000 45,000 22,500 22,500
3 Security Cameras 138,915 138,915 69,458 69,458

Total Office Equipment / Furniture 66,000 0 0 138,915 0 204,915 102,458 102,458

Contingency
1 Contingency 3,156 35,563 0 0 0 38,719 19,359 19,359

Total Contingency 3,156 35,563 0 0 0 38,719 19,359 19,359

Total Capital Budget 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,978,737 3,032,579 3,282,560 14,093,876 2,786,770 11,307,106

Total Capital Projects 1,662,422 1,146,862 2,808,809 2,627,222 2,335,437 10,580,752 1,189,660 9,391,093

WATER 369,633 184,971 126,809 53,809 454,437 1,189,660
SEWER 1,292,789 961,891 2,682,000 2,573,413 1,881,000 9,391,093

Total Capital Equipment 737,578 1,253,138 169,928 405,357 947,122 3,513,123 1,597,110 1,916,014

WATER 118,789 366,747 169,928 298,400 643,246 1,597,110
SEWER 618,789 886,391 0 106,958 303,877 1,916,014

Total Capital Budget 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,978,737 3,032,579 3,282,560 14,093,876 2,786,770 11,307,106

WATER 488,422 551,719 296,737 352,209 1,097,683 2,786,770
SEWER 1,911,578 1,848,281 2,682,000 2,680,371 2,184,877 11,307,106



Debt Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 44 

 

Debt Analysis 

The District  is  indebted  for  several projects  that have  occurred  in  the  last  ten years.   The District has  received 

financing  from  the  California  State Water  Boards  for  clean water  projects  including  the  reconstruction  of  the 

Northline Lift Station and two phases of construction for the recycled water system.   The District also has a loan 

outstanding to a bank for its portion of the Baker Water Treatment Plant.  One of the requirements of the State of 

California SRF loans is for the District to calculate a debt service coverage ratio each year.  Presented below in Table 

21 is the calculation of the debt service coverage for the period from 2018‐2019 through the 2021‐2022 Budget. 

   

Beginning on the following page in Table 21, are debt service schedules for each of the long term debt issuance the 

District has outstanding.   

 

   

2018‐2019 

Actual

2019‐2020 

Actual

2020‐2021 

Budget

2021‐2022 

budget

Operating Revenues $24,135,379 $24,657,613 $25,455,668 $26,623,813

Non‐Operating Revenues $2,627,873 $1,744,549 $1,658,500 $1,445,000

Operating Expenses $20,795,358 $21,377,587 $22,004,123 $22,962,367

Non‐Operating Expenses $753,794 $777,511 $756,649 $718,000

Net Revenues $5,214,100 $4,247,064 $4,353,396 $4,388,446

Total Outstanding Debt Service $2,954,413 $2,954,413 $2,954,413 $2,954,413

Debt Service Coverage 1.76 1.44 1.47 1.49

Debt Service Requirement 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

Table 21. Debt Service Coverage Ratio



Debt Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 45 

 

 

Note:  This loan from the California State Water Resources Control Board was utilized by the District to finance 

the Northline Lift Station Improvement Project.   

 
  

 

 

   

Date of Issuance October, 2010

Date of Maturity January 12, 2032

Authorized Issue $3,918,590

Interest Rates 2.70%

Principal & Interest Payment Date January 12 of each Fiscal Year

Payable to California State Water Resources Control Board

Agreement Number 10801‐550‐0

Remaining

Fiscal Year Ended Principal Service Charge Grant Charge Totals Balance

June 30, 2021 187,508              26,162                44,476                258,146              2,428,708          

June 30, 2022 192,571              24,287                41,288                258,146              2,236,137          

June 30, 2023 197,770              22,361                38,014                258,146              2,038,367          

June 30, 2024 203,110              20,384                34,652                258,146              1,835,257          

June 30, 2025 208,594              18,353                31,199                258,146              1,626,664          

June 30, 2026 214,226              16,267                27,653                258,146              1,412,438          

June 30, 2027 220,010              14,124                24,011                258,146              1,192,428          

June 30, 2028 225,950              11,924                20,271                258,146              966,477             

June 30, 2029 232,051              9,665                  16,430                258,146              734,426             

June 30, 2030 238,316              7,344                  12,485                258,146              496,110             

June 30, 2031 244,751              4,961                  8,434                  258,146              251,359             

June 30, 2032 251,359              2,514                  4,273                  258,146              ‐                         

2,616,216           178,346              303,188              3,097,750          

Debt Service Requirements

Table 22. Schedule of Long‐Term Debt Requirements

California State Revolving Fund Loan of 2010

As of June 30, 2020

Current and Future Principal and Interest Requirements



Debt Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 46 

 

 

Note:  This loan from the California State Water Resources Control Board was utilized by the District to construct 

the  tertiary  treatment  system  to  produce  high  quality  recycled water  from  treated wastewater  and  to 

construct the initial recycled water distribution system.   

 

   

Date of Issuance February, 2013

Date of Maturity January 12, 2032

Authorized Issue $28,002,378

Interest Rates 1.70%

Principal & Interest Payment Date December 31 of each Fiscal Year

Payable to California State Water Resources Control Board

Agreement Number 12821‐550‐0

Remaining

Fiscal Year Ended Principal Service Charge Grant Charge Totals Balance

June 30, 2021 1,244,824           147,467              210,667              1,602,958           19,821,900        

June 30, 2022 1,265,986           138,753              198,219              1,602,958           18,555,914        

June 30, 2023 1,287,507           129,891              185,559              1,602,958           17,268,407        

June 30, 2024 1,309,395           120,879              172,684              1,602,958           15,959,012        

June 30, 2025 1,331,655           111,713              159,590              1,602,958           14,627,357        

June 30, 2026 1,354,293           102,392              146,274              1,602,958           13,273,064        

June 30, 2027 1,377,316           92,911                132,731              1,602,958           11,895,748        

June 30, 2028 1,400,730           83,270                118,957              1,602,958           10,495,018        

June 30, 2029 1,424,543           73,465                104,950              1,602,958           9,070,475          

June 30, 2030 1,448,760           63,493                90,705                1,602,958           7,621,715          

June 30, 2031 1,473,389           53,352                76,217                1,602,958           6,148,326          

June 30, 2032 1,498,436           43,038                61,483                1,602,958           4,649,890          

June 30, 2033 1,523,910           32,549                46,499                1,602,958           3,125,980          

June 30, 2034 1,549,816           21,882                31,260                1,602,958           1,576,164          

June 30, 2035 1,576,163           11,033                15,762                1,602,958           0                        

16,416,834         1,160,626           1,658,037           19,235,496        

Table 23. Schedule of Long‐Term Debt Requirements

California State Revolving Fund Loan of 2013

As of June 30, 2020

Current and Future Principal and Interest Requirements

Debt Service Requirements



Debt Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 47 

 

 

 

Note:  In December 2013,  the District entered  into  the Baker Water Treatment Plant Agreement, along with five 

other public  entities  relating  to  the Baker  treatment plant.  In  January  2014,  the District  entered  into  an 

installment sale agreement with the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) for the purchase of the District’s 

portion of rights, title, and interest to the capacity not‐to‐exceed amount of $12,500,000. 

 

In 2017, the District refinanced IRWD’s installment sale agreement with a loan from a financial institution 

for $9,715,035 with an interest rate of 3.10%. The loan is scheduled to mature in 2036. Principal and interest 

are payable annually at the interest rate of 3.10%. 

 

   

Date of Issuance January, 2017

Date of Maturity July 1, 2036

Authorized Issue $9,715,035

Interest Rates 3.10%

Principal & Interest Payment Date January, 1 and July, 1

Payable to Sunflower State Bank of Texas

Fiscal Year January 1 Remaining

Ended Prinicpal Interest Interest Totals Balance

June 30, 2022 419,840              132,211              125,704              677,755              8,109,910          

June 30, 2023 432,855              125,704              118,994              677,553              7,677,055          

June 30, 2024 446,274              118,994              112,077              677,345              7,230,781          

June 30, 2025 460,108              112,077              104,945              677,131              6,770,673          

June 30, 2026 474,372              104,945              97,593                676,910              6,296,301          

June 30, 2027 489,077              97,593                90,012                676,682              5,807,224          

June 30, 2028 504,239              90,012                82,196                676,447              5,302,985          

June 30, 2029 519,870              82,196                74,138                676,205              4,783,115          

June 30, 2030 535,986              74,138                65,831                675,955              4,247,129          

June 30, 2031 552,602              65,831                57,265                675,698              3,694,527          

June 30, 2032 569,732              57,265                48,434                675,431              3,124,795          

June 30, 2033 587,394              48,434                39,330                675,158              2,537,401          

June 30, 2034 605,603              39,330                29,943                674,876              1,931,798          

June 30, 2035 624,377              29,943                20,265                674,585              1,307,421          

June 30, 2036 643,733              20,265                10,287                674,285              663,688             

June 30, 2037 663,688              10,287                ‐                          673,975              ‐                         

8,529,750           1,060,966           1,077,014           7,443,111          

Table 24. Schedule of Long‐Term Debt Requirements

Baker Water Treatment Plant Agreement & Refinance Loan

As of June 30, 2020

Current and Future Principal and Interest Requirements

July 1

Debt Service Requirements



Debt Analysis  El Toro Water District, Lake Forest, California  2021‐2022 Budget  Page 48 

 

 

 

Note:  This loan from the California State Water Resources Control Board was utilized by the District to complete 

the construction of the recycled water distribution system.   

Date of Issuance June, 2019

Date of Maturity July 31, 2029

Authorized Issue $4,085,782

Interest Rate 1.70%

Principal & Interest Payment Date July 1 of each year

Payable to California State Water Resources Control Board

Agreement Number D1601019‐550‐0

Remaining

Fiscal Year Ended Principal Interest Totals Balance

June 30, 2021 345,231              63,455                408,686              3,387,047          

June 30, 2022 351,466              57,580                409,046              3,035,581          

June 30, 2023 357,441              38,371                395,812              2,678,140          

June 30, 2024 363,518              33,852                397,370              2,314,622          

June 30, 2025 369,698              29,258                398,955              1,944,925          

June 30, 2026 375,982              24,584                400,567              1,568,942          

June 30, 2027 382,374              19,832                402,206              1,186,568          

June 30, 2028 388,874              14,999                403,873              797,694             

June 30, 2029 395,485              10,083                405,568              402,209             

June 30, 2030 402,209              5,084                  407,293              ‐                         

3,732,279           297,097              4,029,376          

Table 25. Schedule of Long‐Term Debt Requirements

California State Revolving Fund Loan of 2018

As of June 30, 2020

Current and Future Principal and Interest Requirements

Debt Service Requirements



 

-98- 

Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 1 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 3-22-18 
Revision   2 

 
These Practices and Procedures were created to comply with regulations issued 
by the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) Red Flag Rule (Rule). The regulations 
require that creditors implement written programs which provide for detection of 
and response to specific activities (“Red Flags”) that could be related to identity 
theft. 

 

OVERVIEW 
 

El Toro Water District’s (“ETWD”) Identity Theft Prevention Program is tailored 

to the size, complexity and nature of ETWD’s operations.  Any Customer 

information collected or maintained by ETWD is covered by this Rule. 

The FTC regulations require the Program: 

A. Identify relevant warning signs (Red Flags) including patterns, practices or 

specific activities that are indicative of identity theft. 

B. Identify ways to detect Program warning signs. 

C. Provide for appropriate responses to warning signs to prevent or mitigate 

identity theft. 

D. Provide for annual review of new and changing risks. 

E. Record and monitor detected warning signs. 

F. Provide for Program administration and oversight. 

DESIGNATION OF AUTHORITY 

 
          The Board of Directors of ETWD has designated the authority to develop, 
oversee, implement and administer the Program to the General Manager. 
 
 
Approved by Resolution No: 17-3-3                              Date:  March 28, 2017      

Superseded by Resolution No. 18-3-1                           Date:  March 22, 2018         
               



 

-99- 

Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 2 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2  

 

PRACTICES AND PROCEDURE 
 

A. Rule definitions  

 
1. “Red Flag” is a pattern, practice or specific activity that indicates the 

possibility of Identity Theft. 

2. “Identity Theft” is fraud committed using the identifying information of 

another person or business. 

3. “Identifying information” includes: name, address, telephone number, 

unique identification number, internet address or routing code used alone 

or combined to identify a specific person or business. 

B. Identification of Red Flags 
 

To identify billed account warning signs ETWD must consider the methods it 
provides to: open, access, make payments on, change and close accounts. 
ETWD must also consider its previous experiences with Identity Theft. 

 

C. Summary of the Red Flag categories 
 

Red flags are warning signs that signal potential identity theft. 
 
1. Presentation of suspicious documents. 

2. Presentation of suspicious identifying information. 

3. Unusual use of an account. 

4. Suspicious activity related to an account. 

5. Identity theft notice from customers, victims of identity theft or law 

enforcement authorities. 

 
 
  

 
 



 

-100- 

 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 3 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of Directors 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
 

D. Details of the Red Flag categories 
 

1. Presentation of suspicious documents: 

a. Identification document appear to be altered, forged or not 

authentic. 

b. Document photograph is not consistent with the customer’s 

physical appearance. 

c. Other information document is not consistent with existing customer 

information (signature on check appears forged). 

d. ETWD forms appear to be altered or forged. 

2. Presentation of unusual identifying information: 

a. Information presented is inconsistent with other information 

provided. 

b. Information presented is inconsistent with other sources of 

information. 

c. Information presented is the same as information shown on other 

fraudulent ETWD forms. 

d. Information presented is consistent with fraudulent activity 

(invalid phone number or fictitious billing address). 

e. Address or phone number presented is the same as that of 

another person or business. 

f. Refusal to provide complete identifying information on an ETWD 

form when reminded to do so. 

g. Identifying information not consistent with information on file. 

 
 



 

-101- 

 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 4 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
 

3. Unusual use of an account or other suspicious account activity. 

a. Person other than the customer of record requests information or 

asks to make changes to an account. 

b. Requested account address change followed by a request to 

change the customer of record. 

c. Payments stop on an otherwise consistently up-to-date account. 

d. Mail sent to customer of record is repeatedly returned as 

undeliverable. 

e. Unauthorized access to or use of customer account information. 

f. ETWD staff member requests access to or information about an 

account and the request is inconsistent with normal business 

practice (fails the “need to know” test). 

g. A customer notifies ETWD of the following: 

 Customer is not receiving ETWD bills or forms. 

 Unauthorized changes to an account. 

 Fraudulent activity on the customer’s bank account or credit card. 

4. ETWD notified by customer, identity theft victim or a member of law 

enforcement that an account has been opened by a person engaging in 

identity theft. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

-102- 

 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 5 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
 

E. Detecting, preventing and mitigating identity theft 

When warning signs are detected, staff must respond depending upon the 
degree of risk posed: 
 
1. Continue to monitor account. 
2. Contact the customer. 
3. Create or change passwords. 
4. Refuse to open a new account, change an existing account or close an 

account until the customer appears in person with acceptable 
identification. 

5. Close an account. 
6. Reopen an account with a new number. 
7. Ask supervisor for determination of the appropriate step(s) to take. 
8. Notify law enforcement. 
9. Determine that no response is warranted under the particular 

circumstances. 
10. Require additional identifying documents or information. 
11. Require the caller to appear in person with proper identification. 
12. All instances of identifying and responding to warning signs are attached to 

the customer’s account in the form of a Red Flag note.  
 

F. Protect customer identifying information 

Internal operating procedures: 
 
1. Ensure website is secure or provide clear notice that it is not. 
2. Ensure complete and secure destruction of paper documents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

-103- 

 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 6 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
 

3. Ensure computers are password protected and computer screens lock 
after a set period of time.  

4. Ensure customer information documents are stored in secure areas. 
5. Ensure network protection is current. 
6. Require and keep only necessary customer information. 
7. Access to customer information is based on the staff member duties. 
8. In order to access information online, customers must enroll using their 

ETWD account number and information already associated with their 
ETWD account including one of the following: phone number, Tax ID or 
last four digits of the Social Security number associated with the account.  
They must create a unique online account user identification name and 
password and must associate the online account with a personal email 
address. 

9. Continually look for ways to reduce the amount customer information 
documents. 

10. Ensure service providers that receive and process customer information 
have programs in place to detect and prevent identity theft. 
 

G. Examples of detecting, preventing and mitigating Identity Theft 

1. Refusal to provide required information. 

a. When establishing, making changes to, or closing an account the 

customer will not provide the required information. 

b. Response: Do not respond to the request.  Ask the customer to 

appear in person and provide identification. 

2. Altered documents. 

a. Staff is presented with documents that appear altered or 

inconsistent with the information provided by the customer. 

b. Response: Do not establish, make changes to, accept payment or 

close the account until the customer’s identity has been confirmed. 

 

 



 

-104- 

 
 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
 EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 7 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 
 

 
 

3. Inquiries. 

a. Someone other than the customer of record asks for information 

about a customer’s account or asks to make changes to the 

information on an account. 

b. Response: Inform the person that only the customer of record has 

accesses to the account information. Do not make changes to or 

provide any information about the account with one exception: if the 

service on the account has been interrupted for non-payment, staff 

may provide the payment amount needed for reconnection of 

service. 

4. ETWD staff requests customer information: 

a. Unauthorized staff may submit requests for customer information.  

b. Response: All requests by unauthorized staff for access to customer 

information are approved by the department supervisor. 

5. Unauthorized activity notification. 

a. Customer alerts ETWD about fraudulent activity related to their 

ETWD account, bank account or credit card. 

b. Response: Verify the customer’s identity and notify the department 

supervisor immediately. Take the appropriate actions to correct the 

account which may include: 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

-105- 

 
 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 8 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board of 
Directors 

 
Date: 
3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
 
 

i. Assisting the customer with deactivation of their payment 

method.  

ii. Issuing a service order to connect or disconnect services. 

iii.       Updating information on the customer’s account. 

iv.       Updating the mailing address on the customer’s account. 

v. Updating account Red Flag notes. 

vi. Adding or changing an account password. 

vii. Notifying and working with law enforcement officials. 

viii. Notifying and working with third party service providers. 

6. Notification of active Identity Theft. 

a. Receiving notification that the ETWD account has been established 

by a person engaged in identity theft. 

b. Response: These issues should be reviewed by the department 

supervisor immediately. The claim must be investigated, and 

appropriate action must be taken to resolve the issue as quickly as 

possible.  

H. Program review and reports 

Initially ETWD will undertake a detailed review including: 
1. Identify the types of customer information currently maintained, 
2. Assess the security of current customer accounting system inclusive of an 

analysis of any prior incidents of identity theft, 
3. Identify our potential vulnerabilities and the particular Red Flags that would 

prompt staff to react, 
4. Develop a process to maintain or enhance the maintenance of identifying 

customer information. 
 

 
 



 

-106- 

 
 
Prepared by: 
Staff 

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 

2008-23 (IV) 

 

IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 
Page 9 of 9 
Item 20 
Section IV 

 
Approved by: 
Board  

 
Date: 3/22/18 
Revision 2 

 
  

This Program will be annually reviewed for compliance and effectiveness. 
Changes in Identity Theft methods, detection and prevention will be analyzed. 
The District’s staff will present any recommended changes and Identity Theft 
Activity to the Finance Committee of Board for approval. 

 

I. Staff Training  

ETWD staff responsible for implementing the Identity Theft Prevention Program 
shall be trained by their immediate supervisors. 
 

J. Service Provider Arrangements 

ETWD will take the following steps to ensure the service provider performs its 
activity in accordance with reasonable policies and procedures designed to 
detect, prevent, and mitigate the risk of Identity Theft. 
 
1. Require, by contract, that service providers have such policies and 

procedures in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Agenda Item No. 5 
 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors Meeting Date:  April 22, 2021 

From: Dennis Cafferty, General Manager 

Subject: COVID-19 Update 

 
The District continues its efforts to balance compliance with health officials’ guidance and 
State, Federal and OSHA direction with the critical need to maintain the reliability of the 
essential services provided by the District.  The following represents a summary of the 
current status of the District’s response to the ever-changing challenges presented by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The most recent data reflects the continuation of the improvement in COVID cases that 
Orange County has achieved in the last couple months. As of April 15, hospitalizations in 
Orange County have reduced to 125 with 29 in the ICUs down from respective peaks of 
2,259 and 547 in early January.  
 
The following data for the County of Orange, from April 15, reflects significant improvement 
relative to each of the County Risk Level metrics as compared to the data from previous 
months. The County is currently in the Orange Tier of the State Tiered System for County 
Risk Levels.  
 

 April 15 March 18 February 18 

 Metric Tier Metric Tier Metric Tier 

Daily Case Rate per 
100,000 

3.0 Orange 4.0 Red 20.7 Purple 

Test Positivity Rate 1.6% Yellow 2.2% Orange 7.8% Red 

Health Equity Quartile 
Positivity Rate 

1.8% Yellow 3.5% Orange 10.7% Purple 

 
The State of California 7-day positivity rate, as of April 15, is similarly at 1.7%. As of April 13 
there are no counties in the Purple Tier in the State with 22 counties in the Red Tier, 33 
counties in the Orange Tier and 3 counties in the Yellow Tier.  
 



 
 
 

Governor Gavin Newsom recently announced a plan to fully open the California economy 
on June 15 if two criteria are met: 
 

• If vaccine supply is sufficient for Californians 16 years and older who wish to be 
inoculated; and 
 

• If hospitalization rates are stable and low 
 
The County of Orange continues to distribute vaccine through a variety of resources. As of 
April 15, all Californians, 16 years and older, are eligible for vaccination. 
 
Through April 11, 595,000 people in Orange County have received their first vaccine dose 
and another 687,500 people have received both the first and second dose. In addition, 
65,600 people have received the single dose Johnson and Johnson vaccine. Over 750,000 
people in Orange County are now fully vaccinated.  These numbers reflect total vaccinations 
provided by traditional healthcare providers (hospitals, pharmacies, etc.) as well as the 
County. To put it in context, there are more than 3.2 million people in Orange County, with 
nearly 20% that have received their first dose and approximately 23% that are fully 
vaccinated.  
 
As of April 15, providers have reported administering a total of 24,163,906 vaccine doses 
statewide 
 
Specific ETWD impacts, approaches and status are summarized as follows: 
 
Customer Billing – The suspension of non-pay shutoffs continues. The incidence of late 
payments or customers communicating that they are unable to pay their bill due to the 
financial crisis associated with the COVID-19 pandemic continues to increase. Staff will 
continue to closely monitor billing for any further indication of trends or patterns as well as 
assess the impact of these trends on District finances. 
 
Staffing – The following descriptions provide an overall description of the current approach 
to staffing and schedules: 
 

• Illness – The District staff has now experienced 16 employees that have tested 
positive for the COVID-19 virus. All District staff that tested positive for the virus have 
fully recovered and returned to full time work. Most of these employees are believed 
to have contracted the virus outside of the ETWD workplace.  
 

• Vaccination – The District’s employees have been advised of their eligibility and 
encouraged to consider vaccination. Currently approximately 50% of the District staff 
has received either their first or second dose or have scheduled an appointment for 
vaccination. 
 

• OSHA Requirements –The Board approved the District’s COVID-19 Prevention 
Program (CPP) at the Special Board Meeting on January 14. District staff has 
implemented the CPP and continues to monitor employees’ adherence to the 
requirements of the Program. 



 
 
 

 

• Work Safety Protocols – The District’s management staff continues to emphatically 
remind and require all staff of the critical need to practice social distancing of a 
minimum of six feet as well as the need to follow CDC guidelines regarding hand 
washing and other personal hygiene. Staff has been informed and consistently 
reminded that the combination of face coverings, distance and hygiene are the most 
effective means to mitigate the potential of contracting the virus. Staff has been 
reminded that vigilance remains necessary even as conditions have seemingly 
improved. 
 

• Telecommuting – All of the Main Office staff is working remotely to various extents. 
 

• Field Operations – The ETWD Operations Department has returned to their normal 
9/80 work schedule. All staff has been reminded that it remains critical to follow all 
the District’s safety protocols.  
 

• Self-Certification – Staff continues to follow the requirement for daily self-certification 
that employees are not suffering from a fever or any of the typical COVID-19 
symptoms. Employees are required to provide the daily certification on-line. 

 



 

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

April 2021 
 

 
 I. OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 

 Attended CSDA SDLF Module 1: Governance Training 

 Attended CSDA SDLF Module 2: Setting Direction: Community Leadership 

 Attended Joint Agency Meeting to Discuss Proposed Cross Connection Control Policy Handbook 

 Attended Meeting with IRWD Regarding Potential Sewer Splitter Diversion 

 Attended Meeting with JPIA Regarding Medical Insurance Plan 

 Attended Meeting with Arcadis Regarding Urban Water Management Plan 

 Attended South County Agencies Meeting 

 Attended WateReuse Meeting 

 Attended OCWA Webinar 

 Attended ETWD RRC Meeting 

 Attended ETWD All Employee Meeting 

 Attended ETWD Pres/VP/GM Meetings 

 Attended ETWD Budget Committee #2 Meeting 

 Attended ETWD Agenda Review Meeting 

 Attended ETWD Board Budget Workshop 

 Attended ETWD Engineering/Finance Committee Meetings 

 Attended ETWD Board Meeting 

 Attended SOCWA Board Meeting 

 Attended SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting 

 Attended MWDOC Planning/Operations Committee Meetings 

 Attended MWDOC MET Directors Workshop 

 Attended MWDOC Board Meeting 

 Attended MWDOC Elected Officials Forum 

 

II. DOMESTIC AND RECYCLED WATER SALES  
 

Actual domestic sales for the year-to-date as of March 31, 2021 are 5,397.16 acre-feet. This compares to year-
to-date budgeted domestic sales of 5,177.02 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects 
an increase of 220.14 acre-feet. Actual sales are 200.86 acre-feet higher than last year-to-date actual sales for 
the same period. 

 
Actual recycled sales for the year-to-date as of March 31, 2021 are 1,124.98 acre-feet. This compares to year-
to-date budgeted recycled sales of 1,088.66 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects 
an increase of 36.32 acre-feet. Actual sales are 208.65 acre-feet higher than last year-to-date actual sales for the 
same period. 



5,177.02

5,397.16

220.14

1,400.00

1,088.66

1,124.98

36.32

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c
re

 F
e
e
t

F.Y. 2020-2021

POTABLE WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c

re
 F

e
e

t

F.Y. 2020-2021

RECYCLED WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
7,000.00 AF

YTD Budget
5,177.02 AF

Actual
5,397.16 AF      

Over Budget
220.14 AF

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
1,400.00 AF

YTD Budget
1,088.66 AF

Actual
1,124.98 AF      

Over Budget
36.32 AF 



MAR 2021

Customer Service Activity Report

Regular Service Calls MAR 2021 MAR 2020 Telephone Calls MAR 2021 MAR 2020
Serviceman Dispatched to Read, 

Connect/Disconnect Service 74 64

Change of Service:                               

Connections and Disconnections
86 76

Field Investigations: Billing / Payments & Graph Inquires 191 282

Check for leaks - calls to CS 

Office:(irrigation,meter,street leaks)

Assistance with online payments and 

ETWD's portal (cc, e-checks, other.)
12 42

  Customer Responsible 9 24

  District Responsible 8 7 Variance / Adjustment Inquiries 20 16

  None found/other 4 22
Variance / Adjustment Requests 

Processed
9 7

High Reads Checked - High Consumption 

(Billing Dept.) 15 23

Ordinance Infraction / Water Waste 

Complaints
1 1

   Cust Leaks: _3_   No Leaks: _12_

Check Stopped Slowed Meters-Low 

Consumption (Billing) 14 16 Outside Utility Districts
74 61

Re-Check Read 2 7

Phone calls Transfer to other 

Departments within ETWD
62 83

Ordinance Infraction 0 1 Phone calls for the Board of Directors 1 0

Recycled Water 0 0 Recycled Water 0 0

Water Quality:  Taste / Odor / Color  4 2 Water Quality Taste - Odor - Color 4 4

Phone response: _4_  Field response: _0_ Leaks / Breaks 15 24

Flooding (Hydrant) Meters issued 1 0 Flooding Meter calls (Hydrant) 4 1

Sewer - Odor/Stoppage/ Manhole Covers 5 2 Sewer Problems (odor / spills) 4 4

Meter Box:  Lids / Covers  Replaced 19 14

Meter Box Clean, Digout 8 7
Backflow / Cross Connection 

(questions or yearly testing forms)
0 2

Raised Meter Box 1 1

ETWD facilities inquiries: 

Boxes/Covers/Lids/Hydrants/Pump 

Stations/Graffiti/ "Gen. Maint"
18 16

Trim Bushes / Meter Obstruction 27 8

General Maintenance Response 4 3
Tyco (ADT) Calls                            

(Alarms to ETWD facilities)
4 4

Fire Hydrants:  Hit / Leaks / Caps 2 0 ATT Calls (access to tower sites) 0 0

Pressure(psi) Checks / Reads 4 3 SCE Calls (access to tower sites) 0 0

CSSOV (Angle Meter/Ball Valve/Gate 

Valve/Globe Valve) chk,repair,replaced
5 6

Pager Calls specifically for Pump 

Stations - SCADA
0 0

AMS angle-meter-stop replace/repair 0 0

Bees Removed 0 0

Backflow / Cross Connection 8 0 Payment Extensions 1 20

Fogged Registers 62 11

Delinquent Payment Calls to Customer 

's prior to shut off per billing calendar 

(automatic courtesy dialer)  
185 0

OMCOP: Old Meter Change - Out Program 4 0

Return Calls from customers left on 

our voice mail system. Ext 500
7 23

Other: (uncommon non-maintenance calls) 4 9 Email Correspondence: 135 83

On-Call After Hrs. CS  Response 13 18
Maintenance Service Order Requests 

(bees, psi, fogged-dirty registers)
7 3

# 48/24 Hr. Door Hangers Hung 0 1
Misc. (other: employment, deliveries, 

sales calls)
33 45

# Locked Off For Non-Pay (Disconnect) 0 0

Removed Meter 0 1

New Meter 4 4

Unread Meters 2 19
Total Field Investigations 303 273 Total Telephone Calls 873 797

 

Uncollectible Accounts: Credit Card Payments MAR 2021 MAR 2020

Budget YTD 15,000.00$ 15,000.00$  REGULAR 943 $99,973.49 800 $78,195.41

Actual YTD 11,561.00$ 6,509.00$    



March-21

Flow, Units G.C. Irrigation Main Distribution WRP Irrigation/Utility Total, Production

Avg. Daily Q, MGD 0.126 0.650 0.064 0.840

Total Q, MG 3.893 20.151 1.989 26.033

Total Acre Feet 11.947 61.841 6.104 79.892

Total Recycled Water Production

(WRP) Tertiary Treatment Plant

* No Potable make-up water was used to supplement the demand for Recycled Water in March



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

ALISO CREEK RD

EL TORO RD

R-15

/ A

MPR

1 / A

R-14

/ A/ A

R-13

/ A

OC-77

R-10

/ A

/ A

R-16R-3

/ A
R-17

/ AR-2

/ A

R-18

/ A

R-19

/ A

RES-2

/ A

RES-1

/ A

RES-3

/ A

R-1

/ A

R-4

/ A
RES-4

/ A

R-5

/ A

R-6

/ A / A

R-7 R-8

/ A

R-9

/ A

/ A

R-12

/ A

R-11

/ A

RES-6 OUTLET

5

5

5

5

5

5

5
5

5

55

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

MICROBIOLOGICAL MONITORING

A = ABSENCE
P = PRESENCE (POSITIVE)

March

2021

DATA LEGEND

MID
630

SAMPLE POINT

# TESTS / RESULT

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

HIGH
645-720

REDUCED HIGH
537

SPARTAN
620-710

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SHENANDOAH
894

GRAVITY
570

CHERRY
770-815

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY
I-5  FR

EEW
A

Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

/          /
mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

OC-77

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

mg/L

RES-5

mg/L
2.10 2.19 2.25

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          / /          / /          /
/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

2.19

0.35 1.48 2.35

2.00 2.38 2.94

1.90 1.98 2.06

1.84 1.98 2.19

1.80 1.86 1.98

1.65 1.84 1.95

0.98 1.40 1.77

1.02 1.18 1.37

0.92 1.13 1.38

1.42 1.59 1.79

1.47 1.57 1.69

1.08 1.48 2.06

1.14 1.44 1.79

1.49 1.80 2.09

1.84 1.97 2.06

1.67 1.85 2.02

1.43 1.74 1.90

1.71 1.87 1.98

1.46 1.76 2.13

0.78 1.60 1.95

1.35 1.69 1.91

1.20 1.60 1.83

0.59 0.79 1.00

0.65 1.10 1.37

0.48 0.83 1.29

LOS ALISOS BLVD

mg/L

BAKER (MNWD)

/          /2.02 2.12 2.26

CHLORINE RESIDUAL MONITORING

DATA LEGEND

March

2021

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND
GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

HIGH
645-720

REDUCED HIGH
537

SPARTAN
620-710

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

MIN / AVG / MAX
mg/L

MCL 4.0 mg/L
MIN 0.2 mg/L

SAMPLE POINT



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4

R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

0.74

0.72

0.72

0.75

0.78

0.78

0.73
0.72

0.73

0.72

0.73

0.73

0.73

0.77

0.75

0.75

0.73

0.72

0.76

0.69

FLUORIDE  MONITORING

SAMPLE POINT

TOTAL
mg/L

DATA LEGEND

OPTIMUM LEVEL

0.7 - 1.3
mg/L

March 2021

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-16

R-2

R-5

OC-77

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-17

RES-5

mg/L0.007

0.003 0.005 0.006

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         //         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /
/         /

0.002 0.004 0.008

0.000 0.004 0.007

0.004 0.006 0.008

0.002 0.004 0.005

0.003 0.004 0.004

0.002 0.004 0.006

0.005 0.030 0.070

0.014 0.016 0.018

0.003 0.005 0.007

0.004 0.005 0.006

0.003 0.006 0.009

0.003 0.005 0.009

0.004 0.006 0.007

0.024 0.094 0.360

RD

LOS ALISOS BLVD

mg/L

BAKER (MNWD)

0.002 0.005 0.008/          /

NITRITE  MONITORING

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT
MIN / AVG / MAX

mg/L

ACTION  LEVEL
0.03
mg/L
MCL
1.0

mg/L

March

2021

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

21%
17%

6%

17%
15%

0%

7%
9%

-1%

13%

-4%

6%

0%

25%

14%

7%
10%

12%

9%
9%

16%

16%
16%

16%

10%

10%

7%

12%

8%

10%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

Sep-20

O
ct-20

N
ov-20

Dec-20

Jan-21

Feb-21

M
ar-21

TO
TAL SAVIN

G
S

Potable Water Recycled Water



The quality and safety of drinking water in the U.S. is regulated by the federal government through the U.S.

Environmental Protection agency (USEPA).  In California, those standards are enforced by the California

Department of Public Health (CDPH).  Water Quality parameters must meet both primary and secondary

water quality standards as established by the CDPH.

PRIMARY STANDARDS -  are intended to protect public health against substances in the

water that may be harmful to humans if consumed for long periods of time.

SECONDARY STANDARDS -  are to ensure esthetic qualities of water such as taste, odor

or clarity.  Rather than its healthfulness, these standards govern substances that may

influence consumer acceptance of water.

Given that 100% of ETWD's potable water resource is fully treated and delivered by Metropolitan Water 

District of southern California (MWDSC) through an enclosed and protected conveyance system, the majority

of the State and federal primary and secondary source water quality monitoring requirements are performed

by MWDSC.  The District's physical responsibility for water quality monitoring is associated with the distribution

system.  To monitor the distribution system water quality the District utilizes both in house and outside lab

services.  Routine distribution analysis conforming to CDPH requirements is conducted for the following

constituents:

1)  Microbiological - The number of microbiological samples and the frequency of analysis during the month

is based on the population and/or service connections served.  Utilizing a population of

50,000, the CDPH requires that 20 "representative" samples be collected and analyzed

for coliform bacteria.  The objective is to maintain water quality that is absent of coliform

bacteria which is a general indicator for the existence of fecal coliform.

2)  Chlorine  - The chlorine residual monitoring is performed in conjunction with the microbiological 

     Residual monitoring.  The CDPH requirement for treated surface water mandates that the distri-

bution system maintain a "detectable" residual.  The number of and frequency of sampling

is determined utilizing the same formula applied to microbiological requirements.  At a 

minimum, we are obligated to collect and analyze for chlorine residual each time we collect

the representative microbiological samples.  Per EPA Disinfectants & Disinfection Byproduct 

Rule (D/DBP), which was effective January 2002, requires quarterly reporting for all sampling.

3) TTHM & HAA5 The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published the Stage 2 Disinfectants and

Stage 2 DBPR Disinfection Byproducts Rule (Stage 2 DBPR) on January 4, 2006. The Stage 2 DBPR builds

Compliance on existing regulations by requiring water systems to meet disinfection byproduct (DBP)*

maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) at each monitoring site in the distribution system to

better protect public health.  The Stage 2 DBP rule is intended to reduce potential cancer and

reproductive and developmental health risks from disinfection byproducts (DBPs) in drinking

water, which form when disinfectants are used to control microbial pathogens.

This final rule strengthens public health protection for customers of systems that deliver

disinfected water by requiring such systems to meet maximum contaminant levels as an  

average at each compliance monitoring location (instead of as a system-wide average as in

previous rules) for two groups of DBPs, trihalomethanes (TTHM) and five haloacetic acids (HAA5).

The rule targets systems with the greatest risk and builds incrementally on existing rules.

This regulation will reduce DBP exposure and related potential health risks and provide more

equitable public health protection.  The Stage 2 DBPR is being released simultaneously with the 

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule to address concerns about risk tradeoffs 

between pathogens and DBPs. 

         EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

          MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY REPORT



The mandatory requirement under the Stage 2 DBP rule, known as an Initial Distribution System 

Evaluation (IDSE) was completed by ETWD in 2008 and a Stage 2 monitoring plan has been 

approved by CDPH.  Full Stage 2 compliance begins in 2012.  The IDSE identified the locations

with high disinfection byproduct concentrations.  These locations will then be used by the  

District as the 8 sampling sites for Stage 2 DBP rule compliance monitoring.  Compliance with 

the maximum contaminant levels for two groups of disinfection byproducts (TTHM and HAA5) 

will be calculated for each monitoring location in the distribution system.  This approach, 

referred to as the locational running annual average (LRAA), differs from current requirements,  

which determine compliance by calculating the running annual average of samples from all   

monitoring locations across the system.  The Stage 2 DBP rule also requires each system to 

determine if they have exceeded an operational evaluation level, which is identified using their 

compliance monitoring results. The operational evaluation level provides an early warning of  

possible future MCL violations, which allows the system to take proactive steps to remain in  

compliance.  A system that exceeds an operational evaluation level is required to review their 

operational practices and submit a report to the state that identifies actions that may be taken  

to mitigate future high DBP levels, particularly those that may jeopardize their compliance with 

the DBP MCLs.

4)  Physical  - Physical Quality analysis is associated with the esthetic qualities of the finished water.

     Quality Primarily, we are performing analysis for taste, odor and Turbidity (Clarity).  In accordance

with CDPH requirements, the District collects a minimum of 15 samples per month.

5)  Nitrites  - Although the chloramine disinfection process has been effective in controlling TTHM levels,

it requires increased monitoring and adjustment as a result of its susceptibility to the 

Nitrification process.  Nitrification is a biological process caused by naturally occurring

ammonia oxidizing bacteria.  Nitrification in chloraminated drinking water can have various

adverse impacts on water quality, the most serious of which is the loss of total chlorine

residual which is required by the CDPH and the subsequent potential to increase bacteria-

iological activity within the finished or treated water system.  MWD has developed an 

effective nitrification monitoring and prevention program which ETWD staff have adopted

and incorporated into the District's daily water quality monitoring and action plan.  The

number and frequency of this type of monitoring is not currently regulated by CDPH.  

Staff monitor the level of nitrites in source water, reservoirs and the distribution system

daily and weekly in conjunction with the microbiological and chlorine sampling program.

A nitrite level of between 0.015 and 0.030 would signal an alert.  > 0.030 would require 

action such as the addition of chlorine to produce a chloramine residual.

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS

MONTH: MARCH  YEAR :  2021

CONSTITUENT                INSIDE LAB            OUTSIDE LAB

ANALYSIS MCL NO.    RESULTS NO.   RESULTS

1  Microbiological    Pres/Absence 180 Absence Average

2  Chlorine (ppm)  Detectable Resid 243 Average =  1.50 ppm 

3  TTHM (ppb)       (Stage 2)  80 ppb  N/A

3  HAA5   (ppb)       (Stage 2) 60 ppb N/A

4  Physical Quality: RANGE

Turbidity (ppm) 5 NTU 20  0.01 to 0.05

Odor 3 Units 20 ND<1

Color 15 Units 20 ND<5

Temperature No standard 20 55.0°F To 65.0°F

5 Nitrite (Alert/Action level)ppm  0.015 to 0.030 ppm 119  0.00 to 0.008 Res.

To ensure water quality compliance, the District annually performs approximately 8,750 water quality 

analytical evaluations of the samples collected from the distribution system.



Abbreviations:

RES Indicates that the nitrification was isolated to a reservoir and treated

ND None detected

Pres/Absence Presence (P) or Absence (A) related to a positive or negative bacteriological result

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units, a measure of the suspended material in the water

ppm Parts per million

ppb Parts per billion

Total Coliform No more than 5% of the monthly samples may be total coliform-positive

N/A Not available



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

COLLECTION SYSTEM ACTIVITY REPORT

2021

MONTHLY ANNUAL

0 1

1 2

0 0

0 1

0 0

1 4

FOOTAGE
CHEMICAL

USED

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

FOOTAGE

0

0

0

0

MONTHLY 

FOOTAGE

TOTAL 

CYCLE 

FOOTAGE

TOTAL 

CYCLE 

COMPLETE

PERCENT  

OF CYCLE 

COMPLETE 

PERCENT OF 

WEEKS INTO 

THE 2  YEAR 

CYCLE 

63,829 344,265 356,735 104% 35%

3,442 263,336 16,721 6% 35%

0 7,728 0 0% 35%

0 0

67,271 615,329 373,456 61% 35%

24,171 0 191,783

91,442 807,112 565,239

MONTHLY 

FOOTAGE

TOTAL 

CYCLE

TOTAL 

CYCLE 

COMPLETE

PERCENT 

CYCLE 

COMPLETE 

PERCENT OF 

WEEKS INTO 

THE 5  YEAR 

CYCLE 

13,435 344,265 27,619 8% 3%

0 263,472 3,321 1% 3%

0 8,556 0 0% 3%

0 0 0

0 0 0

13,435 616,293 30,940 5% 3%

3

0

Water Tank Fills  92 92,000

1. The Hydrocleaning Objective is a 2 Year Cycle to Clean the Entire System. 

    The current cycle began on 07/01/2020

2   The TV Inspection Objective is a 5 Year Cycle to Inspect the Entire System. 

The current cycle began on 01/25/2021

Mathis, Westline, Veeh 1 & 2

Flow Meter/Sampling

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

Other

TOTAL

Wet Well Cleaning

Outside Laguna Woods Village

TOTAL

HYDRO-CLEANING 
1

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Private System

TOTAL

Hot Spots

COMBINED TOTALS:

TV INSPECTIONS
 2

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Other

TOTAL

ROOT CUTTING   COMMENTS:

Outside Laguna Woods Village

Laguna Woods Village

New World

Other:  WRP

TOTAL

ROOT FOAMING COMMENTS

Laguna Woods Village 918 Unit D Ave Majorca, Laguna Woods

New World

Private System

MONTH ENDING: MARCH

ODOR COMPLAINTS LOCATION, ORIGIN, ACTION: 

Outside Laguna Woods Village



Wednesday, April 14, 2021

Weekly Water Quality System Status
Generated On:4/14/2021 12:41:39 PM

THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA No violations of State or Federal regulations were recorded during the current period.

0.04

100
292

11~

2.4*
3.1**

0.04
0
588
26~
ND*

0.40**

0.30**

ND*

25~

589

0
0.03

0.04

18
539

28~

ND*

1.0**

0.06

100
336
21~

5.4*

4.1**

1.2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

ND
1

574
ND

258
2

ND

274

1

ND

531

ND

310

ND

3
263

ND

ND

3.2

OOS OOS

ND

OOS

2.51

WATER QUALITY INFORMATION LINE: (800) 354-4420
VISIT MWD ON THE WEB AT http://www.mwdh2o.com

*Bromate values are from sample date 4/5/2021.

NOTES AND COMMENTS

**Bromate maximum contaminant level is an RAA of 10 µg/L.

~THM values are from sample date 4/6/2021.

MWD water quality goals meet or exceed all State and Federal regulations.

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

CASTAIC LAKE
(JENSEN INF)

2

2

2

Tiers 2A & 3B

Tiers 3 & 4

Tiers 3 & 4

Twr. 2

Tier 4

Lwr. Twr.
OOS OOS OOS

2-MIB (ng/L)

(µg/L)



810 TAF

3.5 MAF

40%

37%

WY

CO

UT

AZ
NM

This report is produced by the Water Resource Management Group and contains information from various federal, state, and local agencies. 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California  cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of this information. 

Readers should refer to the relevant state, federal, and local agencies for additional or for the most up to date water supply information. 

Reservoirs, lakes, aqueducts, maps, watersheds, and all other visual representations on this report are not drawn to scale.

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR

This report is best printed double sided on legal size paper (8.5" x 14") and folded in quarters. Questions? Email mferreira@mwdh2o.com

250

350

450

550

650

750

850

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Diamond Valley Lake Storage

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Shasta Reservoir Storage

2019-2020 2020-2021

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)

Southern Sierra Snowpack

2019-2020 2020-2021 Normal

83%

56%

Statewide

64%

2021 SWP Allocation
95,575 AF
5% of Table A

Flip Over for CRA Data Turn page for more SWP Data

1.42 MAF
OROVILLE

248 TAF
CASTAIC

674 TAF
DVL

TOT:  1.14 MAF
SAN LUIS

SWP:  690 TAF

40%

76%

Average EOM 

%

Capacity

Current Storage 

%

As of: 03/25/2021

Turn page for more CRA Data                         Flip Over for SWP Data 

8.92 MAF

POWELL

10.38 MAF

MEAD

1084.37 FT

40%

37%

Upper
Colorado River 

Basin

88%

2021 Colorado River 

1,069,000 AF

0

10

20

30

78%

13.4"

1.19 MAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year

11.6 in.     

46% of 

normal

0
15
30
45
60
75
90

53%

WY Avg

8 STA: 22.3"

0

15

30

45

60

75

56%

WY Avg

5 STA: 17.7"

0

6

12

18

45%

WY Avg 

LA: 5.8"

0

6

12

18

49%

WY Avg

SD: 4.3"

Record Low: 587 TAF (08/01/1977)

Record Low

325 TAF

2.04 MAF

24.3 MAF

26.1 MAF

% Normal  

WY Avg

%

Rainfall to Date (in)

Capacity: 4.55 MAF

Capacity: 810 TAF

92%

78%
91%

91%

94%

90%

73%

86% 85%

83%

96%

Southern 
Sierra
46%

Northern 
Sierra

72%

Water Supply Conditions 

Report

Water Supply Conditions 

Report

As of: 03/25/2021

102 TAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year

Total Capacity 810 TAF

1.1
1.0

1.7

2.4

2.7

2.3

1.2

0.9

1.3

2.5 2.5

3.1 3.2

0

1

2

3

4

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Calendar Year

MWD Storage Reserve Levels

Potential Balance
Storage Balance
Emergency Storage

Projected CRA Diversions

No Data

Less than 50

50 - 80

81 - 120

121 - 150

Greater than 150

Snow Water Equivalent

(% of Normal)
Peak 

Snowpack
% of Normal 

April 1 

Highlights

Snowpack in the Sierra is at 64% of normal

Precipitation at the 8 Station Index is at 53% of normal

Snowpack in the Upper Colorado is at  88% of normal

Precipitation in the Upper Colorado is at  78% of normal











Colorado River Resources As of: 03/25/2021

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)
Northern Sierra Snowpack

2019-2020 2020-2021 Normal

0%

53% 39%

77%

48% 56%

0

4

8

12

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

8 Station Index Precip

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)

Upper Colorado Basin Snowpack

2019-2020 2020-2021 Normal

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

2.8

3.3

3.8

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Oroville Reservoir Storage

2019-2020 2020-2021

Enhanced Flood Pool (Wet Index) Original Flood Boundaries

Record Low: 882 TAF (09/07/1977)

0.0

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.1

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

San Luis Reservoir Storage

Total storage 2020-2021 SWP storage 2020-2021

Total storage 2019-2020

SWP storage 2019-2020

8

10

12

14

16

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Powell Storage

8

10

12

14

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Mead Storage

Shortage Trigger

0%

39%
43%

108%

25%

59%

0

4

8

12

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

5 Station Index Precip

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

35%

85%

72% 71%

102%

74%

0

2

4

6

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

Upper Colorado Basin Precip

Lake Mead Shortage/Surplus Outlook

Likelihood based on results from the January 2021 MTOM/CRSS model run. 
Includes DCP Contributions. 

22.3 in.  

Water Year 

to Date

2.93 MAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year

862 TAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Water Year

Sacramento River Runoff

0

3

5

8

10

13

15

18

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Water Year

Powell Unregulated Inflow

Long Term Average

Long Term Average

Colorado River Resources
As of: 03/25/2021

17.7 in.   

Water Year 

to Date

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Shortage 0% 60% 82% 75% 73%

Surplus 0% 0% 0% 2% 5%261 TAF less in SWP 

storage than this 

time last year

Other SWP Contract Supplies

13.4 in.   

Water Year 

to Date

1.20 MAF less in 

storage than this 

time last year

13.4 in     

88% of 

normal

20.1 in.      

72% of 

normal

2021 Colorado River Ag Use Forecast

2.75

2.80

2.85

2.90

2.95

3.00

3.05

J F M A M J J A S O N D

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Date of Forecast

IID/CVWD (QSA Priority 3a)

WY 2021

of normal

Capacity: 3.5 MAF Capacity: 24.3 MAF

Capacity: 26.1 MAF

Capacity: 2.04 MAF

47%

State Water Project Resources
As of: 03/25/2021

WY 2021              

of normal 49%

SWP Capacity 1.06 MAF

Total Capacity 2.04 MAF

(Forecast)(Forecast)

360

380

400

420

440

460

480

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

  
A

c
re

-F
e

e
t

Date of Forecast

PVID/Yuma (QSA Priority 1 & 2)

Forecast as of Mar-2021

Calendar Year 2021
Projected Lake Mead ICS 

-54,000 AF
Put (+)/Take(-)

Calendar Year 2021

Carryover Transfer Supplies
207,000  AF TBD

R
e

la
tiv

e
 to

  Q
S
A

 Th
re

sh
o

ld

+20

0

-20

+40

+60

-40

-60

Forecast as of Mar-2021



ND = New Development TI = Tenant Improvement  

WILL SERVE REQUEST STATUS REPORT 
(March 2021) 

All projects subject to previously issued Will Serve Letters are either Complete or the Will Serve Letter has Expired 

 (Will Serve Letters Expire One Year from Date of Issuance) 

 

 
Date 

Requested 

 
Applicant 

 
Project Description 

 
Type 

 
Location 

 
Status 

 
Date 

Issued 

8/29/19 Merlone Geier Partners Hunter Court Utility Relocations TI 24322 Rockfield Blvd Issued 12/9/19 

11/15/19 Kiddie Academy New Daycare at previous Restaurant TI 25521 Muirlands Blvd Issued 1/7/20 

6/11/20 National Community Renaissance Mountain View Housing, 71 units ND 24551 El Toro Rd Pending n/a 

8/7/20 City of Laguna Woods City Hall Public Library TI 24264 El Toro Rd Issued 9/23/20 

8/13/20 Buchheim Properties III Handels Ice Cream TI 23615 El Toro Rd, Ste. Y2 Issued 9/1/20 

8/27/20 Buchheim Properties III Fuddruckers Redevelopment TI 23621 El Toro Rd Issued 9/22/20 

tbd Merlone Geier Partners Village at Laguna Hills ND LH Mall Site Pending n/a 

       

       



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE SUMMARY

 YEAR OF 2021

PREVIOUS 

MAINTENANCE

SPILL VOLUME 

(PUBLIC)                Gallons

SPILL VOLUME 

(PRIVATE)                        

Gallons

CLEANING TV CONTAINED SPILLED CONTAINED SPILLED

January 16. 2021 Private
Recycled 

Water

Veeh Ranch 

Park

Broken 

Recycled 

Water Pipe

Turned off customer side ball valve. Called 

Laguna Woods to fix it.

Notified City ball valve was off and 

needed to fix it
8 Storm Drain 4448

Region 8, Laguna 

Woods

February 27. 2021 Private Sewer

22292 

Caminito 

Tecate

Root 

Intrusion

Placed sand bags in gutter to prevent spill from 

entering storm drain. Told residences to stop 

using water until crew unblocked the sewer. 

Notified City and stayed and did 

surface clean up around residence 
8

Gutter and 

paved surfaces
35 35

Region 8, Laguna 

Hills, OCHED 

Flood Control

March 7. 2021 Private Sewer

20702 El Toro 

Rd. Lake 

Forest

Root 

Intrusion

Placed sand bags in gutter to prevent spill from 

entering storm drain. Told residences to stop 

using water until crew unblocked the sewer. 

Notified City other agancies and 

stayed to help with surface clean up 

around residence 

9

Parking Lot,, 

gutter, storm 

drain

6000 4301

Region 9, Lake 

Forest, OCHED, 

Flood Control, OES

March 14. 2021 Private Sewer

23526 El 

Reposa Aliso 

Viejo

Root 

Intrusion

No spill on paved or dirt surfaces. Blockage 

contained to lateral. Upstream and downstream 

laterals were checked and flowing freely.

Cleared blockage and Collections 

were going to return on 3-15-21 to 

with jetter to clean the line

8
Stayed inside 

the lateral
0 0

No agencies were 

called due to no 

sewage actually 

spilled out of lateral

March 18. 2021 Public Sewer

24361 Osphrey 

Dr. Lake 

Forest

Lateral 

Lining 

Material

Placed sand bags in gutter to prevent spill from 

entering storm drain. Had to run the TV truck up 

the line to figure out what casued spill. Brought 

out two vactor trucks and Spill trailer to take 

pressure off line to reduce the effect of the 

overflow

Collections Department went out 

Friday to cut the slip line material out 

of the customers lateral 

8

Street, paved 

surfaces, gutter 

and storm drain

2184.25 200

Region 8, OCEH, 

OES, left message 

with Lake Forest

March 20. 2021 Private Sewer

22881 

Caminito Azul 

Laguna Hills

Debris

Placed sand bags in gutter to prevent spill from 

entering storm drain. Told residences to stop 

using water until crew unblocked the sewer. 

Notified City and stayed and did 

surface clean up around residence. 

HOA was notified that the issue 

needed to plumber to come back out. 

8

Private street, 

guttrer and 

storm drain.

100 50

Region 8, OCEH,  

left message with 

Lake Forest

LEGEND 2,184 200 6,135 8,834

S.DC  = San Diego Creek RES. =  Residential                               

S.D.    =  Storm Drain C.      =  Commercial     

A.C.   =  Aliso Creek        S.B.   =  Siphon

G.B.   =  Grease Blockage P.F.   =  Power Failure

S.        =  Sticks

DISCHARGED 

TO

REGULATORY 

NOTIFICATION 

AND RESPONSE

R.S.  =  Rocks

C.W.D. = Calcium Water Deposits

DATE
PUBLIC / 

PRIVATE 

SPILL 

TYPE
LOCATION  REASON IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE MEASURES

B.P,  =  Broken Pipe

U.W.  =  Untreated  Water

P.       =  Paper R.       =  Roots

POST-INCIDENT PREVENTIVE 

MEASURES
RWQCB

















































ETWD Public Education and Outreach Report 
April 23, 2021 
 

 

Bill Message 

Customer May/June bill message: 

May is Water Awareness Month.  Sign up now for a FREE virtual class in Turf Removal and 

Garden Transformation, California Friendly and Native Landscape Training, and Garden 

Design Workshops. For more information, please visit 

https://etwd.com/conservation/landscape-workshops/ 

Laguna Woods Village Television 

Director Vergara will participate in a Zoom interview with Lisa Hart for Laguna Woods 

Television on May 11, 2021. Director Vergara will discuss topics relating to May is Water 

Awareness Month.   

Community Advisory Group Meetings  

Staff continues to work on transitioning the CAG invitations to email through the Constant 

Contact platform. 

Created and distributed a bill stuffer that was included with the ETWD bills in April.  A copy 

follows this report. 

Created and distributed an article for the Laguna Woods Village E-blast and HOA’s.  A copy 

follows this report. 

Wyland National Mayor’s Challenge for Water Conservation 

ETWD is promoting the Wyland Foundation’s annual national campaign that inspires 

residents across the U.S. to use water wisely.  A friendly competition between cities, each 

vying for the title of most water efficient town in the nation by reducing water use. As an 

added incentive for Orange County, MWDOC and the Wyland foundation is presenting a 

breakaway challenge awarding the city with the most pledges within MWDOC’s service area 

a free visit from the Wyland Clean Water Mobile Learning Center. A flyer follows this report. 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: Sherri Seitz 4/15/21 

https://etwd.com/conservation/landscape-workshops/


Join us for ETWD's quarterly Community

Advisory Group (CAG) Meetings! 

Our next virtual Zoom meeting is May 13, 2021

ETWD

Community Advisory

Group Meeting

Sign  up at www.ETWD.com
to receive email notifications of upcoming meetings

Sign

Up!



Want to know more about your water, wastewater or

recycled water?

Sign up for CAG notifications on the 

www.ETWD.com homepage!



El Toro Water District Community Advisory Group (CAG) Meetings 

Move to Zoom 

Curious to know more about your water, wastewater and recycled water?  Laguna Woods 

residents can participate live in ETWD’s quarterly CAG meetings via the Zoom platform. 

In order to streamline the process and make it more efficient for staff and our customers, 
ETWD has transitioned to a new registration process for all future CAG meetings through 
the Constant Contact platform that the district utilizes.  Invitations will then be sent out by 
email with a live link to access the Zoom meeting. 
 
ETWD COMMUNITY ADVISORY GROUP REGISTRATION: 
 

• Visit www.etwd.com  

• Click on the Community Advisory Group “Sign 
Up Here” button  

• Enter your name, email, address and/or 
organization that you belong to 

• Click Sign Up 
 
You will then receive the CAG quarterly meeting invites 
and agendas by email and can directly link to the meeting 
through your computer, phone or tablet. 
 
The next meeting is May 13th.  Sign-up now and join us! 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Polly at (949) 837-7050 x225, 
pwelsch@etwd.com or Sherri at (949) 837-7050, ext. 239, sseitz@etwd.com.  
 
We look forward to seeing you at the next CAG meeting! 

 

http://www.etwd.com/
mailto:pwelsch@etwd.com
mailto:sseitz@etwd.com


The Wyland National Mayor's Challenge for Water Conservation is 
a friendly competition between U.S. cities to see who will be 

named the most water-wise city in the nation. The Challenge is 
divided into �ve population categories, and cities with the highest 

number of residents who take the pledge can win BIG!

Does your city 
have  what it 
takes to win?

Are You Ready For An Orange 
County Breakaway Challenge?

Learn more at
 www.mwdoc.com/mayorschallenge

Take the "My Water Pledge" on 
behalf of your city today! 
www.mywaterpledge.com

Pledge takers from the winning cities 
are eligible to win 100’s of great 
prizes including $3000 towards 
home utility bills for a year!

Pick a charity when you complete 
your pledge. Charities with the most 
votes will be entered in a drawing to 
win a new car!

Take the pledge and we’ll send you a 
code to share with friends! The more 
friends who sign up, the more 
chances your city has to win!

Take on a volunteer project and earn 
extra points!
www.wylandfoundation.org/mywaterproject

The Wyland National Mayor’s Challenge for Water Conservation is presented by the Wyland 
Foundation and Toyota with support from the U.S. EPA WaterSense, National League of Cities, 
The Toro Company, Petal, Hobie, and National Van Lines. The Orange County breakaway 
challenge is hosted by MWDOC and the Wyland Foundation.

A P R I L  1 - 3 0

JOIN THE WYLAND NATIONAL 
MAYOR'S CHALLENGE FOR 
WATER CONSERVATION

CALLING ALL ORANGE COUNTY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES! 



  

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT  
CONSERVATION PROGRAM  

Monthly 
Status Report 
April 22, 2021 

 
 

REBATE PROGRAMS 
 
The SoCal WaterSmart regional rebate program is available to ETWD customers 
provided by the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, the Metropolitan 
Water District of Orange County and ETWD. 
 
The following tables reflect the current device rebates ETWD customers can apply for 
from August 1, 2020 through June 30, 2022. 
 

Select device purchases are eligible for rebates while meeting eligibility requirements 
and subject to funding availability.  Rebate information can be found at 
www.etwd.com/conservation/rebates. 
 

1) Residential Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 

$85  $115 $200 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet 

$40  $60 $100 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (min 30 per home) 

$2 ea  $1 $3 

Smart Irrigation Timer $80 $100 $75 $255 
 

Turf Removal Program 
(up to 5,000 sq ft)* 

$2 sq. ft.  $1 sq. ft. $3 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System <1 Acre 
>1 Acre 

 
$80 

$35/station 

 
$100 

 
$75 

 
$255 

$35/station 

Hose Bib Irrigation 
Controller 

$35   $35  

Rain Barrels 

Cisterns 
(200 -500 gallon) 
(501-999 gallon) 
(1,000 gallon or more) 

$35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

 $15 $50 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

Spray to Drip Irrigation 
(up to 5,000 sf of converted 
area per fiscal year) 

 $0.25 sq. 
ft. 

 $0.25 sq. ft. 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  MWDOC Grant funding 
based on availability. ETWD has discontinued funding of synthetic turf rebates. 

http://www.etwd.com/conservation/rebates.


  

 
2) Commercial Plumbing/Irrigation Devices Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
 

$40   $40 

Multi-family 
Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
 

$40   $40 

Zero Water/Ultra 
Low Water Urinal 

$200   $200 

Plumbing Flow 
Control Valve 
(min. 10) 

$5   $5 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer/Central 
Computer Irrigation 
Controller/Soil 
Moisture Sensor 
System/Hose Bib 
Irrigation Controller 

$35/station   $35/station 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (minimum 
quantity of 15) 

$2  $1 $3 

Rotating Nozzles – 
Large Rotary 

$13   $13 

Turf Removal 
Program (up to 50,000 

sq ft)* 

$2 sq. ft*   $2 sq. ft.* 

Spray to Drip 
Irrigation (up to 45,000 
sq. ft) 

 $0.20 sq. 
ft. 

 $0.20 sq. ft. 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  Synthetic turf is not 

eligible for the turf removal rebate.  Additional commercial rebates available online at 
ocwatersmart.com.  MWDOC Grant funding based on availability. 

 
3) Actual Customer Rebates and Budget Analysis 
 
Since last month’s report there have been two new ETWD supplemental rebates in 
addition to the Metropolitan Water District device rebates and the Municipal Water 
District of Orange County turf removal program that have been paid.  
 
The table below shows the devices and programs that ETWD provides supplemental 
rebates for in addition to the Metropolitan Water District device rebates and the Municipal 
Water District of Orange County turf removal program. Total number of water-use 
efficiency devices includes paid rebates from March 18, 2021 through April 15, 2021.  
Turf removal program is total square footage rebates paid from March 18, 2021 through 



  

April 15, 2021.  The table also lists ETWD’s budget for each item for the fiscal year.  The 
last column is the total rebate paid per the dates listed. 
 

Device 

March 18 – April 15 

Total # 

Rebates 

Paid 

ETWD 

Supplemental 

Amount 

Budget ETWD 

Supplemental 

Rebate Total 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 

1 $115 $5,750 $2,875 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet 

 $60 $1,800 
 

$120 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer/Soil Moisture 
Sensor System 

1 $49 $2,625 $874 
 

Rain Barrels 

Cisterns 
 $15 $150 $60 

 

Total   $10,325 $3,929 

 

Turf Removal Program 

March 18 – April 15 

Total sq.ft. 

Paid 

ETWD 

Supplemental 

Amount 

Budget ETWD 

Supplemental 

Rebate Total 

Turf Removal 
Residential 

640 sq. ft. $1 sq. ft. 
 

$7,000 $4,664 

 
 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PLAN UPDATE (Water Conservation Plan) 
 
The District Water Budget-Based Tiered Conservation Rate Structure (WBBTCRS) 
pricing structure is the primary plan that gives customers the incentive needed to be 
efficient. The Plan efforts initially will concentrate on those customers continually in the 
Inefficient and Excessive Tiers (Tiers 3 and 4).  As of March 2021 year-to-date sales, 
residential accounted for 67% of the overall Tier 3 usage and dedicated irrigation 
accounted for 57% of Tier 4 usage. 
 
TOTAL CONSUMPTION COMPARISON TO EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) FACTOR 
 
Included in this month’s Conservation Report is a chart comparing the current fiscal year 
2020/21 consumption and ET factor to the fiscal 2019/20 consumption and ET factor. 
The ET factor increased 21% from March 2020 when compared to March 2021.  There 
was a 7% increase in consumption reflected in March 2021. 
 
MWDOC’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS SAVINGS AND 
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT / ETWD’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 
SAVINGS REPORT 
 
These reports are not included this month due to MWDOC’s Water Use Efficiency 
Program Savings Reports not being available at this time.  

 
By: Sherri Seitz 

       Date: April 15, 2021 



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY 2019-2020 287,207 343,163 337,247 269,666 310,344 179,155 174,596 184,609 177,526 160,199 228,443 278,527

FY 2020-2021 321,599 337,881 327,731 298,688 269,822 215,708 215,719 174,359 189,493

FY 19/20 ET 7.11 6.89 5.17 4.92 2.78 1.88 2.44 3.38 3.52 4.46 6.60 5.95

FY 20/21 ET 7.24 7.21 5.56 4.40 2.95 2.62 2.71 3.20 4.45

% 112% 98% 97% 111% 87% 120% 124% 94% 107% 0%

-1.00

1.00

3.00

5.00

7.00

9.00

11.00

13.00

15.00

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

ET
 F

ac
to

r

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Total Consumption Comparison



I hereby certify that the following Agenda was posted at least 72 
hours prior to the time of the Board Meeting so noticed below, at 
the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange County  
Wastewater Authority [SOCWA] and at www.socwa.com.  

 

Betty Burnett, General Manager 
SOCWA and the Board of Directors thereof 

 
AGENDA 

 
Regular Meeting  

of the  
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors 
 

To Be Held by Teleconference on: 
April 1, 2021 

8:30 a.m.  
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS TELECONFERENCE MEETING AND MAY JOIN THE 
MEETING VIA THE TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER AND ENTER THE ID CODE.  THIS IS A PHONE CALL MEETING AND 
NOT A WEB-CAST MEETING SO PLEASE REFER TO AGENDA MATERIALS AS POSTED ON THE WEBSITE AT  
WWW.SOCWA.COM.  ON YOUR REQUEST, EVERY EFFORT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE PARTICIPATION.  IF YOU 
REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY 
WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 234-5452 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO 
THE SCHEDULED MEETING TO REQUEST DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN 
ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY AT 
LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  
 
AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR A 
MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 
CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT TO DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ARE AVAILABLE BY PHONE REQUEST MADE TO THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE AT 949-234-
5452.  THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ARE LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA 
(“AUTHORITY OFFICE”), BUT ARE NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC DURING THE PERIOD OF STAY AT HOME ORDERS  IF SUCH 
WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS 
PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE SENT TO PARTICIPANTS REQUESTING VIA EMAIL DELIVERY.  IF SUCH WRITINGS 
ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IMMEDIATELY ON 
VERBAL REQUEST TO BE DELIVERED VIA EMAIL TO REQUESTING PARTIES. 
 

FOR MEETING PARTICIPATION: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://socwa.zoom.us/ 

 
Meeting ID: 899 7749 3881 

Passcode: 647762 
 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,89977493881#,,,,*647762# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,89977493881#,,,,*647762# US (Houston) 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.socwa.com/
https://socwa.zoom.us/j/89977493881?pwd=cHJnaStZWUo1anByNXNhVGxlRGNudz09


Regular Meeting – Board of Directors  Page 2 of 4 
April 1, 2021                                                                                                             
 

 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Find your local number: https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kcCGT0eQvE 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA OR MAY 
RESERVE THIS OPPORTUNITY DURING THE MEETING AT THE TIME THE ITEM IS DISCUSSED BY THE BOARD.  
THERE WILL BE A THREE-MINUTE LIMIT FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS. 
 
 

PAGE NO 
 

4. BOARD of DIRECTORS OFFICES – SELECTION OF CHAIR and VICE CHAIR FOR 
THE REMAINDER OF FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2020/2021  .......................................................... 1 

 
ACTION:     Discussion and Direction of the SOCWA Board of Directors as to its 

preferred alternatives, which may include: 
 

(i) Election/appointment of the Chair to serve the Authority for the remainder of FY 
2020/2021 

(ii) Election/appointment of the Vice Chair to serve the Authority for the remainder of 
FY 2020/2021 

(iii) Appointment of a Nominating Committee 
(iv) Other as determined by the SOCWA Board 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

A. Minutes of Board Meeting  .................................................................................................. 2 
                

• Board of Directors March 4, 2021  
   

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve subject Minutes as 
submitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kcCGT0eQvE


Regular Meeting – Board of Directors  Page 3 of 4 
April 1, 2021                                                                                                             
 
 
 

PAGE NO 
 

B. Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting  ............................................................................ 7 
 

• Finance Committee February 16, 2021 
 
ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes as 

submitted. 
 

C. Minutes of Engineering Committee Meeting  ..................................................................... 10 
 

• Engineering Committee February 11, 2021 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes as 
submitted. 

 
D. Financial Reports for the Month of February 2021  ............................................................ 13 

 

1. Summary of Disbursements for February 2021 (Exhibit A) 
2. Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B) 

 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
3. Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C) 
4. Capital Schedule (Exhibit D) 

 Capital Projects – Graph (Exhibit D-1) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Expenses: 

 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)  
 Operations and Environmental by PC (E-1.2) 
 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2) 
 Administration (Exhibit E-3) 
 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4) 

 
ACTION: The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors to 

ratify the February 2021 disbursements for the period from February 
1, 2021, through February 28, 2021, totaling $3,746,671 and to 
receive and file the February 2021 Financial Reports as submitted. 

 
E. February 2021 Operations Reports  .................................................................................. 31 

 
1. Monthly Operational Report 
2. SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency 
3. Beach Ocean Monitoring Report 
4. Recycled Water Report 
5. Pretreatment Report 

 
ACTION: The Board will be requested to receive and file the January 2021 

Operations Reports as submitted. 
 

F. Capital Improvement Program Status Report  ................................................................... 71 
 

ACTION:     The Board will be requested to receive and file the reports as 
submitted. 

 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting – Board of Directors  Page 4 of 4 
April 1, 2021                                                                                                             
 
 

PAGE NO 
 

G. Capital Improvement Program Project Financial Status and Change Orders 
[Project Committee 2, 5, 15, & 17] ..................................................................................... 87 
 
ACTION:   The Board will be requested to receive and file the Capital 

Improvement Program Project Financial Status and Change Orders 
Report as submitted. 

 
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A. General Manager’s Status Report  ............................................................................... 104 
 

ACTION:    Information Item 
 
7. OTHER MATTERS 
 

Open discussion or items received too late to be agendized. 
 
 
Note: Determine the need to take action on the following item(s) introduced by 

the General Manager which arose subsequent to the agenda being 
posted. 

 
[Adoption of this action requires a two-thirds vote of the Board, or if less 
than two-this are present a unanimous vote.] 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
THE NEXT SOCWA BOARD MEETING 

MAY 6, 2021 



 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE  
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

 
ENGINEERING COMMITTEE  

TELECONFERENCE MEETING 
 

April 8, 2021 
8:30 a.m. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting by clicking on the link below: 

 
https://socwa.zoom.us/ 

 
Meeting ID: 823 9876 8458 

Passcode: 561745 
 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,82398768458#,,,,*561745# US (San Jose) 
+12532158782,,82398768458#,,,,*561745# US (Tacoma) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)  

 
Find your local number: https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kcGorPG2Gi 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater 
Authority (SOCWA) Engineering Committee was called to be held by Teleconference on April 8, 
2021 at 8:30 a.m. SOCWA staff will be present and conducting the call at the SOCWA 
Administrative Office located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  This meeting is 
being conducted via Teleconference pursuant to the California Governor Executive Order N-29-
20. 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS TELECONFERENCE MEETING AND MAY 
JOIN THE MEETING VIA THE TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER AND ENTER THE ID CODE.  THIS IS A 
PHONE CALL MEETING AND NOT A WEB-CAST MEETING SO PLEASE REFER TO AGENDA MATERIALS AS 
POSTED WITH THE AGENDA THE WEB-SITE WWW.SOCWA.COM.  ON YOUR REQUEST, EVERY EFFORT 
WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE PARTICIPATION.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED 
ACCOMMODATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 234-5452 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
SCHEDULED MEETING TO REQUEST DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE 
OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 
AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  

 
AGENDA EXHIBITS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO 
ALL, OR A MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
ENGINEERING COMMITTEE IN CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT FOR DISCUSSION OR 
CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE ARE AVAILABLE BY PHONE 
REQUEST MADE TO THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE AT 949-234-5452.  THE AUTHORITY 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ARE LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA 

https://socwa.zoom.us/
https://socwa.zoom.us/u/kcGorPG2Gi


ENGINEERING COMMITTEE MEETING        Page 2 of 3 
April 8, 2021 
 
(“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE ENGINEERING 
COMMITTEE LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE SENT TO 
PARTICIPANTS REQUESTING VIA EMAIL DELIVERY.  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY 
PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IMMEDIATELY ON VERBAL REQUEST TO 
BE DELIVERED VIA EMAIL TO REQUESTING PARTIES. 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Call Meeting to Order  
 
2. Public Comments  
 

THOSE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE ENGINEERING COMMITTEE ON ANY ITEM LISTED ON THE 
AGENDA WILL BE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY AT THE OPENING OF THE MEETING AND PRIOR 
TO THE CLOSE OF THE MEETING.  THE AUTHORITY REQUESTS THAT YOU STATE YOUR NAME  
WHEN MAKING THE REQUEST IN ORDER THAT YOUR NAME MAY BE CALLED TO SPEAK ON THE 
ITEM OF INTEREST.  THE CHAIR OF THE MEETING WILL RECOGNIZE SPEAKERS FOR 
COMMENT AND GENERAL MEETING DECORUM SHOULD BE OBSERVED IN ORDER THAT 
SPEAKERS ARE NOT TALKING OVER EACH OTHER DURING THE CALL.   

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

 
• Engineering Committee Meeting of March 11, 2021 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends the Engineering Committee to approve Minutes 
as submitted. 
 

4. Operations Report  
 
Recommended Action:   Information Item 
 

5. Capital Improvement Construction Projects Report 
 

Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Engineering Committee recommend the 
following: 
 

a. PC-2 Board to approve Change Orders 17 and 18 totaling of $41,963.99; and 
b. PC-17 Board to approve Change Orders 21 through 29 totaling of $72,585.84. 

 
6. J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Utility Configuration Evaluation [Project Committee 2] 

 
• Presentation 

 
Recommended Action:  Information Item 

 
7. San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall Junction Structure Construction Update 

[Project Committee 5] 
 
Recommended Action:  Information Item 

 
8. J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Package B Construction Update [Project Committee 2] 
 

• Presentation  
 

Recommended Action:  Information Item 



ENGINEERING COMMITTEE MEETING        Page 3 of 3 
April 8, 2021 
 

 
9. SOCWA Engineering Capital Improvements Updated Draft Budget 

 
Recommended Action:   Information Item 

 
 
Adjournment 
  
I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was personally emailed or mailed to each member of the 
SOCWA Engineering Committee at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of the Regular 
Meeting referred to above. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was posted at least 72 hours prior to the time of the 
above-referenced Engineering Committee meeting at the usual agenda posting location of the 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority and at www.socwa.com. 
 
Dated this 1st day of April 2021. 
  
 

________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

http://www.socwa.com/


 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETING 

 

April 20, 2021 
10:30 a.m. 

 

Join Zoom Meeting by clicking on the link below: 
 

https://socwa.zoom.us/ 
 

Meeting ID: 893 3465 3926 
Passcode: 278088 

 

One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,89334653926#,,,,*278088# US (San Jose) 
+12532158782,,89334653926#,,,,*278088# US (Tacoma) 

 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 893 3465 3926 

Passcode: 278088 
Find your local number: https://socwa.zoom.us/u/keFWR7n9OI 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater 
Authority (SOCWA) Finance Committee was called by the Chairman to be held by Teleconference 
on April 20, 2021, located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  This meeting is 
being conducted via Teleconference pursuant to the California Governor Executive Order N-29-
20. 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS TELECONFERENCE MEETING AND MAY 
JOIN THE MEETING VIA THE TELECONFERENCE PHONE NUMBER AND ENTER THE ID CODE.  THIS IS A 
PHONE CALL MEETING AND NOT A WEB-CAST MEETING SO PLEASE REFER TO AGENDA MATERIALS AS 
POSTED WITH THE AGENDA ON THE WEB-SITE WWW.SOCWA.COM.  ON YOUR REQUEST, EVERY EFFORT 
WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE PARTICIPATION.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED 
ACCOMMODATIONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (949) 234-5452 AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
SCHEDULED MEETING TO REQUEST DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE 
OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON REQUEST TO THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 
AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY AT LEAST TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING.  

 

AGENDA EXHIBITS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO 
ALL, OR A MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE IN CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT FOR DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION 
AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ARE AVAILABLE BY PHONE REQUEST MADE TO THE 
AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE AT 949-234-5452.  THE AUTHORITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ARE 
LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF SUCH WRITINGS 
ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE LESS THAN TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS 

https://socwa.zoom.us/j/89334653926?pwd=dElZZnB6aVNtZVliSkJXT050RGFPUT09
https://socwa.zoom.us/u/keFWR7n9OI


NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING – FINANCE COMMITTEE   Page 2 of 4 
April 20, 2021 
 
PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE SENT TO PARTICIPANTS REQUESTING VIA EMAIL DELIVERY.  IF 
SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE 
AVAILABLE IMMEDIATELY ON VERBAL REQUEST TO BE DELIVERED VIA EMAIL TO REQUESTING PARTIES. 

 
AGENDA 

  

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 

2. Public Comments 
 

THOSE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ON ANY ITEM LISTED ON THE 
AGENDA WILL BE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY AT THE OPENING OF THE MEETING AND PRIOR TO 
THE CLOSE OF THE MEETING.  THE AUTHORITY REQUESTS THAT YOU STATE YOUR NAME 
WHEN MAKING THE REQUEST IN ORDER THAT YOUR NAME MAY BE CALLED TO SPEAK ON THE 
ITEM OF INTEREST.  THE CHAIR OF THE MEETING WILL RECOGNIZE SPEAKERS FOR COMMENT 
AND GENERAL MEETING DECORUM SHOULD BE OBSERVED IN ORDER THAT SPEAKERS ARE 
NOT TALKING OVER EACH OTHER DURING THE CALL.   
 

PAGE NO. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes .............................................................................................................. 1 
 

• Finance Committee Meeting of March 16, 2021  
 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends the Finance Committee to approve minutes as 
submitted. 
 

4. Financial Reports for the Month of March 2021 .................................................................. 5 
 

The reports included are as follows: 
a. Summary of Disbursements for March 2021 (Exhibit A 
b. Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment (Exhibit B) 

 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
c. Schedule of Cash and Investments (Exhibit C) 
d. Capital Schedule (Exhibit D) 

 Capital Projects – Graph (Exhibit D-1) 
e. Budget vs. Actual Expenses: 

 Operations and Environmental Summary (Exhibit E-1)  

 Operations and Environmental by PC (E-1.2) 

 Residual Engineering, after transfer to Capital (Exhibit E-2) 

 Administration (Exhibit E-3) 

 Information Technology (IT) (Exhibit E-4) 

f. Fringe Pool Year To Date (Exhibit E-5) 
 

Recommended Action:  Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend to the 
Board of Directors to ratify the March 2021 disbursements for the period from March 1, 2021, 
through March 31, 2021, totaling $3,508,706, and to receive and file the March 2021 Financial 
Reports as submitted. 

 
5. Q3 FY 2020-21 Cash Roll Forward as of March 31, 2021 .................................................... 24 
 

Cash Roll Forward balances are attached: 
 

• Cash Roll Forward Notes 

• Large Capital Cash Reconciliation to General Ledger (GL) 



NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING – FINANCE COMMITTEE   Page 3 of 4 
April 20, 2021 
 
 

PAGE NO. 
 

• Large Capital Cash Roll Forward Balance by Project Committee, Member 
Agency and Project 

• Non-Capital Cash Roll Forward Balance by Project Committee, Member Agency 
and Project 

• Non-Capital – Miscellaneous Cash Roll Forward Balance by Project Committee, 
Member Agency and Project 

• Small Capital Cash Roll Forward balance by Project Committee, Member Agency 
and Project 

 

Recommended Action:  Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend to the 
Board of Directors to receive and file the Q3 Fiscal Year 2020-21 Cash Roll Forward as 
submitted. 
 

6. FY20/21 O&M Budget Update and Proposed Budget Amendments .................................. 33 
 
Recommended Action:  Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend to the 
Board of Directors that PC 2–JBL budgets be amended by $100,000 in the following 
amounts: 

 

PC-2 Line 5008  Ferric Chloride  $50,000 
PC-2 Line 5049  Biosolids  $50,000 

 
7. FY 2021-22 Budget  ............................................................................................................... 37 

 
 Staff Presentations 

 Major Cost Drivers 

 Operations & Maintenance & Environmental Budget  

 Administration & General Fund 

 IT & Residual Engineering 

 Environmental Regulatory Requirements .................................................................... 105 

 

 OPEB Normal Costs Savings Financial Benefits and % Funded Goal ....................... 110 

 

 General Fund Share of UAL and OPEB Annual Payments .......................................... 115 

 

 PC-17 Co-Gen Credit Historical Approach & Options ................................................. 119 

 

 Responses to Committee questions ............................................................................. 135 

 

 YOY (Year over Year) Budget Change (Roll Forward)  ................................................ 139 

 

 Upcoming meeting schedule.........................................................................................  

 

o Finance Committee May 18, 2021 
o Board Budget Workshop May 20, 2021 

 
Recommended Action:  Committee discussion and comments 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING – FINANCE COMMITTEE   Page 4 of 4 
April 20, 2021 
 

 
 

PAGE NO. 
 

8. Proposed Large Capital Improvement Program Proposed Budget 
 

 Capital Budget Presentation ......................................................................................... 142 
 
Recommended Action:  Committee discussion and comments 
 

9. Independent Auditing Firm Selection – FY 2021-2022 ........................................................ 154 
 

Recommended Action:  Staff Recommends that the Finance Committee provide a 
preference for the auditing services for FY 2021-22 and select between options: 

 
1) Recommend to the Board of Directors to extend the PUN Group for the FY 2021-22 

Audit with a rotation of the firm’s Audit Managers, or 
 
2) Direct staff to proceed to issue and RFP for Audit services FY 2021-22. 

 
Adjournment 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was personally emailed or mailed to each member of the 
SOCWA Finance Committee at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time of the Special Meeting 
referred to above. 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Notice was posted at least 24 hours prior to the time of the 
above-referenced Finance Committee at the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange 
County Wastewater Authority and at www.socwa.com. 
  
Dated this 13th day of April 2021. 
 
          

_______________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

April 1, 2021, 6:00 p.m. 
 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and as authorized by the Governor’s Executive Order, 

MWDOC will be holding all upcoming Board and Committee meetings by Zoom Webinar 

and will be available by either computer or telephone audio as follows: 
  

Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

  https://zoom.us/j/8828665300  
 

      Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

     (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 

       Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 

 
 

 

 

AGENDA 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS/PARTICIPATION 
At this time, members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board 
concerning items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public 
may also address the Board about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by 
the Board and before action is taken.  If the item is on the Consent Calendar, please inform 
the Board Secretary before action is taken on the Consent Calendar and the item will be 
removed for separate consideration. 
 
The Board requests that all members of the public who want to address the Board complete 
a “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting.   

 

 

1. DISCUSSION WITH REPRESENTATIVES FROM MWDOC’S MEMBER 

AGENCIES REGARDING KEY REGIONAL ISSUES AND KEY ORANGE 

COUNTY ISSUES, INCLUDING THE MWDOC BUDGET AND PROPOSED 

ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2021-22, THE MWDOC RATE STUDY, REGIONAL 

WATER ISSUES, AND WATER USE EFFICIENCY ACTIVITIES 
 
Recommendation: Receive information and discuss the various issues outlined. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by 
contacting Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of 
Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of the 
disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact information 
should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the 
District to provide the requested accommodation. 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300


1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

April 5, 2021, 8:30 a.m. 
 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and as authorized by the Governor’s Executive Order, MWDOC will be holding 
all upcoming Board and Committee meetings by Zoom Webinar and will be available by either computer or 

telephone audio as follows: 
Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 
 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 
 
 
P&O Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, J. Berg, V. Osborn,  
Director Yoo Schneider, Chair    H. De La Torre, T. Dubuque,  
Director Nederhood      D. Micalizzi, H. Baez, T. Baca 
Director Seckel 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Tamaribuchi 
 

 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
ACTION ITEM 
 
1. CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR ORANGE COUNTY DEDICATED IRRIGATION 

METER LANDSCAPE AREA MEASUREMENTS  
 
2. MWDOC ADMINSTRATION BUILDING SEISMIC RETROFIT AND REMODEL 

PROJECT – ABS OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 



P&O Committee Meeting  April 5, 2021 
 

2 

CONTRACT – CHANGE ORDER 
 
3. SOUTH EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER CAPITAL PROJECT DECISION 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
4. UPDATE ON COVID-19 (ORAL REPORT) 

 
5. REVIEW OC DEMAND FORECASTING/CDM SMITH STUDY  

 
6. REVIEW OF MWDOC’S DRAFT 2020 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS (The following items are for informational purposes only – 
background information is included in the packet.  Discussion is not necessary unless a 
Director requests.) 
 
7. LOCAL LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 

a. County Legislative Report (Lewis) 
b. Legal and Regulatory Report (Ackerman) 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING DATE SCHEDULED FOR MAY 19, 2021 RE MWDOC’S 2020 

URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

9. MWDOC CHOICE SCHOOL PROGRAMS UPDATE 
 
10. 2021 OC WATER SUMMIT UPDATE 
 
11. STATUS REPORTS 
 

a. Ongoing MWDOC Reliability and Engineering/Planning Projects 
b. WEROC 
c. Water Use Efficiency Projects 
d. Public and Government Affairs 

 
12. REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO PLANNING OR ENGINEERING PROJECTS, 

WEROC, WATER USE EFFICIENCY, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT 
MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, WATER QUALITY, CONJUNCTIVE USE 
PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, PUBLIC AFFAIRS PROGRAMS AND EVENTS, 
PUBLIC INFORMATION PROJECTS, PUBLIC INFORMATION CONSULTANTS, 
DISTRICT FACILITIES, and MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 



P&O Committee Meeting  April 5, 2021 
 

3 

includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 









1 

ADJOURNED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

April 19, 2021, 8:30 a.m. 
 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and as authorized by the Governor’s Executive Order, MWDOC will be holding 
all upcoming Board and Committee meetings by Zoom Webinar and will be available by either computer or 

telephone audio as follows: 
 

Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 

 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 
 
A&F Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, J. Berg, H. Chumpitazi, 
Director McVicker, Chair    H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh, C. Harris 
Director Dick 
Director Thomas 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Tamaribuchi 
 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
1. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  March 2021 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of April 2021 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of March 2021 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300
http://www.mwdoc.com/


A&F Committee Meeting  April 19, 2021 
 

2 

d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of March 2021 
e. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – February 2021 
f. OPEB and Pension Trust Fund monthly statement 

 
2. FINANCIAL REPORT - Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative 

for the Period Ending February 28, 2021 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
3. DISTRICT BENCHMARK COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS STUDY 
 
4. REVIEW INFORMATION REGARDING PUBLIC HEARING (SCHEDULED FOR 

APRIL 21, 2021) TO ADOPT ORDINANCE SUPERSEDING AND REPEALING 
MWDOC ORDINANCE NO. 54 REGARDING COMPENSATION FOR DIRECTORS  

 
5. AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT FOR MWDOC CHOICE SCHOOL PROGRAMS  
 
6. MWDOC’S 2021 COST ALLOCATION RATE STUDY  
 
7. ADOPTION OF THIRD DRAFT OF THE FY 2021-22 BUDGET 
 
8. PROPOSED MWDOC WATER RATE RESOLUTION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 
 
9. AB 1296 (KAMLAGER) AND SB 342 (GONZALEZ) – SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
10. REVIEW OF DISTRICT’S AUTO ALLOWANCE POLICY 
 
11. REVIEW OF REQUIREMENTS FOR CSDA’S DISTRICT OF DISTINCTION AWARD 

(VARIOUS LEVELS) 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
12. REIMBURSEMENT OF DENTAL DIVIDENDS TO EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 
 
13. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
14. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION, AND WATER SUPPLY 

INFORMATION 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
15. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 



A&F Committee Meeting  April 19, 2021 
 

3 

MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 



 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 

April 21, 2021, 8:30 a.m. 
 

Due to the spread of COVID-19 and as authorized by the Governor’s Executive Order, MWDOC will be holding 
all upcoming Board and Committee meetings by Zoom Webinar and will be available by either computer or 

telephone audio as follows: 
 

Computer Audio: You can join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the following link: 

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300 
 
    Telephone Audio: (669) 900 9128 fees may apply 

 (877) 853 5247 Toll-free 
    Webinar ID:   882 866 5300# 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS/PARTICIPATION 
At this time, members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning items 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before action is taken.  If the 
item is on the Consent Calendar, please inform the Board Secretary before action is taken on the 
Consent Calendar and the item will be removed for separate consideration. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the Board 
complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting. 

 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize items(s) which arose subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board 
members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present.) 
 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 
Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these 
public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
 

 NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2109 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 1 to 7) 
(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a Board 
member requests separate action on a specific item) 
  

https://zoom.us/j/8828665300
http://www.mwdoc.com/


Regular Meeting Agenda April 21, 2021 

 

 
2 

 
1. MINUTES 

a. March 3, 2021 Workshop Board Meeting 
b. March 17, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

 
Recommendation:  Approve as presented. 

 
2. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 

a. Planning & Operations Committee Meeting:  March 1, 2021 
b. Administration  & Finance Committee Meeting:   March 10, 2021 
c. Executive Committee Meeting:  March 18, 2021 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
3. TREASURER'S REPORTS 

a. MWDOC Revenue/Cash Receipt Register as of  March 31, 2021 
b. MWDOC Disbursement Registers (March/April) 

 
Recommendation: Ratify and approve as presented. 

 
c. Summary of Cash and Investment and Portfolio Master Summary Report 

(Cash and Investment report) as of February 28, 2021 
d. PARS Monthly Statement (OPEB Trust) 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 

 
4. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 
ending February 28, 2021 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 

5. CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR ORANGE COUNTY DEDICATED IRRIGATION 
METER LANDSCAPE AREA MEASUREMENTS  

 
Recommendation: Authorize the General Manager to:  (1) enter into a 

Professional Services agreement with Quantum Spatial, for an 
amount not to exceed $1,400,000, to provide participating retail 
water agencies with area measurements of landscapes with 
dedicated irrigation meters, as required by SB 606 and AB 
1668, and (2) enter into agreements with participating agencies 
for area measurement services from Quantum Spatial. 

 
6. MWDOC ADMINSTRATION BUILDING SEISMIC RETROFIT AND REMODEL 

PROJECT – ABS OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT – CHANGE ORDER 

 
Recommendation: Approve a change order to the ABS Consulting Professional 

Services contract to extend the contract through to completion 

of the Administration Building Seismic Retrofit and Remodel 



Regular Meeting Agenda April 21, 2021 

 

 
3 

Project. The change order includes the necessary additional 

professional services hours for the duration of the project in the 

amount of $90,425.00 for a revised not to exceed total of 

$385,031.00. 

 
7. SOUTH EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER CAPITAL PROJECT DECISION 
 

Recommendation: Approve Option 1, and work with ETWD to refine the cost 
estimates associated with the project, and research alternative 
options (if available) in the event the project costs prove too 
high.  

 
  End Consent Calendar  
 

ACTION CALENDAR 
 
8-1 HOLD PUBLIC HEARING TO ADOPT ORDINANCE SUPERSEDING AND 

REPEALING MWDOC ORDINANCE NO. 54 REGARDING COMPENSATION FOR 
DIRECTORS  

          ORD. NO. _____ 

 
Recommendation: (1) open the public hearing (as noticed) on the Proposed 

Ordinance to receive input from the public; (2) consider said 
input on the Ordinance; and (3) adopt Ordinance, in the general 
form presented, with amendments if necessary. 

 
8-2 DISTRICT BENCHMARK COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS STUDY 
 

Recommendation: Approve Option 1, the proposed recommended position 
reclassifications, title change, revisions to the pay structure 
ranges and a 1.64% pay structure adjustment to the salary 
ranges only, effective July 1, 2021.  

 
8-3 AUTHORIZATION TO CONTRACT FOR MWDOC CHOICE SCHOOL PROGRAMS  
 

Recommendation: Authorize the General Manager to enter into a two-year 
contract with three (3), one-year options to extend with Building 
Block Entertainment, Inc. (Shows That Teach) and Orange 
County Department of Education’s (OCDE) Inside the Outdoors 
to design and present the Municipal Water District of Orange 
County’s (MWDOC) K-12 Choice School Programs (Option #1). 

 
8-4 MWDOC’S 2021 COST ALLOCATION RATE STUDY 
 

Recommendation: Adopt the findings and recommendations in Raftelis’ Core 
Service Charge Allocation Study for MWDOC; which calls for 
maintaining the current Meter Service Charge methodology for 
all MWDOC retail agencies and changing the methodology and 
calculation of MWDOC’s Groundwater Customer Charge for 



Regular Meeting Agenda April 21, 2021 

 

 
4 

Orange County Water District.  These adjustments will be 

effective beginning in FY 2021-22.   
 
 

8-5 ADOPTION OF THIRD DRAFT OF THE FY 2021-22 BUDGET 
RES. NO. _____ 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the final MWDOC budget for 
fiscal year 2021-22  

 
 
8-6 PROPOSED MWDOC WATER RATE RESOLUTION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 

         RES. NO. _____ 
 

Recommendation: (1) Increase the MWDOC Retail Meter Charge from $12.20 to 
$13.00 per meter, and decrease the Groundwater Customer 
Charge from $595,323 to $335,385 effective July 1, 2021; and 

 
(2) Adopt the Water Rate Resolution setting forth rates and 
charges to be effective July 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022 as 
identified in the Water Rate Resolution for Fiscal Year 2021-22. 
 

8-7 AB 1296 (KAMLAGER) AND SB 342 (GONZALEZ) – SOUTH COAST AIR 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT: BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

 
Recommendation: Adopt Oppose Unless Amended positions on both AB 1296 

(Kamlager) and SB 342 (Gonzalez). 
 
 
INFORMATION CALENDAR (All matters under the Information Calendar will be 
Received/Filed as presented following any discussion that may occur) 
 
9. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT, APRIL 2021 (ORAL AND WRITTEN) 
 

Recommendation: Receive and file report(s) as presented. 
 

10. MWDOC GENERAL INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

a. Board of Directors - Reports re: Conferences and Meetings 
b. Requests for Future Agenda Topics 

 
 Recommendation: Receive and file as presented. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
11. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9. One 
Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California on April 13, 2010, et al., former Los Angeles Superior 



Regular Meeting Agenda April 21, 2021 

 

 
5 

Court, Case No. BS 126888, transferred on October 21, 2010, to San Francisco Superior 
Court, Case No. CPF-10-510830 and related appeal. 
 
12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code 54956.9.  One Case: San 
Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern California; all 
persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California on April 10, 2012 to be Effective January 1, 2013 and January 1, 2014; 
and Does 1-10, et al., former Los Angeles Superior Court, Case No. BS137830, transferred 
on August 23, 2012, to San Francisco Superior Court, Case No. CPF-12-512466 and 
related appeal. 
 
13. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  One 
Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the Metropolitan 
Water of Southern California on April 8, 2014, et al., former Los Angeles Superior Court, 
Case No. BC547139, transferred on December 2, 2014, to San Francisco Superior Court, 
Case No. CPF-14-514004. 
 
14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9. One 
Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California on April  12, 2016, effective January 1, 2017 and 
January 1, 2018, et al., former Los Angeles Superior Court, Case No. No. BS161729, 
transferred to San Francisco Superior Court, Case CPF-16-515282. 
 
15.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9. One 
Case: San Diego County Water Authority v. Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; all persons interested in the validity of the rates adopted by the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California on April 10, 2018 to be effective January 1, 2019, and 
Jan. 1, 2020, et al., Los Angeles Superior Court, Case No. BS 173868, Transferred to San 
Francisco Superior Court, Case CPF-18-516389. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by 
contacting Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District 
of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  Requests must specify the nature of 
the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other contact 
information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons 
requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the 
meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodation.  



























































 
 
            Executive Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, April 6, 2021 
7:30 a.m. 

The next meeting of the ISDOC Executive Committee will be via teleconference only.   
The MWDOC/OCWD offices are closed to the public.  Please use the information below to access the 

meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
 

                                              https://zoom.us/j/99287384726 
  

Dial by your location 
669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
877 853 5247 US Toll-free 
888 788 0099 US Toll-free 

 
Meeting ID: 992 8738 4726 

 

AGENDA 
 

I. Welcome, Introductions – 7:30 am 
[Please mute yourself when not speaking.  Please raise hand on Zoom if you have a 
question or comment.] 
 

II. Approval of Minutes – 7:35 am 
• Consider approval of the minutes for the March 2, 2021 meeting. 

 
III. Public Comments on items not on the agenda- 7:40 am 

 
IV. New Business – 7:45 am 

• Status of 2nd VP – Heather Baez 
• Learn more about the candidates (3-minute limit each) 
• Appointment of 2nd VP (Membership) – Action Item 

 
V. Old Business – 8:20 am 

• Update on website from Chris Palmer at CSDA regarding Streamline’s services 
• Update on reaching out to local elected officials on the Federal and State levels 

making them aware of ISDOC & CSDA 
 

VI. Treasurer’s Report – 8:25 am – Director Green 
• Report of accounts 

 
VII. CSDA Report – 8:30 am – Director Schafer/Chris Palmer 

• Receive, discuss and file the CSDA Report 
 

VIII. LAFCO Report – 8:35 am – Director Fisler 
• Receive, discuss and file the LAFCO report 

Mailing Address 
 

P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
 
Meeting Location 
 

MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
 
(714) 963-3058 
(714) 964-5930 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/isdoc 
 
 
Executive Committee 
 
President  
Hon. Mark Monin  
El Toro Water District  
 
1st Vice President  
Hon. Arlene Schafer 
Costa Mesa Sanitary District 
 
2nd Vice President  
Hon. Larry Dick 
Municipal Water District of  
Orange County 
 
3rd Vice President  
Hon. Brooke Jones 
Yorba Linda Water District 
 
Secretary 
Hon. Greg Mills 
Serrano Water District  
 
Treasurer 
Hon. Bill Green 
South Coast Water District 
 
Immediate Past President 
Hon. Saundra Jacobs 
Santa Margarita Water District  
 
Staff Administration 
 
Heather Baez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 
 
Christina Hernandez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/99287384726


 - 2 - 

 
IX. ACWA Report – 8:40 am – Director Jacobs 

• Receive, discuss and file the ACWA report   
 

X. OCCOG Report – 8:45 am – Director Scheafer 
•  Receive, discuss and file OCCOG report 

 
        XI. Orange County Operational Area Report - 8:50 am – Vicki Osborn 

• Receive, discuss and file OCOA report 
 

XII. Subcommittee Reports – 8:55 am  
• Programs – Director Schafer/Mark Monin 
• Membership - Director Dick 
• Legislative – Director Jones 

 
XIII.   Adjourn – 9:00 am 

 



 
 
 

1 
 

 
 

ISDOC Executive Committee (Virtual Meeting via Zoom) 
March 2, 2021 

 
Minutes 

I. Welcome 
President Mark Monin called the meeting to order at 7:31 a.m.   
 
Mark Monin, President (ETWD) 
Arlene Schafer, 1st Vice President (CMSD) 
Larry Dick, 2nd Vice President (MWDOC) 
Brooke Jones, 3rd Vice President (YLWD) 
Greg Mills, Secretary (SWD) 
Bill Green, Treasurer (SCWD) 
Saundra Jacobs, Immediate Past President (SMWD) 

 

Others Present: 
 

Vicki Osborn, Director of Emergency Management (MWDOC) 
Mike Scheafer, Board Member (CMSD) 
Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager (Mesa WD) 
Heather Baez, Government Affairs Manager (MWDOC) 
Christina Hernandez, Database Coordinator (MWDOC) 
Laura Heflin, Administrative Assistant (Serrano WD) 
Brooke Jones, Board Member (YLWD) 
Chris Palmer, Senior Public Affairs Field Coordinator (CSDA) 
Hilaire Shioura, Placentia Library Trustee (PLD) 
Bob McVicker, Director (YLWD) 
Kay Havens, Director (ETWD) 
Jim Fisler, Director (Mesa WD) 
Sherry Wanninger (MNWD) 
Steve Faessel, Director (City of Anaheim) 
Alison Martin (YLWD) 
Alicia Dunkin (OCWD) 
Paul Mesmer (Sunset Sanitation District) 

  



 
 
 

2 
 

 
II. Minutes 

 
The minutes of the February 2, 2021 meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved via 
roll call vote with a motion made by Director Schafer and seconded by Director Green. 
 

III. Public Comments  
 

• Paul Mesmer of Sunset Sanitation introduced himself and remarked that he will be 
attending meetings in the future. 

 
IV. New Business  

 
• Heather Baez reported that the letter has gone out regarding for the 2nd Vice 

President election process and that staff is still waiting to receive letters of interest.  
Director Mills suggested the possibility of sending a reminder letter out but it was 
agreed that this wasn’t necessary. 

 
V. Old Business 

 
• Chris Palmer provided the committee with an update on Streamline’s services.  

Maria Lara is the contact at the company.  They will create and host the website at 
no cost and will maintain it for a nominal fee.  Hilaire Shioura spoke about WordPres 
and its pros and cons and made the suggestion that local vendors in Orange County 
be researched.  President Monin suggested a brief Zoom meeting to reach 
consensus and discuss further.  Director Jacobs expressed interest in joining the 
meeting to discuss the direction.  A date in mid-March will be put together for the 
technology group. 

• President Monin provide an update on reaching out to local elected officials on the 
Federal and State levels in order to boost ISDOC and CSDA presence.  It was agreed 
that Stacy Taylor will assist with drafting the letter and working with staff.  The 
letter will not be finalized until the 2nd Vice President is elected. 

  

VI. Treasurer’s Report – Director Green 
 

• Director Green reported that there is currently $12,312.54 in the Union Bank 
account. 

 
VII. CSDA Report – Director Schafer 

 
• Director Schafer reported that the Executive Board meeting was cancelled for this week.  

She recently attended the Emergency Preparedness Summit featuring Stacy Taylor and 
Vicki Osborn on panels discussing emergency response protocol and digital 
communication in an emergency plan.  Both did an excellent job.  May 18 and 19 are 



 
 
 

3 
 

legislative days.  March 18th is Ethics and Brown Act training which is free to members 
and $95 for non-members.  May 3rd is Annual Spring Education.  The new CSDA 
magazine is out. 

• Chris Palmer thanked Stacy and Vicki for their participation on the panel.  Federal 
Advocacy efforts continue for Covid relief for special districts.  CSDA is still looking for 
letters of support from special districts.  President Monin thanked Heather, Christina, 
and Laura for their efforts. 
 

VIII. LAFCO Report – Director Fisler 
 

• Director Fisler announced that the next LAFCO meeting is scheduled for March 10th at 
8:15 a.m. and you can visit www.oclafco.org for more information.  Agenda highlights 
include the proposed budget and fee schedule, and a legislative report will be given. 

 
IX. ACWA Report – Director Jacobs 

 
• Director Jacobs reported that ACWA Region 10 met on February 22.  Agenda highlights 

included a schedule of upcoming events and formation of a nominating committee to 
consider nominees for the eligible region chair, vice chair and board member candidates 
for the 2022-2023 term.  Doug Wilson, Padre Dam MWD, Elsa Saxod, San Diego County 
Water Authority, Greg Mills, Serrano WD and Joone Lopez, Moulton Niguel WD have 
agreed to serve on the committee.  May 12 and May 13th are virtual conference days.  
Gary Arant, General Manager at Valley Center Water District, was appointed to fill the 
open seat on the Board.  Director Gibson of SMWD is interested in running for the 
Region I Chair position.  March 17 is the congressional panel; March 24 is the regulatory 
landscape and March 31 is the first 100-day outlook on the Biden administration. 

 
X. OCCOG Report – Director Scheafer 

 
• Director Scheafer reported that the OCCOG meeting was held on February 25th 

appointing three officials to serve on the SCAG policy committees.  A webinar on 
housing for a resilient future will be held on March 24th between 11 and noon.  Please 
contact Director Scheafer for more information. 
 

XI. Orange County Operational Area Report – Vicki Osborn 
 

• Vicki reported that a great decrease has been observed in the Covid numbers.  The State 
has contracted with Blue Shield to transition the vaccine to providers.  On February 10th 
the Operational Area Executive Board met to discuss Covid, recent fires and 
proclamations. 

• President Monin announced that two more slots are available on OAEB and that he 
highly recommends this group that meets quarterly.  Please contact mmonin@etwd if 
you would like more information.  Vicki provided more information on the Board’s 
function and role. 

http://www.oclafco.org/


 
 
 

4 
 

XII. Subcommittee Reports 
 

• Programs – President Monin reported that the Assistant Airport Director will be the 
guest speaker at the next quarterly luncheon with the YLWD as spotlighted district.  The 
Placentia Library will be at the July 29th third quarterly meeting. 

• Membership - Director Dick reported that Senator Dick Ackerman has agreed to join as 
an associate member on ISDOC.  President Monin noted that associate members may 
speak at the quarterly luncheons when advance notice is provided. 

• Legislative – Director Jones reported on various bills including SB-222, SB-223, HR-535, 
AB-7162, AB-59 and SB-45.  AB-59 is opposed by CSDA and SB-45 is being closely 
observed.  Director Jones will send out more information via Laura through email.  
Director Schafer complimented Director Jones on a great report.   

• Director Dick speculated if anybody would be interested in providing a report on CASA.  
Director Jones remarked that he would be glad to be an interface.   

 
XIII. Adjourn:  President Monin thanked the various attendees for their assistance and 

participation.  The meeting adjourned at 8:27 a.m.  
 
 
 
 

Signed:          
ISDOC Secretary 

 
 

Date:____________________________________________ 
 



 AGENDA 
 

Friday, April 2, 2021 
7:30 a.m. - 9:00 a.m.  

 
Register: 

https://ocwd.zoom.us/meeting/register/tJMtcOyhqzwtE9Pje_1AKgfMsOvN
4MYsN1kQ  

 

1. Welcome 

• Cathy Green, Orange County Water District 
 

2. Housekeeping & Meeting Etiquette 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Program: Idaho Cloud Seeding Case Studies and Santa Ana 
Watershed Cloud Seeding Feasibility Study 

• Derek Blestrud, Idaho Power Company 

• Mark Norton, Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

5. Reports 

• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MET) Report – 
Linda Ackerman, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

• Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Report – Cathy 
Green, Orange County Water District 

 
6. Adjourn 
 
 

………………………………………..………….. 
 

 

 

Next WACO Meeting 
 

Friday, May 7, 7:30 a.m. via Zoom  
 
Next WACO Planning Committee Meeting 
 
Tuesday, April 20, 7:30 a.m. via Zoom 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

    

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 8300 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
Meeting Location 
Via Zoom 
 
(714) 378-3200 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
 
 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Cathy Green 
Orange County Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
 
Alicia Dunkin 
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stay Connected with WACO on  
Facebook, Twitter, and YouTube! 
 

      

  
 

  
 

/orangecountywater 
 
 

@waco_h2o 
 
 

/orangecountywater 

https://ocwd.zoom.us/meeting/register/tJMtcOyhqzwtE9Pje_1AKgfMsOvN4MYsN1kQ
https://ocwd.zoom.us/meeting/register/tJMtcOyhqzwtE9Pje_1AKgfMsOvN4MYsN1kQ
https://www.facebook.com/pages/Water-Advisory-Committee-of-Orange-County-WACO/111827158907574
http://www.twitter.com/WACO_H2O
http://www.youtube.com/user/orangecountywater


DATES TO REMEMBER  

APRIL/MAY 2021 

 

1. Apr 22 – 10:30 a.m. – MWDOC Managers Meeting 

2. Apr 23 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

3. Apr 26 – 1:00 p.m. – AWIA #4 

4. Apr 29 – 11:30 a.m. – ISDOC Quarterly Meeting 

5. Apr 30 – 12 noon – Pres/VP/GM Meeting 

6. May 3 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Planning/Operations 

7. May 3 – 1:30 p.m. – SOCWMA Management Committee 

8. May 4 – 7:30 a.m. – ISDOC Executive Committee 

9. May 4 – 10:00 a.m. – RRC Meeting 

10. May 5 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop 

11. May 6 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Board Meeting 

12. May 7 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Meeting 

13. May 7 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

14. May 11 – 9:30 a.m. – OCWA Safetyfest 

15. May 12 – 8:15 a.m. – LAFCO 

16. May 12 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Admin/Finance Meeting 

17. May 12 – 9:00 a.m. – Module 3 (SDLF) 

18. May 12-13 – ACWA Spring Conference 

19. May 13 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Engineering Committee 

20. May 13 – 9:00 a.m. – Module 3 (SDLF) 

21. May 13 – 11:30 a.m. – CAG Meeting 

22. May 14 – 12 noon – Pres/VP/GM Meeting 

23. May 17 – 9:00 a.m. – Agenda Review 

24. May 18-19 – Special Districts Legislative Days 

25. May 18 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Planning Committee 



26. May 18 – 10:30 a.m. – SOCWA Finance Meeting 

27. May 19 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Board Meeting 

28. May 20 – 10:30 a.m. – MWDOC Managers Meeting 

29. May 21 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

30. May 24 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Engineering/Finance Committee Meetings 

31. May 26 – 9:00 a.m. – Module 4 (SDLF) 

32. May 26 – 10:00 a.m. – City of Lake Forest Utility Coordination Meeting 

33. May 27 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

34. May 27 – 9:00 a.m. – Module 4 (SDLF) 

35. May 27 – 12 noon – South County Agencies Meeting 

36. May 28 – 12 noon – Pres/VP/GM Meeting 

37. May 31 – MEMORIAL DAY – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

 

 

 


























	April 22, 2021 Board Agenda
	Item #1 - Minutes
	Item #3 - 2021-2022 Budget
	Item #4 - 2008-23 (IV) Identity Theft Policy
	Item #5 - COVID-19 Update
	Item #6 - GM Report
	GM - page one
	GM - Potable and RW Sales
	GM - Customer service activity report
	GM - Total RW Production
	GM - Fluoride charts
	ETWDSITEMAPB
	ETWDSITEMAPC
	ETWDSITEMAPF
	ETWDSITEMAPN

	GM - Wtr Savings compared to 2013
	ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013
	ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013
	ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

	GM - Monthly potable wtr quality report
	GM - Collection system activity report
	GM - Weekly WQ System Status Map-20210324
	GM - Wtr Supply conditions report
	GM - Will serve
	GM - Spill summary

	Item #7 - Legislative reports
	Item #8 - Public Outreach Wtr Conserv reports
	Public outreach report
	Public outreach report - part two

	Item #9 - SOCWA
	SOCWA - April 1, 2021
	4a - Staff Report - Special Nominating for Vacant Board (Chair) Officer_2021.04.01
	5a - draft BOD Minutes 2021.03.04
	5b - FC Minutes 2021.02.16
	5c - EC Minutes 2021.02.11
	5d - Board Financials February 2021
	5d1 - Board Financials February 2021
	Cash Disbursements
	Reinvestments
	State LAIF
	Cash and Investments
	Capital 
	Large Capital Graph
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual by PC
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual by PC Notes
	Eng Bdgt vs Actual
	Admin Bdgt vs Actual
	IT Bdgt vs Actual

	5e - 00R Agenda Item February 2021 Operations Report to April 2021 Board
	5e1 Ops Reports Attachment
	01 Monthly Operational Report Cover Sheet
	02 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 1
	03 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 2
	04 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 3
	05 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 4
	06 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 5
	07 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page 6
	07A Feb 2021 Ops Report Page Critical Maint Work -2 pages
	08 SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency Cover Page
	09 Feb 2021 Ops Report Page Tab 2
	10 Beach Ocean Monitoring Report Cover Sheet
	11 ACOO_0013
	effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	stations
	offshore
	2_ACOO SOCWA SPILL REPORT 2021.pdf
	Sheet1

	1_ACOO Violations.pdf
	ACOO.violations  !!


	12 SJCOO_0012
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Stations
	Offshore
	1_SJCOO Violations.pdf
	SJCOO (2016) violations

	2_SJCOO SPILL REPORT 2021.pdf
	Sheet1


	13 Recycled Water Report Cover
	14 Recycled Water Report_0014
	3_Recycled Water Compliance Summary.pdf
	Recyc.2021

	4_Recycled Water Quality Summary.pdf
	Sheet1

	5_SOCWA Service Area Recycled Water Production.pdf
	Sheet1


	15 PreTreatment Report Cover
	16 2021-03 PT Monthly Report

	5f - Capital Improvement Report April 2021 1
	5f1 - Capital Improvement Report April 2021
	1 -Capital Improvement Report April 2021 2 WorkPlan
	PC 2
	PC 15
	PC 17

	2 - Capital Improvement Report April 2021 3 Detailed Descriptions
	PC 2
	PC 5
	PC 15
	PC 17
	PC 21


	5g - CIP Financial Status and COs April 2021 1
	5g1 - CIP Financial Status and COs April 2021 2
	6a  -GM Status Report_2021.04.01

	SOCWA - April 8, 2021
	3 - draft Engr Committee Minutes 2021.03.11
	05a Staff Report CIP Construction Report 04.08.2021
	05b Staff Report CIP Construction Report 04.08.2021
	06 Billing Rate Modeling Project Overview RY BRL 3-26
	08 JBL Package B Update 040821

	SOCWA - April 20, 2021
	0 - Agenda bcb revision FCM_2021.04.20
	NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING

	3 - draft FC Minutes 2021.03.16
	4 - Board Financials March 2021
	4i - Board Financials March 2021
	Cash Disbursements
	Reinvestments
	State LAIF
	Cash and Investments
	Capital 
	Large Capital Graph
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual by PC
	O&M Bdgt vs Actual by PC Notes
	Eng Bdgt vs Actual
	Admin Bdgt vs Actual
	IT Bdgt vs Actual
	Fringe Pool

	5 - Agenda Item Cash Roll Foward FY 2020-21 Q3
	5i - Cash Roll Forward Q3 FY 20-21
	6 - Agenda Item - FY20-21 OM Proposed Budget Amendments
	7 - Budget Staff Report
	7i - Budget Book FY 2021-2022
	Cover
	Table of Contents Revised
	Total Budget Mbr Agcy
	5 Year Budget Detail
	5 Yr Summary w UAL & OPEB Distr
	5 Year Cost Drivers
	Total 5 Yr Labor Plan
	Fringe Pool
	Oranizational Chart
	FY 22 O&M by PC and Mbr Agency 
	O&M 5 Year Summary
	O&M By PC 2021-22
	Administration
	General Fund
	Residual Engineering
	IT Budget 
	Flow%  Solids %PC 02
	PC 2 Allocations Detail
	PC 2 Allocations Summary
	PC 5 Allocations Detail
	pc 5 WW
	PC 8 Allocations Detail
	PC 8 Allocations Summary
	Flow% PC 12
	PC 12 Allocations Detail
	PC 12 Allocations Summary
	Flow% PC 15
	PC 15 Allocations Detail
	PC 15 Allocations Summary
	Flow% Solids % PC 17
	PC 17 Allocations Detail
	PC 17 Allocations Summary
	PC 21 Allocations Detail
	PC 21 Allocations Summary
	PC 24 Allocations Detail
	PC 24 Allocations Summary
	Capital Summary by Mbr Agency
	Capital Spending Chart Revised
	Capital Summary by Mbr Detail
	Large Capital 2021-22
	Non Cap Engr 2021-22
	Non Cap Misc Engr 2021-22
	Small Capital 2021-22
	Capital Budget FY 21-22 by MA
	Capital Budget FY 21-22 Q1
	Capital Budget FY 21-22 Q2
	Capital Budget FY 21-22 Q3
	Capital Budget FY 21-22 Q4

	7ii - Environmental Regulatory Requirements 3-31-21BB
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	7iii - Addition of Normal Costs to PARS Savings and Impact
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	7iiii - UAL OPEB to GF (003)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	7iiiii - PC17 Co Gen Credit 4 8 21 [Autosaved]
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	7iiiiiii - Member Agency Q&A response slides
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	7iiiiiiii - Budget Change YOY 4-9-2021 response to MNWD question
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	8 - CIP Budget
	8i - Budget Presentation 04.20.2021
	SOCWA Proposed CIP�Budget
	Current Fiscal Year Update
	Year-Over-Year Comparison 
	FY 2022 Proposed Budget by Spending Type
	FY 2022 Proposed New Construction Projects
	FY 2023 Proposed Spending by PC

	8ii - if needed Large Cap from KS
	Large Capital 2021-22

	9 - Auditor Services RFP staff report
	9i - SOCWA RFP Audit Services v1
	9ii - Attachment to Audit RFP
	0 - Agenda bcb revision FCM_2021.04.20.pdf
	NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING



	Item #10 - MWDOC
	MWDOC - April 1, 2021
	MWDOC - April 5, 2021
	MWDOC - April 7, 2021
	MWDOC - April 19, 2021
	MWDOC - April 21, 2021
	MWDOC - April 21, 2021 - part two

	Item #13 - ISDOC
	ISDOC - part 1
	ISDOC - part 2

	Item #14 - WACO
	Item #15 - DATES TO REMEMBER
	ETWD Glossary of Water Terms - Acronyms



